=1, N
(\_-) - L (f) \
' & STMODWEN
| |
THE UK’S LEADING REGENERATION SPECIALIST

Annual Report and
Financial Statements 2013

OOOOOOOOOOOOOO




Strategic Report
Welcome

St. Modwen is the UK's
leading regeneration specialist.
We operate across the ful
spectrum of the property
industry from a network

of seven regional offices,

a residential business and
through joint ventures

with public sector and
iIndustry-leading partners.

For further information Non-statutory information

please visit our website As the Group utilises a number of joint ventura
arrangements, additional disclosuras are
WWW. Stm Odwen .CO.U k provided 1o giva a better understanding of
our business Thesa mclude nformation
he share of joint vent,
utory measuras su
rofit before all tax
eco measures s provided
inancu ternants




Strategic Report
Our performance

Financial highlights

* 56% Increase in profit PROFIT BEFORE ALL TAX £m

EQUITY NET ASSETS PER SHARE p

before all tax to £82 2m
(2012 £52.8m)

» Shareholders’ NAV up 11%
to 279p per share (2012
251p per share), and EPRA
NAV up 10% to 298p per
share (2012 272p per share)

* Realised property profits up
37% to £40m (2012 £29m)

s Successful completion of
a £49m equrty placing to

CHART
REMOVED

improved by 560/ 0

CHART
REMOVED

improved by 1 1 O/ 0

SEE-THROUGH LOAN-TO-VALUE %

support redevelopment of TRADING PROFIT £m
New Covent Garden Market
* 20% decrease in loan-to-
CHART
value to 33% (2012 41%) REMOVED
¢ Final dividend for the year

Increased by 10% to 2 67p
per share, providing a total
dividend for 2013 of 4 00p
per share (2012 3 63p)

improved by 31 O/ 0

Operational highlights

CHART
REMOVED

mproved by 200/ 0

¢ Overall net valuation * Signficant milestones

increase of £42m (2012
£28m), comprising gamns

of £28m (2012 £48m)as a
result of planning gan asset
management and £14m
market-dnven valuation gain
(2012 £20m loss)

¢ Elephant & Castle Shopping
Centre sold for £80m

completed across all major
projects

Longbridge — 150,000 sq ft
pre-let secured to Marks &
Spencer which will anchor
the second phase of the
new Town Centre

Swansea University,

Bay Campus - first phase
of works on schedule with
student accommodation
now underway
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Ontrack to deliver New
Covent Garden Market
with planning approval
antcipated in 2015
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What we do

Commercial land
and development

Our commercial land portfolio makes
up 13% of our land bank by value

We acquire this land in its raw state
at low cost and then manage its
development through the remediation
and planning process, taking
advantage of local market condstions
to release the land for development at
the most appropnate time

-

See page 22
for more detail

IMAGE
REMOVED

Residential

We acquire sites wrth opportunity for
residential development and maximise
their potential through the development
process, realising value through three
routes to market

+ residenbal land sales
+ 5t Modwen Homes
* Persimmon joint venture

QOur residential portfolio makes up 42%
of our land bank by value. Across the
entire portfolo we have planning
permussion or allocations wathin local
plans for over 21,900 plots

-

Seepage 28
for more detail

IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED

Income producing 4
properties Seepage 34
Compnsing industnal, retall and office for more detail
assets, our ncome producing portfolio

makes up 45% of our land bank

by value. All assets in this portfolio

are held with a view to generating

significant future value hut we do make

sure that a major proportion produces

income pnor to development which

typically covers the running costs of

the Group's business.
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Strategic Report
Where we operate

Strategically positioned

Our diverse UK-wide portfolio and our 5,900 acre land bank are
controlled by highly-skilled professionals from a network of seven
regional offices and a residential business. This provides us with
local knowledge and expertise that keeps us in tune with the needs
of the local community and ensures that we remain politically and
economically sensitive to each individual area.

30%

of gross portfolio located in

London and the South East
See page 20 See pages 22-37
Major project progress Drverse UK-wide portfolio
For further information We have made good progress with all of Cur diverse UK-wide portfolio, which
about our projects visit our major projects, all at varying stages now includes a five megawatt Solar Park,
www.stmodwen.co uk of development means we are not overexposed to a single
schems, tenant or sector
IMAGE IMAGE
REMOVED REMOVED

regional offices

NEW COVENT
GARDEN MARKE

HEDNESFORD SKYPARK WEMBLEY CENTRAL
EDMONTON GREEN FARNBOROUGH

SWANSEA UNIVERSITY
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Of our gross portfolio, 30% I1s in London and the South East

where around 50% by value of our residential assets are also located.
Our extensive national portfolio includes four flagship projects:

New Covent Garden Market, Swansea University, Longbridge

and Project MoDEL.

£11bn

property portfolio

_)
See pages 28-33

Residential busimness growth

In Ine with the upturn n the market, residential

output has nsen sgnificantly with many

housebuilders, including St Modwen Homes

and Persmmon, reporting a healthy increase

In sales

IMAGE
REMOVED

IMAGE
REMOVED =

See pages 22-27

Improved commercial market place

By continuing to prime our land bank for
development over the last five years we are
I a good position to benefit from ongoing
improvernent m this market

100+

development projects

| ONGBRIDGE

GREAT HOMER STREET COED DARCY

SAF

UXBRIDGE

CRANFIELD UNIVERSITY WYTHENSHAWE

THE

Iz

“NTHAM ESTATE
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Strategic Report
Our business model

What makes St. Modwen the UK’s leading
regeneration specialist?

IMAGE
REMOVED
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The land
bank

IMAGE
REMOVED

Our long-term view allows us to acquire assets at low

cost and then maximise ther potential by steadily adding
value to them over time through remediation and planning
Then at the appropnate time we erther dispose of the asset
to realise any Increase In value or release 1t for development
ourselves or In joint venture

What differentiates us?

The derse and extensive nature of our £1 1bn land bank
provides us with the flexibiity to move with market demands
and, coupled with our local expertise, means we can pursug
value-creating opportunities A considerable proportion of
our land bank 15 held at relatively low value, giving us access
to a wide vanety of development opportunities without the
need for significant financing

=> See pages 08-09

Recurring
income

IMAGE
REMOVED

Whilst all of our assets are uttmately held with a view to
generating significant future value, some also produce

a steady income stream prior to development which
underpins the running costs of the business This ensures
that commitments can be met if development profits fall and
enables us to extract the maxmum value from our land bank
n the short-term

What dfferentiates us?

We employ locally-based asset management capability to
manage the assats as efficiently as possible We typically offer
low affordable rents on relatively short tenancies which ensure
that voids remain at thewr lowest possible level as we prepare
sites for development The dversity of occupiers i our
mneome producing properties helps us to avoid overexposure
to a single scheme, sector or tenant

=>» See pages 10-11

Asset
management

IMAGE
REMOVED

We increase the value of our land bank over time using our
experhse in and hands-on approach to remediaticn and
regeneration, managing sites, public consuttation and the
planning process Our skills can be apphed effectively to
small developments or be used to navigate complex and
long-term projects

What differentiates us?

Our ability to progress our land bank successtully through
the planning process and our expertise in brownfield land
remediation and other aspects of regeneration make us an
aftractive partner to both landowners and public bodies
The skill and expenence of our people 1s fundamental to
the success of our asset management actraties and we
continue to retain, develop and incentivise them

=> See pages 12-13
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Delivery

When we are unable to add any further significant value to an
asset, we seek market-dnven opportunities to dispose of t,
either through the delivery of pre-let and pre-sold buldings or
the sale of land Cash generated on the sale provides recycled
capital to invest in the business and supports the delivery of
long-term shareholder value creation through a progressive
dmdend policy

What differentiates us?

We continue to find good development opportunities that are
not reliant on speculative development Where industnal and
commercial occuplers have mmediate requirements for new
premises, we are able to react quickly to meet ther demands
with sites that already benefit from planming Our regeneration
projects continue to serve as catalysts for change, impacting
positively on the local economy and attracting a vanety

of occupters

—> See pages 14-15
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Strategic Report
QOur business model

The
land bank

IMAGE
REMOVED

Our actively managed,
£1.1bn UK-wide land bank of
development opportunities
comprises over 5,900 acres.
Made up of predominantly
brownfield land and held

at relatively low value,

it provides us with a firm
foundation from which

to generate value.

At any paint in time, our skilled teams
are erther actively bullding, remediating
or pursuing planning permissions
which allow us to transform this land
into thnving communities or business
destinations that will encourage growth
nght across the country

Pictured Glan Liyn, Newport This 600 acre
former Llanwern steelworks site forms part
of our extensive regenerative work across
South Wales Translated as ‘Lakeside’, Glan
Liyn will provide three new lakes and a
parkland setting for 4,000 homes, as well as
1 5m sq ft of employment space, educational
facities, and leisure and retal accommodation
Persimmon 1s now on site with the first phase
of 307 homes as part of our joint venture
partnership St Modwen Homes will also

be building properties on this site in 2014

5,943

developable acres

2%

of land bank 1s whollty owned

08 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013
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Corporate Govemnance

Financial Statements
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IMAGE
REMOVED
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Strategic Report
Our business model

Recurring
income

IMAGE
REMOVED

The stream of rental and
other recurring income
generated by our portfolio
of income producing assets
covers the running costs of
the business and enables
us to extract maximum
value from our land bank in
the short-term as we work
towards development.

Representing 45% of our £1 1bn
porticho by value, this 1s the largest part
of our business and 1Is made up of a
diverse asset base ranging from Town
Centres to business and retail parks,
and leisure destinations

Picturad Farnborough Town Centre,
Hampshire Works to the first two phases

of this £80m regeneration project are now
complete and are being actwely managed for
ncome by our regional team of professionals
The scheme currently comprises a 62,000
sq ft Sansbury’s, a 77-bedroom Travelodge,
J D Wetherspoon, a gym and the creation of
retail space for major brands including
Starbucks and New Leok. In May 2013, we
started on site with the transformation of
Kingsmead Shopping Centra which 1s

being overhauled to accommodate a new
seven-screen VUE Cinema and new
restaurants, this latest phase of the scheme
1s due for completion in summer 2014

£36.3m

net rental income

£9m

of new lettings

10 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013
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IMAGE
REMOVED
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Strategic Report
Our busminess model

Asset
management

IMAGE
REMOVED

Our strong asset
management capabilities

are fundamental n enabling
us to realise maximum

value from our portfolio of
retained assets and are a key
component for the successful
delivery of new commercial
environments.

By creating attractive commercial spaces
we encourage and retain a vanety of
occuplers into our schemes across the
country In doing so, we ¢an support

the surrounding community through the
creation of jobs and restoring confidence
In the local economy

Pictured Longbndge, Bimingham The first
phase of the new Town Centre opened in
August 2013 and compnses an 80,000 sq ft
Samnsbury’s, a 75-bedroom Premier Inn, 24
shops, restaurants, 35,000 sq ft of offices and
the £2m Austin Park. It forms the heart of this
£1bn regeneration programme Together with
more than 150,000 sq {t of office and
industrial space, which 1s over 95% occupiad,
other features of this extensve brownfield
regeneration project include the 250,000 sq ft
Bournville College which opened in 2011 and
the £5m youth centre known as ‘The Factory'

9%

like-for-lke rent roll growth

£28m

added value gamns
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IMAGE
REMOVED
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Strategic Report
Our business model

Delivery

IMAGE
REMOVED

Our development pipeline
continues to grow with

a number of major
opportunities across

the country.

Occupiers continue to be attracted by
our lease terms, which we are able to
offer at competitive fevels as a result
of the location of our developments,
often in run-down areas undergoing
regeneration They also recogrise the
positive long-term economic impact
that our schemes deliver

Qur strategy to pnme our sites for
development places us in a strong
position to meet )immediate occupier
demand for new premises across
the country

Pictured Dunelm, Doncaster This 22,000
sq ft store started on site in summer 2013
and opened in tme for Chnstmas trading
It 1s stuated on a 13 acre brownheld sita
and additional development here includas
a Marston's public house and new
community sports faciliies

25 year

track record

100+

development projects

14 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013




IMAGE
REMOVED

St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 15

Hoday 2ifsieng

S)USLLSIEIS [BroUBUIY SOUBLLAAOE) 100100

UOIEULIOJU| [eUOIHPDY



Strategic Report
Our strategy

Strategically agile to take advantage
of opportunities...

As the UK’s leading regeneration specialist, our expertise in remediation, planning, asset
management and construction supports our strategy of secunng excellent returns through
a focus on long-term significant added value while protecting existing assets.

Strategy

2013 Qutcomes

secure excellent
returns...

through a focus on
long-term significant
added value...

while protecting
existing assets

Prionty

Key performance indicators applied

Invest at a point in the property Iifecycle
from where maximum development
returns can be extracted

Maximise ndividual asset values through
our locally-based expertise

Recycle assets where significant
opportunhies are exhausted

PROFIT BEFORE ALL TAX £m

CHART
REMOVED

EQUITY NET ASSETS PER SHARE p

CHART
REMOQVED
Build land bank to bring through future
opportunities and secure planning gain LAND BANK develapable acres
GContinued programme of recycling
and rainvestment CHART
Create predictable, dependable and REMGOVED

cash-backed income streams

Have highly-skilled and motivated people
In place to deliver our asset strategies
and future growth

Focus on brownfield renewal and
sustainable development

PROPORTION OF ASSETS AT THE START
OF THE YEAR RECYCLED BY THE END
OF THE YEAR %

CHART
REMOVED

Maintan sufficient income to
substantially cover business
running costs

Maintain an appropnate capital structure
to meet future development and
funding needs

Manage debt ratios whilst continuing
to Invest

RATIO OF RENTAL AND OTHER INCOME TO
OPERATING COSTS INCLUDING INTEREST %

CHART
REMOVED

GEARING %

CHART
REMOVED
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Priorities for 2014

Targets

Principal nsks

DIVIDEND PAID p

CHART
REMOVED

Continue to grow development profits
and create valuation gamns, particularly
In residential

Strive to demonstrate and grow the
Group's inherent value and
long-term prospects

Grow net assets so that dividends can
also grow Continue to secure profitable
development to generate consistent
future returns

Wider economic 1ssues affect property
values and equity valuations

The management of developments 1s
a complex process with successful
delwery depending on continued
excellence in the application of

our expertise

MANAGEMENT WITH MORE THAN
3 YEARS’ SERVICE %

CHART
REMOVED

Selective and capital efficient
acquisittons

Continued recycling of assets
with imited opportunity for further
significant added value

Continue to retan, recruit and motivate
highly-skilled people throughout
the bustness

As ourwork s conducted in a complex
legal and regulatory environment we
need to be able to successfully adapt
our asset strategies over the long-term

Suppler and tenant carbon footprint 1s
not under our operational control

SEE-THROUGH LOAN-TO-VALUE %

CHART
REMOVED

COMMITTED FACILITIES TO COVER
DRAWN DEBT months

CHART
REMOVED

Effective asset management to
maxamise returns

Put in place further extended finance
facilibes to support ongoing growth

Continued management of investment
and development programme to
maintam approprate debt ratios

Significant contraction in available debt
facilities reduces the opportunity for
strategic investment

St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 17
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Strategic Report

Chairman’s
Statement

IMAGE
REMOVED

‘Challenges still
exist but the
Company

is already busier
than it was

12 months ago
and thereis a
greater sense

of optimism across

our portfolio and
momentum in the
market place.’

1t has been another very good year for
the Company, writh excelient growth
resulting in a significant rise in profits
across the Group Profit before all

tax increased by 56% to £82 2m

(2012 £52 8m) with shareholders’ equity
net asset value per share growing 11%
to 279p per share (2012 251p per
share), after paying dividends of 3 75p
dunng the year {2012 3 41p)

We have made good progress with all of
our major schemes across the country
over the last 12 months, each one
illustrating a key facet of our business
model and demonstrating its strength

We completed a successful equity
placing tn March 2013, which raised
gross proceeds of £49m The funds will
be used to maximise the potential of the
development of the New Covent Garden
Market land in the medium-term without
increasing our debt levels

18 St. Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financel Statements 2013

£82.2m

profit before all tax

+10%

increase In final dvidend

Works to the first phase of Swansea
Unrversity’s £450m Bay Gampus project
commenced in May 2013 and are well
advanced We are extremely proud to
be werking with the University on such
a prestigious project, which forms part
of our extensive regenerative work In
South Wales

In November, Key Property Investments
(KPI), our 50/50 joint venture with Salhia
Real Estate Co K S C, disposed of the
Elephant & Castle Shopping Centre for
£80m The sale, which was achieved well
above book value, crystallised signficant
profits for our shareholders whilst freeing
up our people and capital resources to
focus on other significant regeneration
and development projects in London
and across the regions

After a year of excephonal delivery

at Longbndge, we were delighted to
announce In December 2013 the pre-let
of a 150,000 sq ft Marks & Spencer
store on the second phase of the Town
Centre This project 1s a testament to
how our transformational developments
serve as true catalysts for change and
breathe new [ife into areas in need of
regeneration across the UK

The improvement in the residential
market continued dunng the year,
with profits and sales rates from our
residential operations reflecting this
upward trend



DIVIDEND

tn recent years, we have raised our
dividends broadly in ine with the
increases in net asset value and to refiect
the strong results This 1s again the case
for the year ended 30" Novemnber 2013
with your Board recommending a 10%
mncrease in the final dvidend for the year
to 2 67p per share (2012 2 42p), making
a total distnbution for the year of 4 00p
{2012 3 63p) The final dvidend will be
pad on 4™ Apnl 2014 to shareholders on
the register at 7" March 2014

We intend for thus dividend policy to
continue, subject to considenng the
impact of one-off events in the year,
positive ar negative, as they occur

STRATEGY

Through our market-leading expertise,
we add value through remediation,
progressing assets through the
planning process and proactive asset
management and development
Specifically, our regional teams

focus on opportunities where our
skiil in regeneration enables us to
add significant long-term value and
generate profits in both commercial
and residental development

As shown by this year's strong set

of results, and our proven abiity to
deliver good returns across the cycle,
our strategy 1s working We expect
this success to continue inte 2014

as the property market steadity
gathers momentum

Our deciston to allocate additional
resource to the residential sector
—secunng predominantly residential-led
planning permissions across our portfolio
while continuing 16 grow our own
housebuilding brand 8t Modwen Homes
and progressing our Persimmon joint
venture — has proved successful as the
regional market place is now showing
meaningful signs of improvement

In addition, the improved market
conditicns in the London and South East
property market are ongomng

BOARD CHANGES

We have continued to strengthen the
property expertise on the Board and
were delighted to welcome Richard
Mully as a non-executive director in
September 2013 Richard brings with
him a wealth of expenence in real estate
nvestment, having spent almost 30
years In investment banking, capital
markets and real estate private equity
investing Richard was appointed Senior
Independent Director in December 2013

PEOPLE

Despite the challenges of the last few
years, St Modwen Is now strongly
positioned to take advantage of the
upturn that 1s making s way across
the UK commercial and residential
markets This would not have been
possible without the energy, skill and
dedication of our people Therefore,

| would like to take this opportunity on
behalf of the Board to say thank you
to all employees for therr hard work
and determination in continuing to
deliver strong performance and create
long-term value for our shareholders

St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 19

PROSPECTS

Even at the height of the recession, we
remained confident of the prospects

for the Company Whilst we still remain
cautious about the overall economic
outlock in the UK and Europe, we

have along track record of successful
regeneration, strong asset management
and creating value from our extensive
land bank This track record, combined
with our robust business model and
strategy to deliver strong returns, puts
us in an excellent position to remain
resiitent against continued economic
and market chaflenges whilst benefitting
strongly from the improving residential
and commerctal markets

With this increased optimism in the
market place, we are expanding our
development pipeline to capture value
across the UK This year we expect
the regonal residential market place
to continue to recover gradually and
London and the South East to reman
robust We will therefore marntamn our
focus on this sector throughout 2014
to caprtalise on the strong returns that
we beleve are availlable Similarty, we
are witnessing a cautious recovery In
commercial property and conseqguently,
will also be focusing on progressing
opportunities in this market during
the year

Challenges shil exist but the Company

15 already busier than it was 12 months
ago and there 1s a greater sense of
optimism across our portfolio and
momenturn in the market place With our
strong financial base, we look forward to
growing the business steadily throughout
2014 and beyond to generate further
value for our shareholders

Bill Shannon
Chairman

3% February 2014
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Strategic Report

Chief
Executive’s
Review

IMAGE
REMOVED

“The recovery has gathered momentum
in 2013 and, against this improving
backdrop, we achieved a number of
important milestones across our
business. This has been illustrated
by another strong set of results.’

It has been a very busy and successful
year defined by three key areas of activity

« we have continued to unlock value
across our 5,900 acre UK land bank
threugh remediation and planning,

* we have sought to maximise
prospects from our residential
portfolio, and

* we have pursued opportunities
ansing from the London and South
East market

| am very pleased to say that our
decision to focus on these three areas
has culminated in an excellent set of
results with a 56% increase in profit
before all tax to £82 2m (2012 £52 8m)

The maost significant transaction of

the year was the sale of the Elephant

& Castle Shepping Centre which
demonstrated clearly how our exposure
to the London and South East market
has enabled us to capitalise on the
growing investor interest in this area
Having acquired the asset, through

our 50 50 KPI joint venture, for £28m

In 2002, we added significant value

to the property dunng our ownership,
whilst also benefitting from the income it
delivered, finally achieving an attractive
sale price of £80m compared to £52 5m
book value at the start of the penod

20 St. Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013

Our other maor projects have
progressed well in the penod In May
2013, we started on site with works

to the first phase of the £450m Bay
Campus for Swansea University and this
15 now well on schedule for completion
in September 2015 Our Longbnidge
development in Brmingham remains

a regtonal success story with the
completion of the first phase of the
Town Centre in the summer and the
subsequent 150,000 sq ft pre-let

to Marks & Spencer as the second
phase anchor tenant, announced just
after our year end Furthermore, good
progress has been made with the public
consultation process for the New Covent
Garden Market redevelopment at Nine
Elms in London and we expect te submit
a planning application during the first half
of this year

Overall, our wide and diverse pipeline of
commercial development opportunities
located throughout the UK continues

to gather momentum, reflecting the
upturn in that market, and we have made
excellent progress with our schemes
across the country Demonstrating our
ability to extract maximum value from
our land bank and explore a vanety of
new opportunities, we have recently
completed a five megawatt Solar Park
at our Baglan Bay site in South Wales
We expect to continue to explore
energy-related opportunities across the
land bank dunng the course of 2014

Across the country, we have been busy
prepanng our tand bank for development
through remediation and achieving
predominantly residential-led planning
permissions Housebulder appetite
for our land s increasing and we are
expenencing good housing sales

rates across all of our residental
schemes, whether delivered in joint
venture with Persimmon or through
our own housebuilding brand,

St Modwen Homes




STRATEGY OVERVIEW

Supported by our long-terr approach
to developrnent, our adherence to a
robust and proven business mode! has
delivered a track record of over 25 years
of successful regeneration schemes

Dunng the recession, we continued to
add value to our £1 1bn land bank of
assets We achieved this by creating
maxirmum value from our Income
preducing properties through asset
management inhatves, whilst prepanng
sites for redevelopment through
remediation and secunng planning
parmissions In doing so, we laid down
strong foundations for growth to take
immediate advantage of any market
recavery, whilst underpinning our
business activities with a steady income
stream At the same time, we disposed of
assets to which we could add no further
value and reinvested the capital back nto
the business

By taking this long-term view and relying
on our own efforts to create value, we
have remained resilient to challenging
economic times and our efforts are
aready being rewarded as momentum
In the residential market grows across
the UK and as the regional commercat
property market gradually starts

to Improve

MARKET CVERVIEW

There 18 a tangible increase in activity
in the residential market place, with
the recovery that started in 2012

on the back of nsing consurmer

and housebuillder sentiment being
further augmented by the success of
Government schemes such as Help to
Buy Momentum continues to gather
pace In London and the South East
with confidence now spread:ng into
the regions This improved outlook
has already had a positive impact

on our [oint venture with Persimmon
which is now building and selling

all eight schemes under the onginal
agreement to deliver over 2,300 homes
Furthermore, our own housebulding
brand, 5t Modwen Homes, 1s performing
very well inits second full year of
operatons, it has continued to expand
dunng 2013 and is now operational on
eight developments

As the year has progressed, we have
kept under close review the increased
optimism in the commercal property
market, driven predorinantty by a
strong Increase in Investor appetite
The recovery 1s now visibly starting to

take hold but a wholesale improvement
in comrmercial property is still being
restncted by an improving but
inconsistent level of tenant demand

Against this backdrop, our
comprehenswve regeneration schemes
serve as positive catalysts for change
and are encouraging renewed tenant
demand Our regeneration of the
Longbndge site In Birmingham I1s

a good example Here, we have
successfully created the centrepiece to
this important project by buillding and
secunng Important retall tenants for
the new Town Centre which openad in
August In doing so, we have beosted
the community significantty by creating
Jobs and restonng confidence in the local
economy which 15 a key component

of the successful delivery of new
commercial environments We have
recently subrmitted planming for the
second phase of the Town Centre which
includes a 150,000 sq ft full-offer store
pre-let to Marks & Spencer, further
testament to the attractive commercial
environment that we continue to
create here

Next year, there 1s 2 General Election

on the hornzon Whether this benefits
development or not remains to be seen
Recent comments from politicians
accusing developers and fandowners of
hoarding land are misleading It does not
make commercial sense to sit on land
and do nothing with it, especially in areas
where land values are not appreciating
St Modwen 1s in the business of
development and our UK land bank of
over 5,900 acres 15 owned specifically
with a view to developing it out to create
homes and communities In which people
can live and work At any pomnt in tme we
are erther actively building, remediating
or pursuing planning permissions

which allow us to transform this land

nto thriving communities or business
destinations that will encourage growth
nght across the country

Notwithstanding inconsistent tenant
demand in the regions, 1t Is clear that

the UK property market 1s improving

We continue to be successful in secunng
planning permissions burt it s taking
much longer than it should do, which 1s
having a knock-on effect on delvery

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

Our major projects at Longbnidge,
Swansea Urniversity and New Covent
Garden Market, are all at varying stages
of development, with each having an
active year to look forward to, which
should add value to the Group

The disposal of the Elephant & Castle
Shopping Centre makes way for Project
MoDEL" to hecome our fourth major
project This consists of the two former
RAF sites at Uxbndge and Mill Hill which
are now being developed nto two new
communities, together compnsing

over 3,500 homes Given therr London
location and the residential-led nature
of each development, we are already
expenencing excellent returns and
expect this only to improve in ine with
the buoyant London property market

We expect to further capitalise on the
improving residential market place which
will remain a dominant force in cur
portfclio in terms of land and housing
sales We are already looking for new
opportunrbies both from within cur own
land bank and more generally in the
market place where we can identify
oppatunities at the nght price to apply
our proven skills to create value

Having spent the last five years prepanng
our commercial land in readiness for this
market to improve, we anticipate more
opportunities to start coming through in
2014, enabling us to add to our pipeline
of development projects

With a successful 2013 behind us, this
year wil be one of continued delivery,
adding value to our portfolio of assets
and a renewed focus on business
areas where we can deliver realised
development profits We are not yet
completely free of the overhang of the
recession, and there 1s no room for
complacency, but there 1s certanty a
more positive outlook on the honzon and
we are already well placed to caprtalise
on this opportunity

“See glossary
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive’'s Review

Commercial
land and
development

With our sites primed for
development, we are well
placed to capitalise on

the improving commercial
property market and

are already growing our
pipeline of development
opportunities.

Pictured Swansea Unversity’s Bay Campus

The first phase 1s on track to welcome
students in September 2015

£146m

commercial land value

2,997

commercial land acreage

IMAGE ->
REMCVED Tha land bank
See pages 24-25
IMAGE >
REMOVED " g "
See page 25
IMAGE ->
REMOVED Recumng ncoma
See pages 26-27
IMAGE _>
REMOVED Delvery
See pages 26-27
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive’s Review

Commercial
land and
development
(continued)

STRATEGY

Our long-term approach to regeneration
helps us to weather economic cycles
Over the last five years we have
focused on pniming our land bank for
development through remediation and
planming which has ultimately put usin
a good position to benefit from current
market improvements

Through our network of regionat

offices, we remain in tune with local
requirements and any new opporturities
This local knowledge has enabled us

o stay opportunistically acquisitive

over this penod, securing land and
commercial assets with latent value that
can be reglised at the nght time

Furthermore, our highly-skilled in-house
team of construction professionals
oversees the delivery of all our projects
and works closely with chents and
partners to ensure the end product
matches their needs Responsible for
our ‘shop window' they are a valued
and impertant part of the business that
safeguards the Company’s principles

of delivering high-quality, sustainable
developments as a legacy for businesses
and communities te enjoy for years

to come

MARKET COMMENTARY

Our strategy to pnme our land for
develepment has borne fruit during 2013
Demand for design and build prejects
on our ‘ready to go’ employment sites
has grown as businesses are feeling
more confident to expand and seek

new premises, and occupiers recognise
we can deliver on therr requirements
quickly In those areas where we are
experencing an increasing number

of tangible enquines coming through,
such as London and the South East, the
Midlands and the South Waest, we are
submitting detalled planning applications
for commercial-led developments on our
existing land bank
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Our secondary shopping centres
continue to expenence good take-up of
space from occuplers Here, our ongoing
regeneration activities and favourable
lease terms are attracting new retailers
who recogrise the positive, long-term
economic impact that our schemes are
set to have as we transform any given
area A good example 1s our £80m
regeneration of Farnborough Town
Centre, where works are now complete
on the first two phases including a
62,000 sq ft Sainsbury's, Travelodge,

J D Wetherspoon, a gym and the
creation of retall space for major brands
including Starbucks and New Look

In May 2013, we started on site with the
transformation of Kingsmead Shopping
Centre which is baing extensively rebuilt
to accommodate a new seven-screen
VUE Cinerna and restaurants, which 1s
due for completion in summer 2014

Commercial land

During the penod, with a view to
augmenting and adding value to our
commercial development pipeline, we
have continued to secure sites and
prepare them for davelopment through
remediation and planning

We have secured a significant number
of commercial-led brownfield land
opporturities over the last 12 months
with highlights including

* Wellingborough — formerly
owned by Whitworth Bakery, we
acquired this 3 5 acre site with a
view to transforming it into a retail
park compnsing 35,000 sq ft of
accommodation for which we waill
submit a planning application in
February 2014

3%

The regeneration of Farnborough Town Centre
15 gathening momentum and now includes

a Sansbury’s, New Look, Starbucks and

VUE Cinema

IMAGE
REMOVED




4

An mdicatve mage of the 150,000 sq #t
full-offer store pre-let to Marks & Spencer
at Longbndge, Brmingham

IMAGE
REMOVED

¢ Tamworth, Staffordshure — we have
signed a development agreement to
regenerate this 240 acre site into a
high-quality mixed-use scheme

* Derby Gateway, Chaddesden Thangle,
Derby — a 70 acre brownfield site, the
largest in Derby, to compnse 700,000
sq ft of commercial accommodation
which will be developed in partnership
with Network Rail A masterplan
application is currently being prepared
and will be submitted in spnng 2014

Ciay Cross, Derbyshire — a 204 acre
site benefitting from outine planning
consent to create a mixed-use
scheme that includes up to 250,000
sq ft of employment space

We have also made good progress in
converting planning applications to
approval and delivery Highhghts include

* Rugby, Warwickshire — we have
recentlty submitted a planning
application to deliver a 100,000
sq ft retaill park at this former
Alstom industnal site which 1s being
redeveloped into a mixed-use scheme
that sits alongside the 150,000 sq ft
Warwickshire College completed in
2010 Currently on site, Greene King 15
canstructing a ‘Hungry Horse' public
house and St Modwen Homes 1s
developing a scheme of 175 homes

Worcestershire Fire Stafion,
Worcester - we secured planning
permission for a 20,000 sq ft facility
on behalf of Hereford & Worcester
Fire Authority as part of the second
phase of development at our Great
Western Business Park where

the fully occupied phase one
compnses 125,000 sq ft of office and
industrial accommodation

Branston, Burton upon Trent —
planning for 770,000 sq ft of Industnal
space has now been secured on

part of this 175 acre site on which

we expect to commence with site
infrastructure in 2014
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¥

Works at Castledown Business Park, where
wa arg dehvenng 33,650 sq ft of employment
space for Wiltshure Council

IMAGE
REMOVED

¥

In addtion to the cngoing residentizl
development at Locking Parkdands,
Weston-super-Mare, we have also developed
5,800 sq ft of first phase office space

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive’s Review

Commercial
land and
development
(continued)

Commercial development progress

{major projects)

* Bay Campus, Swansea Unversity
— we continue to progress well with
the defivery of the first phase of
works at the £450m Bay Campus for
Swansea University Steelworks and
superstructure are advancing and
the construction of the student
accommodation is now underway
We remam on track to welcome
new students to the scheme in
September 2015

¥

We are currently on site with over 75,000 sq ft
of design and build space at Quedgeley West
Business Park, Gloucestershure

IMAGE
REMOVED

¥ |

At Skypark, Exeter, we are neanng completion |
of 224,100 sq ft facilty for ASOC

= [ ongbndge — we completed phase

one of the Longbndge Town Centre
n August 2013 which 1s anchored
by an 80,000 sq ft Sainsbury’s and
compnses 24 shops, Beefeater

and Hungry Horse restaurants, a
Premuer Inn and the £2m Austin Park
Following the year end, we completed
the pre-let of a 150,000 sq ft Marks
& Spencer full-offer store that will
anchor the second phase of the new
Town Centre A planning application
for this second phase was submitted
in December 2013 together with an
application to build a 30,000 sq ft
specialist Construction Centre for
Bournville College

IMAGE
REMQVED

->

Public consultation for the redevelopment
of the New Covent Garden Market stes
15 progressing well and we are on track to
secure planning permission in early 2015

IMAGE
REMOVED
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¢ New Covent Garden Marke! sites —
we have Just completed the second
tranche of public consultation
and expect to submit a planning
apphcatien for this major regeneration
project dunng the first half of 2014
Under a 50/50 VINCI St Mocwen joint
venture, our plans are to consolidate
the current market, which covers a 57
acre site, into a more efficient 37 acre,
550,000 sq ft scheme The 20 acres
freed up by the new development waill
be redeveloped into a residential-led
mixed-use regeneration scheme,
providing over 2,900 homes and
115,000 sq ft of commercial
accommodation and community
faciiies This 1s a significant project
which 1s set to deliver excellent returns
once planning consent 1s granted,
which we expect in 2015

Development progress (other key sites)

* Skypark, Exeter - developed n
joint venture with Devon County
Council, mormentum Is bullding on
the redevelopment of this 110 acre
former arport complex into a magor
employment centre and business
park for Exeter and East Devon
Having completed the 30,000 sq ft
energy centre for EON in 2012, we are
now neanng compleation of a 24,100
5q ft purpose-built facility for the South
Western Ambulance Service NHS
Foundation Trust, having started on
site Inspnng 2013

+ Quedgeley West, Gloucsstershire
- there 15 currently over 125,000
sq ft of space under construction
at this Business Park This includes
Gardiner Bros & Co (Leathers) Ltd
which has agreed to purchase a
34,700 sq ft design and build unt
which 1s 1n addition to ts 30,000
sq ft headquarters also located at
Quedgeley West Engineenng firm,
Lister Petter, will be refocating from our
nearby scheme in Littlecombe, Dursley
to a 35,000 sq ft purpose-bult facility
at the Business Park Both occuprers
will move into their new premises In
spring 2014

* Dunelm Mill, Wheatley Hall Road
- we completed a 22,000 sq ft store
for Dunelm Mill on this brownfield
site The site also now compnses
a new Marston’s public house and
community sports facilittes

OUTLOOK

We anticipate the commercial property
market will continue to improve at a
steady rate throughout 2014 This will
impact positively on our pipehine of
delivery where we are gradually recening
an increased amount of enquines

The retall market will remain challenging
but the location of our portfolio provides
us with firm foundations to continue to
secure tenants at competitive rents and
create new retall environments

Developable acres Nov 2013 MNov 2012
Retail 337 342
Industnal and commercial 2,997 2,859
Residential 1,893 1,804
Use not yet specified 716 796
Total 5,043 5,801
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive’s Review

Residential

There is a tangible increase
In actwvity in the residential
market place. Momentum
continues to gather pace

in London and the Scuth
East with confidence now
spreading into the regions.

Pictured St Modwen Homes' award-
winning Locking Parklands development,
Weston-super-Mare

£482m

value of residential portfolio

21,900+

plots with planning status

IMAGE +
REMOVED The land bank
See page 30
IMAGE >
REMCVED Asset management
See page 31
IMAGE -
REMOVED Delvery
See page 32
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive’s Review

Residential
(continued)

1%

of residential portfolio with planning

£22m

value added to residential land

STRATEGY

Our land strategy continues to be to ‘buy
wholesale’ and *sell retal’ Essentially,
we buy land, predominantly brownfield,
at a low cost and maximise its value
over time through intensive asset
management, remediation and planning
We then realise that value through one of
the following three routes to market

« residential land sales
* St Modwen Homes

+ Persimmon joint venture

MARKET COMMENTARY

Residential output has nisen

significantly over the last 12 months,
with many housebuilders, including

St Modwen Homes and Persimmon,
reporting a healthy increase i sales
Improving consumer sentiment,
supportive Government schemes such
as ‘Help to Buy' and an increasingly
stable economy have all contributed to a
more posiiive outlook for the residential
market as a whole These aspects are
playing a central role in boosting the
regions while London and the South East
continue to perform strongly
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RESIDENTIAL LAND

We remain successful in our ability to
secure residential-led planning consents
across our land bank, regardless of the
continued challenges with the planning
regime As aresutt, 81% of our portfolio
(over 21,800 plots) has erther planning
permissions or allocations within

local plans

In line with our business model, we
continue to top up our land bank with
future residential-led oppaortunities

to ensure that we are constantly

In a position to create value In the
last 12 months we have increased
our land bank to over 27,000 plots
Recent highlights include

= Ciay Cross, Derbyshire —a 204 acre
brownfield site acquired in September
2013 It already benefits from outine
planning consent for the creation of
a high-quality mixed-use regional
regeneration scheme that includes
up to 600 homes It 1s designated as
a key development area within the
district of North East Derbyshire

¢ Fastwood, Nottinghamshire - 17
acres acquired in November 2013
Currently compnising circa 280,000
sq ft of unoccupied bulldings, this site
will be redeveloped to create a new,
residential-led, mixed-use community

As the market continues to improve,
competition from the major national
housebulders for land pnmed for
residential development is Intensifying
This translates into greater land values
and sales achieved above book

value Throughout the year, we have
expenienced growing demand for our
land across the country as housebuilders
replenish therr stocks to meet increasing
demand As a result, in the period, we
have sold or committed for sale 57 acres
of land, totalling £58m



Significant residential fand transactions

* RAF Mit Hill — the sate of seven
acres to Galliford Try for £25 5m and
contracts exchanged on circa three
acres with Cala Homes for £13m

= Rugby - the sale of 10 acres to Taylor
Wimpey for £6 7m

* Taunton —the sale of 4 7 acres to
Dawvid Wilsen Homes for £4 2m and
6 1 acres to Taylor Wimpey for £6 5m

Planning consents achieved

* Branston, Burton upon Trent —for
660 homes and new employment
space on this 280 acre site, nclugding
manufacturing, storage and
distnbution units

Pirelli, Burton upon Trent = for 289
homes, a hotel, restaurants, public
house, offices and commercial units
on disused parts of the Pirell Factory

Edison Place, Rugby — for 175
haomes on part of this 50 acre site of
which 32 acres are earmarked for
residential development

* Hartshill, Stoke-on-Trent - for 111
homes, along with a restaurant,
public house and a parade of shops
on this 11 acre site owned by
Dyson Industnes

Applications submitted

» (ttoxeter, Staffordshire - for 700
homes, employment space, new
school, sports and recreatronal
facilities, a local retail centre and the
provision of open green space

* Ellesmere Port, Cheshire — for 350
homes, open public space, footpath
and cycle links on this 28 acre srte

Wigan Enterprise Park, Manchester
- for 325 homes as part of the
redevelopment of the oldest parts
of this commercial site

Future opportunities

s New Covent Garden Market — over
2,900 apartments to be delivered
as part of this major regeneration
project situated in the Ning Elms area
of London, for which we anticipate
achieving a planning consent in 2015

Faverdale Garden Village, Darlington
— a scheme of 600 homes plus open
space and improvement of bus, cycle
and walking links

* Hitton, South Derbyshire - a new
mixed-use development at this former
MoD site which currently compnses
a mix of Industnal and open storage
to provide 485 homes, a new primary
school and employment opportunities

¥

Over 2,900 apartments will be delivered
as part of the redevelopment of the 57
acre New Covent Garden Market site in
Nine Eims, London

IMAGE
REMOVED

¥

Persimman started on site with 284 homes at

Meon Vale, Long Marston, Warwickshire, one

of the eight sites being delivered as part of the
Jomnt venture

IMAGE
REMOVED

¥

St Modwen Homes 1s progressing well with
its first phase development of 94 homes at
Littlecombe, Dursley

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Chief Executive’s Review

Residential
(continued)

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT

In line with the iImproving market place
over the last 12 months, residential
development and sales have gathered
pace, resutting in an overalt profit
increased by 33% to £8m (2012 £6m)
which provides an excellent platform
from which to grow this area of the
business further

St Modwen Homes

In its second full year of bullding,

St Modwen Homes has continued to
grow fromits base at Longbridge and it
has opened a second office in Bristol to
support the delivery of current and future
St Medwen Homes' sites across the
South West and South Wales

At present, St Modwen Homes 1s on
site with eight schemes at vanous
stages of delivery across the country
and totalling around 1,000 new homes
As we continue to build the brand,

St Modwen Homes will continue to
focus on delivenng around 200 to 300
units per year

St Modwen Homes benefits from our
extensive land bank providing it with a
competitive advantage tn terms of being
able to use our considerable expertise
in planning and select sites that are
best suited to the brand In turn, it can
focus on providing a higher quality and
bespoke product Future opportunities
currently nclude two schemes in

South Wales comprising a total of 460
homes and an initial phase of a 660
home development in Bransten, Burton
upon Trent
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Persimmaon joint venture

Qur joint venture with Persimmon,
established in 2010, continues to
perform well and we are now building

or sefing on ali eight sites that were
planned under the agreement This will
see over 2,300 residential plots delivered
by 2017 Scheme highlights include

* RAF Uxbridge, London - delivery of
the first 453 homes Is progressing well
as part of this 110 acre mixed-use
scheme which has planning for 1,340
homes, 200,000 sq ft of commercial
office and retal development, a new
pnmary school, theatre, community
facilites, hotel and a 40 acre
public park

* Meon Vale, Long Marston,
Warwickshure — Persimmon started
on site with 284 homes this year
at this former MoD site which
18 being transformed into a
mixed-use community

* Coed Darcy, South Wales -
Persimmon has experienced excellent
sales rates for its scheme of 300
homes which forms part of a broader
1,063 acre regeneration project that 1s
transforming this former BP ol refinery
into a new sustainable community of
4,000 homes, with 440,000 sq ft of
commercial accommodation

RESIDENTIAL LAND BANK £m

CHART
REMOVED

I Under management — Regions

Il Under management — London and SE
M Persimmon joint venture

W St Modwen Homes

M Exchanged for sale




Residential development sales

Albeit impacted by delayed site starts
dunng the first six months of the year
due to continued challenges with the
planning system, sales rates achieved
for the entire year have heen steady

In the financial year we have achieved
365 house sale completions (2012 259)
compnsing 126 for St Modwen Homes
(2012 158) and 239 for the Persimmon
joint venture (2012 101)

Residential land bank at 30" November 2013

OUTLOOK

As demand from house buyers continues
to improve and housebuilders continue
to seek attractive land to replenish ther
stocks, we expect greater levels of
actvity in the residential market but at

a stable pace Momentum 1s already
starting to buitd in the regions and this 1s
expected to continue throughout 2014
whilst activity in London and the South
East will remain considerably more
buoyant With our sites now pnimed

for residential development, we expect
to take advantage of the increased
appetite for residential land and are in a
goed position to exploit this throughout
2014 Mirroring this upturn, we expect
St Modwen Homes and the Persimmon
joint venture to continue to grow dunng
2014, both in terms of profit delivery and
sales volumes

November 2013 Novermnber 2012

Acres Units Acres Units

With planning recognition allocated within the
local plan or simlar

Resolution to grant
Qutline permission

Detailed permission

238 3,669 178 3396
105 1,470 140 1,942
892 14,191 784 13,175
190 2,679 168 2,337

No planning recognition

1,425 21,909 1281 20,850
468 514 523 5694

Total residential land

1,893 27,023 1,804 26544

Residentia) development as at 30" November 2013

St Modwen  Perstmmon
Homes joint venture

Actve and

complated Actve  TOTAL
Numnber of sites 8 8 16
Units 1,236 2323 3,559
Untis completed 299 340 639
Land revenue received (Em) 7 L1 45
Future land revenue (estimate £m) 26 62 88
Potential St Modwen share of future
development profits £m 29 45 74
Total 55 107 162
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Strategic Report
Chief Executive's Review

Income
producing
properties

The backbone of our
long-term business,

our income producing
properties ensure we
extract the maximum value
from our land bank in the
short-term by working hard
those assets that generate
a steady income stream
pnor to development.

Pictured The five megawatt Solar Park at
Baglan Bay

514m

value of income producing properties

1,700+

tenants
IMAGE 9
REMOVED The land bank
See page 36
IMAGE ->
REMOVED Asset management
See page 37
IMAGE ->
REMQVED Recumng ncome
See page 37
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Income
producing
properties
(continued)

¥

The Trentham Estate generated £1 25m of

income dunng the penod and welcomed over

425,000 visitors
IMAGE
REMOVED
STRATEGY We currently manage a diverse base

Qur income preducing assets now
make up 45% of our property portiolio
Regeneration and development 1s

a lohg-term business producing
significant future value and we extract
the maximum value frorm our land
bank n the short-term by working hard
those assets that generate a steady
income stream prior to development
Furthermore, we employ locally-based
asset management teams to

manage these assets as efficiently as
possible and typically offer affordable
rents on relatively short tenancies,
ensuring that voids remain at their
lowest possible level as wa work
towards redevelopment

Similarly, once a site s developed, we
wili retain it for income until we feel we
can no longer add any further value, at
which point we will dispese of the asset
and reinvest the capital raised back into
the business

Portfolio yield analysis

of aver 1,700 occupiers that cover a
wide vanety of sectors with a broad
range of requirements The diversity

of our tenant base mitigates our nsk
aganst any administrations and specific
sector challenges

PERFORMANCE

At the year end our Income producing
properties were valued at £514m

(2012 £562m) and represent the largest
tranche of our portfolo Providing further
evidence of the gradual recovery of the
commercial property market and the
strength of our tenant portfolio, we have
expenenced very few administrations
dunng the year and occupancy levels
remain steady at 88% (2012 88%)

We have managed the churn in our
portfolio by secunng £9 Om of new
lettings, equivalent to 20% of our gross
rent roll dunng the year (2012 £9 7m)

Equvalent Net rbat Velua £m
Mov2013  Nov2012  Nov2013  Nov2012  Novw2013  Nov2012
Retall 92% 90% 77% 76% 201 240
Office 9.7% 9 4% 70% 70% 59 61
Industnal 9 2% 92% 8 0% 79% 254 261
Portfolio 9 2% 8 2% 7 8% 7 7% 514 562
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Hghlights include

Income

» Heartlands Park, Washwood Heath
- this 55 acre business park IS now
approaching 100% occupancy
following a letting in Augusst 2013 to
Network Rall on a five year lease for
38,000 sq ft of warehouse and office
accommodation This latest letting
brings the rental income of the site to
£1 8m per annum

The Trentham Estate, Stoke-on-Trent

- attracted over 425,000 wisitors in

the penod (2012 403,954), and this
725 acre leisure destination generated
£1 23m of operational Income

(2012 £1 0m), with the shopping village
rematning 100% occupied

Solar Park, Baglan Bay, South Wales

- we have now completed work to

the Solar Park at Baglan Bay which
compnses 20,000 photovoltatc panels
Once live in March 2014, it will generate
five megawatts of electricrty sufficient
to supply over 1,200 homes and
provide an annual income of around
£600,000

Disposals

We disposed of several assets dunng the
year to which we could add no further
value All capital raised from the sale

of these assets has been reinvested in
the business and will be used to fund
new opportuntties

The most signdicant disposal, completed
at the end of the year, was of the Elephant
& Castle Shopping Centre We acquired
the property in 2002 for £29m and

since then, through our skitful asset
management capabilitles, have added
significant value which 15 reflected in the
£80m sale price versus a book valug

of £52 5m

Acquisttions

Ensunng that our property portfolio
remains topped up with opportunities
that provide short-term income and
long-term development potential, we
acqurred the Waterdale Shopping Centre
in Dencaster n October 2013 for £3 6m
Immediately secunng rental income

and increasing Its value to £4 Om,

we have already secured three new
lettings to local retalers and discussions
ara underway with other interested
occupiers Currently, the centre produces
a gross rent of over £900,000 During the
course of 2014 we will work on the
extensive refurbishment of the ¢centre to
provide a more modern, attractive space
for both retarlers and customers

OUTLOOK

As occupier confidence grows and
companies start to think about
expansion and diversification, we expect
this area of the busmess to continue to
provide us with a significant and secure
source of ncome that underpins our
running costs

Reflected in our market valuations,
pressure on yelds 1s easing and will
continue to do so, but at a steady pace
as this market slowly starts to improve
In ine with the gradual improvement

n the commercial property market, we
will continue to grow our development
pipeline not only from within our existing
portfolic but as new opportunities with
the potential to add value come through

Bill Oliver
Chref Executive

3™ February 2014

¥

The 125,000 sq ft phase one of Great Western
Business Park 1s now fully let and prowvides an
annual income of £0 4m

IMAGE
REMOVED

¥

The first phase of the new Town Centre
at Longbndge opened in August 2013

IMAGE
REMOVED
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Strategic Report

Financial

Review

‘Our ability to
generate strong
returns across
the cycle, driven
by the underlying
quality of the
business, is now
very apparent.’

INCOME STATEMENT

IMAGE
REMOVED

St Modwen 1s a proactive company
focused on creating long-term

value through our own efforts

We take a pragmatic approach,
making Investments to which we add
and realse value through planning,
asset management, remediation and
development over time Cur continued

success of delivery 1s a testament to this

long-term view
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£40m

property profits

+31%

trading profit increase

A core part of our business model 1s
ensunng that a major proportion of
our assets generate income pnor to

development This consists of core rental
income and other revenue deriving from
our £514m portfolio of income producing

properties, compnsing more than 100
commercial properties and making up
45% of our total portfolio These cash
streams underpin the running costs
of the business and provide firm
foundations from which we can add
value to our portfolio through planning
and asset management activities with
the am of realising profits from our
development activities

As we use a number of jont venture
arrangements, the statutory Financial
Statement disclosures do not always
provide a straightforward way of
understanding our business To enable
a better understanding, we have also
provided information including the

Group’s share of joint ventures and a full
reconciiation is provided in note 2 to the

Group Financial Statements




PROFITS

Rental and recumng income

This core part of our business continues
to perform well Even taking into account
asset sales in the year | can once again
report a marginal increase in the Group's
share of net rental income to £36 3m
(2012 £36 2m), achieved as aresult

of our successful asset management
capabiities The excess of new lettings
and rent reviews over churn and
administrations has increased to £3 8m
(2012 £2 Om) and we anticipate our

net rental iIncome remaming steady
throughout 2014 as we replace income
sold dunng the course of 2013

Occupancy levels remain stable at

88% (2012 88%) and our average
lease length has been held at 5 O years
(2012 50 years) Due to the nature of
our business, where we retain assets for
mncome prior to development, we tend to
mamntain voids at a reasonably hugh level
as we require properties to be vacant
whilst we prepare them for development
Therefore, our void levels remain in line
with cur expectations

Property profits

Wea have achieved a 37% increase

in realised property profits to £40m
(2012 £29 Om) from development

This includes significant contnbutions
from our development of the Bay
Campus for Swansea University and
the sale of the Elephant & Castle
Shopping Centre by our KPI joint
venture Both these transactions
highight the value of the St Modwen
long-term busimess mode! In particutar,
the Elephant & Castle transaction
demonstrates owr ability to add value
to our retained assets The joint venture
acquired the asset for £29m in 2002,
significantly increased the income
generated by it and then sold the asset
for £80m, representing a yield of 4 25%

Residential housing sales have
contnbuted over £8m The residential
contnbution reflects how this area of
the business has grown throughout
the year and highlights the success
we have achieved n setting up our
St Modwen Homes business and
the development of our Paraimmon
Joint venture

Overheads

Our cost base 1s driven by the
employment of skilled teams of
professionals to manage existing and
potential assets Our UK-wide land bank
allows us the flexibiity to adapt to market
demands and consequently pursue

onty those opportunities that generate
the greatest value at any tme We have
continued to expand our residential team
and this, together with the bonuses paid
for successful business delivery, means
that administrative expenses for 2013
{including the Group’s share of joint
ventures and associates) has mcreased
to £20 2m (2012 £18 6m)
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Strategic Report
Financial Review

TRADING PROFIT £m

CHART
REMOVED

ADDED VALLUE VALUATION
GAINS £m

CHART
REMOVED

Property portfolio - valuation movements tn the year

2013 2012
Value Ve
Marketvalue  added by Market value added by
movements St Modwen Tetal movements St Modwen Total
Residential 21 22 43 8 36 44
Commercial land 4) - 4 0] - 4
Income producing
Retail (1) 4 3 ® 7 )]
Office Q)] - N ©) Mm@
Industnal (1) 2 1 (13) 6 {7)
Total 14 28 42 (20) 48 28
PROFITS (CONTINUED) PROPERTY VALUATION

Finance costs and income

As we have become more active on the
development of our schemes throughout
the year, this has been reflected in a
shght increase, after allowing for the
equity placing, i net debt and higher
average borrowing levels for the penod
An increased proportion of the debt

15 fixed cost, either on our retail bond
or our hedging arrangements The full
year of fixed cost on the retall bond has
resutted in a slight increase in finance
costs in the penod

Trading profit

Overall trading profit has therefore
mcreased agamn this year by 31% to
£33 3m (2012 £25 5my}, an extremely
positive result We will continue to
focus on generating value across our
land bank and ensunng that our rentat
income and recumng other income
underpins the running costs of the
business Supported by our firm financial
footing, with key projects within our
development pipeline (such as the

Bay Campus, Swansea University and
the Marks & Spencer development

at Longbndae), along with our other
major schemes, we expect to be in a
good position to continue to take on an
increase in workload as the economic
environment Improves
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Property portfolio

Our property portfolio 1s worth £1 1bn
(2012 £1 1bn} Durng the penod, we
have continued to actively manage

our portfolic, spending £177m on
acquisitions and capital expenditure and
realising £172m from asset disposals
As the UK economy becomes more
active, we expect these numbers to
remain significant

Movements in the year

Property valuation movements are
made up of two main elements those
resuiting from actions that we undertake
specifically to add value to our assets,
and those resulting from changes in the
overall property market Jones Lang
LaSalle LLP provides this valuation spiit
forus



£14m

market-driven valuation increase

LTV (ON BALANCE SHEET) %

CHART
REMOVED

LTV (INCLUDING JV DEBT) %

CHART
REMOVED

Market-driven valuation movements

in ine with market movements, yields
over the last 12 months have been
broadly steady with value reductions
in the first half of the year offset by
improvements in the second half
valuations of our income producing
portfolio There has been a matenal
increase In the value of our residential
portfolio, notably in the South East
(atthough residential land 18 Increasing
In v&lue across England and Wales), of
£21m (2012 £8m) which has resuited
in an overall net market-dnven increase
in the value of our property portfolio of
£14m (2012 £20m decrease)

Valuation improvements as a result of
St Modwen actions

Our ability to add value to our existing
portfolic by actively managing our asset
base Is a crucial part of our business
model and this year has agann delivered
some very good resufts This success
comes from managing commercial and

residential land through planning, despite

the difficulties of this process

Based on independent valuations from
Jones Lang L aSalle, we have bean
able to generate revaluation gains of
£28mn the year (2012 £48m including
a significant contnbution from RAF
Uxbndge) We expect to continue to

generate significant value improvements

given the increased activity across
our partfolio, and our expertise in
asset management

Basis of property vajuation

All our mvestment properties are
independently valued every six months
by Jones Lang LaSalle LLF, a global
real estate professional services
business Jones Lang LaSalle based

its valuations upon an open market
transaction between a willing buyer
and a willing seller at the Balance Sheet

date Therefore, no value i1s taken for any

future expectations of value increases
but discounts are applied to reflect
future uncertainties Where appropnate
we supplement our internal procedures
with an independent assessment of our
work In progress for any impairment
1Issues In accordance with accounting
standards, valuaton movements are
put through the Income Statement as
gans or losses Valuations in afl our
asset classes have been substantiated
by open market transactions dunng the
course of the year

PROFIT BEFORE At L TAX

OQur profit before all tax 1s stated before
tax onjomt venture ncome and after
movements in the market value of our
interest rate denvatives (hedges and
swaps) The valuations are based on

the financial market's forward prediction
curves for interest rates At the end of the
financal reporting penod and together
with cther finance charges, this caused
acreditof £6 7m (2012 £0 6m debit)

Profit before all tax increased
substantially by 56% to £82 2m
(2012 £52 8m), an extremely positive
result for the year
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Strategic Report
Financial Review

EQUITY NET ASSET PER SHARE p

TAXATION AND PROFITS AFTER TAX

CHART
REMOVED

EPRA NET ASSET
VALUE PER SHARE p

CHART
REMOVED

A lower level of valuation gains
attnbutable to our joint venture assets
has led to a reduced tax charge In

the year of £8 3m (2012 £10 5m)

Aiter allowing for this, we have achieved
a very strong result for the year with
profits after tax of £73 8m, a 75%
ncrease compared with 2012 (£42 3m)

BALANCE SHEET

In the first half of the year we
successfully completed an equity
placing, raising gross proceads of £49m
at a price of 245p per share which was
closely aligned with the shareholders’
equity net asset value per share of 251p
at November 2012

The funds from the placing will be

used to exploit the potential of the
development at the New Covent Garden
Market (NCGM) sites in Nine Elms,
London The equity funds mean that

we can enter discussions with potential
partners for NCGM knowing that we
have sufficient resources to deliver our
other major projects

The assets and liabilities of the NCGM
contract will only be recognised on
our Balance Sheet once detalled
planning consent 1s achieved and the
contract becomes fully uncendrional
Our expectation remains that this will
happen during our 2015 financial year
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Net assets

At the year end, the shareholders’
equity value of net assets was £614m
or 279p per share This represents an
11% ncrease over the year (2012 251p
per share) In addition to this ncrease
dividends of £8 2m (3 75p per share)
were paid during 2013 (2012 £6 8m or
3 41p per share)

EPRA net asset value

In line with iIndustry best practice we
also report net assets per share using
the EPRA (European Public Real Estate
Association) methodclogy* Our diluted
EPRA net asset value rose 10% to 298p
from 272p per share A full reconciliation
of our net assets 1s provided in note 2 to
the Group Financial Staterments

PENSION SCHEME

Our defined benefit pension scheme
continues to be fully funded on an I1IAS19
basis With the scheme being closed

to new entrants and closed to future
accrual we do not cumrently expect any
significant material future increase In
scheme contributions

* Note as a development business many of the
EPRA metncs are mappropnate as they are geared
to property investment



CORPORATE FACILITIES

We have ample headroom wrthin our
corporate facilities allowing us to meet
future development and funding needs
At the year end we had £478m of
facilities against drawn debt of £341m

Hedging and cost of debt

We hedge the majonty of our interest rate
nsk as we aim to have predictable costs
attached to our borrowing At the year
end we were 86% hedged aganst our
corporate debt (2012 93%) We expect
this proportion to reduce in future as
our hedging slowly drops away As any
new financing is put in place we wilt
ensure that our hedging posthons are
appropnate for our future development

Current banking faciities

Corporate funding covenants

We are operating well within the
covenants that appty to both our
corporate banking facilities and to
the retall bond These are

Bank

¢ Net assets must be greater than
£250m (actual £627m)

* Gearnng must not exceed 175%
(actual 54%)

¢ Interest cover ratio (that excludes
non-cash items such as revaluation
movements) must be greater than
125x (actual 2 9x)

Bond

* See-through loan-to-value ratio must
not exceed 75% (actual 33%)

¢ Interest cover ratio must be greater
than 1 5x (actual 3 1x)

Although the current economic
environment still has an element of
uncertainty, we have considered
avallable market information, consulted
with our advisers and applied our

own knowledge and expenence
Consequently, we believe that covenant
levels are adequate for our posstble
negative scenanos

CHART
REMOVED
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Strategic Report
Financial Review

£139m

undrawn facility headroom

£49m

raised from equity placing

Joint venture faciliies

Our two joint venture faciities are VINCI
St Modwen (VSM) and Key Property
Investments (KPI)

+ VSM Uxbnidge - our 50 50 joint
venture with VINCI PLC has grown
out of Project MODEL, whereby we
acquired and developed a portfolio
of sites in North London which were
formerly owned by the Ministry of
Defence Land receipts are rapidly
reducing the debt which was £40m
at the year end (St Modwen share

£20m) (2012 £50m, St Modwen share

£25m) We expect this debt reduction
to accelerate in 2014

We are also now working together
with VINCI In joint venture on the New

Covent Garden Market sites We are In
continual dialogue with our partners on

the appropriate ownership structures
for these joint ventures and as has

happened previously, these ownership
shares may change mowving debt on or

off Balance Sheet
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* KPl-our 50 50 joint venture with
Salhia Real Estate Company KS C
holds significant retail and commercial
assets with long-term development
potential Dunng the year the joint
venture sold the Elephant & Castle
Shopping Centre in London for £80m
This disposal, together with other
asset sales, significantly reduced the
debt in the joint venture to £29m at the
year end, with the St Modwen share
representing £14 5m (2012 £115m,
St Modwen share £57 5m)

Since the year end dwvidends paid to
shareholders have increased the debt
levels We are reviewing the financing
amangements for this joint venture

to ensure that they are appropriately
matched for our future requirements

Funding levels

We have no corporate or joint venture
faciities that require renewal before
November 2014, when our £100m
Itoyds facility matures

We have existing offers for the renewal
and extension of this and other debt
faciities and continue to consider
options to Increase the diversity and
longewity of our facilites We are well
positicned to move forward with
sufficient faciities of the nght type to
support further growth in the business




As we evaluate the vanous routes for our
major projects it right be appropnate for
us to consider funding that 1s designed
specifically for each opportunity

In the second half of the year, the
improving economy has meant that

we have invested in our business and
increased the value of our assets
Consequently, although there has beena
shight increase in equivalent on Balance
Sheet debt (£341m) (2012 £318m after
adjusting for the equity placing) our
gearing and loan-to-value ratios have
continued to fall This Is particularty
noticeable onca the significant reduction
N joint venture debt is considered with
the see-through loan-te-value ratio falling
10 33% (2012 41%)

Given the improving economic
environment we will continue to

nvest to generate future returns
Throughout the next year, on a
see-through basis, we expect both

the geanng and loan-to-value ratios

to remain broadiy consistent although
changes In joint venture structures may
affect the on Balance Sheet ratios

Principal nsks and uncertainties

The pnncipal nsks and uncertainties
which could have a matenal impact
on the Group and the comresponding
mitigating achons that are in place are
set out on pages 46 to 49

Given the progress of the business and
the increased optimism for the economy
we consider that the overall posrtion
continues to Improve

QUTLOOK

Qur abilty to generate strong returns
across the cycle, dnven by the
underlying quality of the business, Is
now very apparent Throughout the

year and against the backdrop of the
changing economic environment, we
have continued to maximise and grow
our income and we continue to Invest

in the business whilst mantaining a
prudent financial structure We also look
forward to secunng planning permission
jor the New Govent Garden Market land
which 1s not yet accounted for within
our financial resufts These factors
combined provide us with a sound
financial platform from which we can
continue to add value and drive the
business forward

Michael Dunn
Group Finance Director

3 February 2014
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Strategic Report

Principal nsks and uncertainties

How we manage our risks

Economic and
market risk

Uncertainty in the economic
and market environment
increases the nsk attached
to property valuation and
development returns

Financial risk

Qur geared financial structure
means that there are
inevitable nsks attached to the
avallability of funding and the
management of fluctuations

In our cash flows

Risk and
potential impact

Market/economic changes such as higher
interest rates, reduced dermand for land
and new properties {g g residential),
reduced availabilty of credit and declning
Investment yields restnct business
development and cause valuation falls

Faifure to identfy a ppeline of future
residential stes reduces our supply of
homes or reduced avalabiity of morigage
finance adversely impacts demand for
hormes in our residential business

Poor market inteligence {1 e falure to
anticipate market changes) leads to
selection of Inappropnate and, ultmately,
unprofitable schemes

Financial collapse of, or dispute with, a key
joint venture partrer leads to financigl loss

Avalability of funding reduces, causing
alack of lquichity that impacts bormowing
capacity and reduces the saleabilty

of assets

Unforeseen significant changes to cash
flow requirements (e g oparating cost
Increases, pension fund shortfall) kit the
abilty of the business to meet ts ongong
commitments
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Mitigation

.

Regional spread and portfolio diversity mitigates
sector or location-speciic nsks

Active portiolio management achieves a better
than market uthsation of assets

Hedging policy reduces interest rate nsk

Team of professionals with residential expenence
and expertise

Extensive land bank with a continuing stream

of planning applications

Flexible approach to mortgage financing

(eg shared equity schemes)

Use of JV partners with residential expertise

leg Persimmon)

Regional offices in touch with ther local market
Dedicated central resource supportng regional teams
Fexible and innovatve approach to acquistions
and schemes n order to adapt to market changes
Projects, acquistions and disposals are reviewed
fand financially appraised) within clearty defined
authonty Imits

Monthly review of performance to identily if senior
management Intervention 1S required
Rexible but legally secure contracts with partners

Recurnng income from rents provides funding for
alarge percentage of overhead and interest costs
Strong relationships with key banks

Financial headroom mantaned to

provide flexibility

Aternative sources of funding (e g retall bond n
2012, equity placing in 2013)

Weighted average exprry of facilities 15 2 5 years at
30" November 2013

Regular and detaled cash flow forecasting
enables monitonng of performance and
management of future cash flows




Commentary

We choose to cperate only In the UK, wiich is subect to relatively low nsk and low retums froma
stable and mature, albert cyclical, economy and property market By involvernent with all sectors of
that economy and property market, we are as dversified as possible, without ventunng overseas
Our land bank of over 5,900 acres provides us with the flexibrity to maove wath market demands and
pursue those opportunities that generate the greatest value at any one tme

Over the course of the last year, the continuing {albet mproving) soverexgn debt problems within the
Eurozone means that the overall market posthion continues to represent a high nsk

The planning environment is becorning mare difficult with an increased kkelihood of delays in the
planning process However, our scale and expertise means that we are still beng successful n this
area, atthough ndmdual schemes may suffer delay Demnand for new homes remans strong and has
been boosted by an increasa in the avallability of new mortgage finance which 1s due at least in part
to the Government's Help to Buy scheme

The excellert reputation and financial capacity of the Company has enabled us to continue to win
schemes and grow the land bank to record levels, in an improving but stit challenging market and
economy In this emvronment, with a reduced number of active competitors, we expect to be able to
continue to source attractive acquistions

Qur key partners are Persimmen PLC, VINCI PI.C and Salhia Real Estate KS C of Kuwart These
are financially strong partners with good prospects and strong balance sheets Where wea have
financially weaker partners, we are extting from these arrangements, meaning that the overall nsk has
reduced year-on-year

Our prudent approach to forward commitments, speculative development and asset disposals has
enabled us to optimise operational cash flows and offset the mpact of fluctuatng markst conditons
Furthermore, we have once again recorded a trading profit n the year, demonstrating our ability to
succeed in varying markets The success of our first retall bond {October 2012) and an equity
placing March 2013} has further diversified our debt financing profile by providing access to
unsecured funding

COur cash flow 15 closely monitored throughout the year and the year end position in ne with the
gudelines that we set at the start of the year

Key
. Risk exposure increase
§ Risk exposure reduced

B No significant change
in sk exposure

Change since 2012
Annual Report

»
»
»
4
»
»
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Strategic Report

Principal nsks and uncertanties

Construction
risk
The management of

develepments is a
complex process

Regulatory and
compliance risk

Qur work 15 undertaken In a
complex environment with
consequent comphance nsks

Human
resources and
organisational
risk

Our activihes require
highly-skiled and motvated

pecple in order to delver
cansistently and effectively

Risk and
potential impact

Inadequate due ditgence on major new
schemes leads to unforeseen exposures,
costs and labilties, which prevent effectve
delvery and result in finanaial loss

Inadequate construction delvery and
procurement leads to quality 1Issuss
and cost overruns causing customer
dissatisfacton and/or financial darmage

National Plianning Policy Framework
changes adversely mpact on our business
strategy by lmiting our abiity to secure
viable permissions and/or by removing

our competitve advantage

Fatlure to manage long-term environmental
1IssUes relating to brownfield and
contaminated sites leads toc a major
ermvironmental iIncident, resulting in financial
and/or reputational damage

Lack of succession planning and/or over
reliance on key people causes loss
of/fature to attract good people and/or
significant disruptionfoss of intellectual
property

HSE&E cutture leads to a maor incident
{e g senous iNury to, or death of, an
employee, clent, contractor or member
of the public) or non-comphance with
legslation, resuttrg in financial peratties
and/ecr reputational damage

Inadequate Business Continuity Planning
(BCP) for operations and 1T, leading to
significant business disruption, financialAP
loss and/or reputational damage in the
event of an accident, act of temonsm or
cyber cnme
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Mitigation

Use and close supervision of a preferred

supply chain of high-qualty frusted suppliers

and professionals

Projects, acquistions and disposals are reviewed
and financally appraised n detal, with Clearty
defined authonty himits

Contractual habilty clearty defined

Strong internal construction management team
Gearly defined formal tender process that
evaluates qualtative and quanttative factors
rld assessment

Use and close supervision of a preferred

supply chan of high-qualty trusted suppliers
and professionals

Use of high-quality professional adwisers

Active Involvement in public consultation
Constant montonng of all aspects of the planning
process by expenanced In-house experts
Contacts in place with central and

local government

Use of high-quality external adwvisors

Haghly qualfied and expenenced internal staff
Risk assessments conducted as part of due
digence process

Full warranties from professional consultants and
remedation contractors

Defined business processes to proactvely
manage Issues

Annual Independent audt of environmental nsk
Reputation managed by a core team of skilled
PR professicnals

Succession planning monitored at Board level
and below

Targeted recrutment with competitive,
performance-dnven remuneration packages

Performance indicators are reviewed at
Board level

Use of high-qualty external HS&E advisers
Defined business processes to proactvely
manage Issues

Bocumented BCP and cnsis management plans
covenng IT and cperations

Dedicated IT team monitors performance of all
nformation systems




Commentary

Our programme for the year has been delivered successfully and we have conducted robust
processes In selecting contractors for future projects

Dunng the year, all our developments have been completed on time and within budget

Our contractor selection processes are ngorous, whist the improving UK economy has reduced
the nsk overall, we continue to favour financially stable and robust contractors, and we are mindful
of contractors’ cash flows becoming strefched In a nsing market

QOur datly exposure to all aspects of the planning process, and internal procedures for spreading

best practce, ensure we remain abreast of most developments  Furthermore, we continue our
efforts 0 nfluence public policy debate Although the current fluctuations n proposed planning
legislation mean that future rules are uncertain, with an increased proportion of planning applications
going to appeal, our expertise should enable us to prosper relative to our competitors, imrespective of
the planning ervronrment

We are wiltng 1o accept a degree of environmental nsk, enabling higher returns to be made
The inherent nsks are passed on or minmised where possible but cannot be eliminated, although
the residual nsks have been acceptably low i1 recent years

We continue to offer attractive and competrive remuneration packages as 15 evidencad by the lack
of vacancies and chum We continue to adapt our recrutment strategy to source the skills that wil
support the Company's long-term business objectves

Heatth and safety continues to be a high prnomty The assessment of envronmental costs

{and the subsequent optimising of remediation solutions} is an integral part of our acquisiton and
post-acquistion process We seek to minmise or pass on any such environmental nsks, and believe
that the residual nsk remains acceptably low In other social and ethical areas, our operations are
underpinned by a simple but rgorous set of operating commikments

While the business does not internally refy on IT as a business process for s success, our refance
on these areas 13 ncreasing Consaquently, we are increasmg our preventative secunty and the
robustness of our reactive procedures in order to address this
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Key
‘ Risk exposure increase
§ Risk exposure reduced

B No signficant changs
N nsk exposure

Change since 2012
Annual Report

$ 9 9 9 3 B
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Strategic Report

Corporate
Social
Responsibility

Acquinng brownfield sites
and breathing new Iife into
areas that need 1t the most
Is at the heart of who we are
and what we do.

Pictured The Trentham Estate celebrates
10 years of being open to the public n 2014

90%-+

of our developable portfaho with
spectfied use 1s brownfield
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Strategic Report
Corporate social responsibility

8%

of remediated matenals are
recycled or reused

We are committed to improving the built
environment through our regeneration
projects, all of which seek to transform
run-down areas and disused sites

into mspirational and thriving business
and residential communities !n doing
s0, we aim to ensure that community,
environmental and social considerations
are integrated within our day-to-day
working practices and at all stages

of the project lifecycle

SUSTAINABILITY

The principles of sustainable
development are integral to our
business and they form the basis

of our environmental policy which
demonstrates our commitment to
improving the envircnment To this am
we seek to

* be continually mindful of the impact
of our developments on the local and
wider environments,

protect and enhance the environment,
transforming run-down areas and
disused srtes by developing them to
the highest possible standards,

continue to engage regularty with
statutory and non-statutory bodies,
with the local community and through
the planning and environmental
regulatory framework,

* conserve energy, reduce consumption
of raw materals and minimise waste
production, and

adopt practices which lead to
improvements in environmental
performance, for example
sustainable design of sites and
buildings and the use of sustainable
construction techniques

Recycling/ remediation on site

As part of this commitment, we seek
to ensure the following principles are
adhered to across the Company

« ensure all bulldings cccupied by
the Group are managed efficiently
by its facilities team and the
bulding surveyor,

» encourage all employeas to
conserve energy

* promote recycling by negotiating
contracts and prowding faciiities to 1
enable employees to recycle office
waste and other used products,

» contro! business travel and provide
opportunities for employees to travel
to work In various ways, such as
providing cycle racks and showers,

o consult with the local community
on our proposed schemes,

* ensure that all fluorescent ight
tubes are disposed of in a safe
manner, compliant with appropnate
regulatrons, and

* ensure that we employ
considerate constructors

We also pay particular attention to
recychng matenals on site, using
sustainable matenals, conserving
energy, reducing our consumption
of raw matenals and minimising
waste production

The results below demonstrate our
commitment to reusing and recycling
materials on site and in all Instances we
have met or over-achieved our targets
for the year The slight decline in the
percentage of remediated matenals
reused or recycled on site is attnbutable
to us having to dispose of some matenal
to landfill because they were unfit for
recycling or reuse elsewhere

2013 2012 201
Taget achioved achead echieved

Percentage of remediated matenals
reused or recycled

Percentage of demolition products
reclaimed or retained on site or recycled
Percentage of construchion waste reused
or recycled

98% 98% 95% 99%

80% 93% 93% 96%
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GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

We are conscious of our carbon footprint
and below have reperted emissions for
those sources we deem ourselves to be
directly responsible

Total purchased gas and electnerty

* This represents the gas and electncity
which has been consumed at
properties under our operational
control - Head Office, certan regional
offices, including St Modwen Homes'
offices, sales offices occupied by
St Modwen Homes and vacant space

Petrol and diesel

* Petrol and diesel from all company
cars In use across the Group
Cars available to certain employees
as part of the Company's car scheme
are restncted to CO, emissions of
130 g/km or less

Organisation boundary and responsibility
We do not have responsibility for
emisston sources that are beyond the
boundary of our operational control
Consequently, not all gas and electnicrty
purchased 1s included within Scope

1 and 2 as our tenants’ consumption

1s net under our operational controf
Furthermore, the data excludes
consumption from those sites which fall
within the jomt venture with Persimmon
as It 1s our joint venture partner that
controls the procurement of utiibies to
these sites For all other joint ventures,
100% of the data 1s included in our
emussions table as we are wholly
responsible for the emissions sources

Intensity ratio

o, jlesX
CO;, emssong’  emssiony
amissions fultrme  Em property
Greenhouse Gas Emissions (tonnes) employees!
Scope 1
Total purchased gas 225
Petrol and diesel 495
TOTAL SCOPE 1 720 28 06
Scope 2
Total purchased electncity 961
TOTAL SCOPE 2 961 38 08
TOTAL SCOPE 1 and 2 1,681 66 14

1 Equwvalent GOz emissions per full-tme employee

2 Equrvalent COz per £m of property portfolic held by the Company

Reporting year

Our reporting year for greenhouse gas
emissions Is the same as our financial
reporting year, being 1% December 2012
to 30" November 2013

Methodology

We have reported on all of the emussion
sources required under the Companies
Act 2006 (Strategic Report and Directors’
Reports) Regulations 2013 To calculate
emissions from gas and electnicity
consumption, we have used the main
requirements of the GHG Protocol
Standard (revised edition) and emission
factors from UK Gevermment's GHG
Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting 2014

To measure emissions from company
cars, we have based this on the
‘Environmental Reporting Guidelines
Including mandatory greenhouse gas
emissions reporting guidance’ (June
2013) 1ssued by the Department for
Environment, Food and Rural Affars
(DEFRA} We have also utiised DEFRA's
2013 conversion factors within our
reporting methodology

This I1s the first year for which we have
reported our greenhouse gas emissions
and this will form the baseline data for
subsequent Annual Reports As part

of our ongoing commitment to reduce
our carbon footprint, we will continually
endeavour to improve on the way we
capture data for future reports
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Strategic Report
Corporate social responsibility

EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

Qur employees are instrumental to our
business success and we respect and

value the individuality and diversity that
each one brings

The Company adheres to a clear equality
policy which sets out individuals’ nghts
and obligations as defined by the
Equality Act 2010 This policy covers

the responsibilities and approach we
have to our employees and our duty

to avoid discnmination in alf aspects

of recruitment and employment

A breakdown by gender of the number
of persons who were directors of the
Company, senior managers and other
employees {both full and part time) as
at 30™ November 2013 1s set out here

In considering appointments to the
Board and to senior executive positions,
it 1s our policy to evaluate the skills,
knowledge and expenence required

by a particular role with due regard for
the benefit of diversity and to make an
appontment accordingly

54 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financal Statements 2013

BOARD DIVERSITY

CHART
REMOVED

B Make (78%)
Il Female (22%}

SENIOR MANAGER DIVERSITY

CHART
REMOVED

B Mals (8755)
M Female (13%)

ALL EMPLOYEE DIVERSITY

CHART
REMOVED

B Malo (53%)
M Female (47%)




TRAINING AND DEVELOPMENT

The motvation of our employees 1s
impartant to us as t mamntans a good
level of staff retention which 1s key for
ensunng stabilty across the business
and 1n turn, ensures our long-term
projects are managed effectively In the
penod, 82% of management had served
over three years of service (2012 78%)

Dunng 2013 we improved our appraisal
system which 1s designed to assist
employees in developing their careers,
identify and provide appropnate traiming
and support the Company's succession
planning objectives

Senior management also partrcipated in
a Leadership Development Programme
dunng the year The programme
comprised a senes of mdividual
workshops that were designed to
enhance effective business skills and
entrepreneunal thinking Over the next
12 months, the programme will be rolled
out at an appropnate level to all other
professional staff and tatlored to therr
indiidual needs

HUMAN RIGHTS

Whilst we do not have a specific human
nghts policy at present, we do have
palicies that adhere to internationally
proclaimed human rights principles

We will give careful consideration to
whether a specific human nights palicy 1s
needed In the future over and above our
existing policies

HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Company gives high pricnty to
safeguarding the health and safety of the
public and its employees by pursuing a
policy which ensures that

* 1ts business 1s conducted in
accordance with standards that are
in comphance with relevant statutory
provisions for health and safety
of staff and any other persons on
Company premises,

a safe and healthy working
envircnment 1s established
and maintained at all of the
Company's locations,

* managers at all levels regard health
and safety matters as a pnme
management responsibility,

sufficient financial resources are
provided to ensure that policies can
be implemented effectively,

good standards of tramning and
instruction in matters of heatth and
salety are provided and maintained
at all levels of employment,

* nsk assessments are camed out where
appropriate, and

a surtable advisory senvice In matters
of health and safety i1s prowided
and mantaned

The Company’s health and safety
performance continues to be very good,
with no enforcement notices 1ssued, no
prosecutions for breaches of health and
safety, and no fataliies
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CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

Affiiated to the Government’s

Landiil Tax Credt Scheme and

regulated by ENTRUST, the

St Modwen Environmental Trust seeks
to support projects where alternative
funding 15 unlikely to be available,
targeting not-for-profit orgamsations
such as community groups and chanties

Establshed in 2008, the Trust has funded
over £250,000 of community projects
and in 2013, it reached the end of its
Ifecycle We are now working to renew
our strategy for chantable support which
will be aigned with our business strategy
and have both local and national focus

APPROVAL OF STRATEGIC REFORT

The Strategic Report for the year ended
30" November 2013, which 1s set out
from this annual report to page 55, has
been approved by the Board and was
signed on its behalf by

Bill Olver
Chief Executive

37 February 2014
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Corporate Governance

The Board

IMAGE
REMOVED

BILL. SHANNON

Non-executive Charrman

Appointed to the Board as non-executive
director and Chaimman Designate in November
2010 and became non-executve Chaman in
March 2011

Commritee membership
Chairs the Nomination Committee and is a
member of the Remuneration Committee

BExgpenence

A 30 year career at Whitbread pic which
culminated in his appontment as a man Board
director for 10 years until his retirement in 2004
Former Charman of AEGON UK pic {previously
Scottish Equitable), Gaucho Gnll Holdings Ltd
and Pizza Hut (UK) Ltd, and former
non-executive director of Tha Rank Group pic,
Barratt Developments pic and Matalan pic
Currently a non-executive director of Johnson
Service Group plc and Trustee of the Royal
Voluntary Service A qualfied Chartered
Accountant {(Scotland)

IMAGE
REMOVED

BILL OLIVER

Chief Executve
Appointed to the Board in January 2000

Commitiee membership
None

Expenence

Has over 30 years” expenence In the property
industry with ressdential and commercial
development companies such as Alfred
McAlpine, Barratt and The Rutland Group
Finance Director of Dwyer Estates pic from
1994 to 2000 Joned St Modwen in 2000
as Finance Director, and was subsaquently
appointed Managing Dwector in 2003 and
Chief Executive in 2004 A membar of the
adwvisory board of the Government's
Regeneration Investment Orgarisation

A qualfied Chartered Accountant

IMAGE
REMOVED

MICHAEL DUNN

Group Finance Director
Apponted to the Board n December 2010

Committee membership
None

Expenence

A 20 year career n finance, including as
Finance Drrector of both Prvate Finance and
Building at Canllion plc Joned St Modwen in
2010 from May Gumey Integrated Services pic
where he spent five years as Group Finance
Drector A non-executve director of
Metropoitan Housing Association and

a qualfied Chartered Accountant
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IMAGE
REMOVED

STEVE BURKE

Construction Director
Appanted to the Board in November 2006

Committee membership
None

Expenence

Joined St Moedwenin 1995 as a Contracts
Surveyor after a number of years’ construction
expenance IN senior roles with national
contracting companies including Balfour
Beatty and Clarke Construgtion

Appointed Construction Director in 1998

and ned the Board as a director in 2006

IMAGE
REMOVED

RICHARD MULLY

Senior Independent Director

Appointed to the Board in September 2013
and became Sentor Independant Director in
December 2013

Committee membership
Member of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomnation Committees

Expenence

A 30 year career in investment banking and real
estate private equity nvesting, nduding as
co-founder and managing partner of Grove
International Partners LLP fformerty Soros Real
Estate Partners LLC) Cumently Senwor
Independant Dwector of Hansteen Holdings pic
and ISG ple, non-executive diractor of Aberdeen
Asset Management ple and Supervisory Board
member of Alstna Office REMT-AG




IMAGE
REMOVED

KAY CHALDECOTT

Independent non-executive director
Appainted to the Board in October 2012

Committee membership
Member of the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committees

Expenence

Joined Capxtal Shopping Centres Group plc
{now Intu Properties plc) on graduating and held
a number of servor management PoOsItons,
including Managing Director, dunng a career
spanning 27 years Also served as a man
Board director from 2005 untll ieaving the Group
n 2011 Curmrently a non-executve director of
NewRrver Retal Limited A member of the Royal
Instrtution of Chartered Surveyors

IMAGE
REMOVED

JOHN SALMON

Independent non-executive drector
Appointed to the Board n October 2005
Intenm Senkr Independent Director from
March 2013 to Novernber 2013

Commidtee membership
Charrs the Audit Committee and 15 a member of
the Remuneration and Nomnation Comimittees

Expenence

Admitted to partnershup of Pnce Waterhouse
n 1576 and was a senor client partner at
PrcewaterhouseCoopers LLP with lead
responsiility for a range of major isted
companies untll his retrement in 2005

A former member and Deputy Chamman of
PwC's Supervisory Board and former Trustee
and Council Member of the Batish Heart
Foundation A qualified Chartered Accountant

IMAGE
REMOVED

SIMON CLARKE

Non-executive director
Appointed 10 the Board in October 2004

Committee membership
None

Expenence

Former Deputy Chaiman of Northern Racing
pic and director and Vice-Charman of The
Racecoursa Association Lid Curmently
Charman of Dunstall Holdings Ltd The son
of Sir Stanley Clarke, the founder and former
Charman of St Modwen, and represents the
nterests of the Clarke and Leavesley famiies,
the Company’s largest shareholders, on

the Board
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LESLEY JAMES, CBE

Independent non-executive director
Apporied to the Board in October 2009

Committee membership

Chars the Remuneration Committes
and 1s amember of the Audtt and
Nommnation Committees

Expenence

HR Director for Tesco phc from 1985 to 1999
and a main Board director from 1994

Former non-executive director for a number
of companies ncluding Care UK plc, Alpha
Aports Group pic, Inspicio ple, Liberty
Intemational pic and the West Bromwach
Bunlding Society Former Trustee of the chanty
1 CAN Cumrently a non-executve director of
Anchor Trust A Companion of the Chartered
instrtute of Personnel and Development

IMAGE
REMOVED

TANYASTOTE

Company Secretary

Jotned St Modwen as Comparny Secretary
m March 2012 Has held senior Comparyy
Secretary roles n a number of FTSE bsted
companes Including Taylor Woodrow plc,
Traws Perlans plc and, maost recently, GKN plc
where she was Deputy Company Secretary
and Head of Secretanal Department

A Fellow of the Institute of Chartered
Secretanes and Administrators
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Corporate Governance

Regional Directors

IMAGE
REMOVED

JOHN DODDS, FRICS

Regional Director
Midlands

IMAGE
REMOVED

STEPHEN PROSSER, MRICS

Regional Director
North

IMAGE
REMOVED

GUY GUSTERSON, MBA
Residential Director

IMAGE
REMOVED

MIKE HERBERT

Regicnal Drector
The Trentham Estate

IMAGE
REMOVED

TIM SEDDON, MRICS

Regional Director
London and South East
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RUPERT JOSELAND, MRICS

Regonal Director
South West and South Wales

IMAGE
REMOVED

RUPERT WOOD, MRICS

Regional Director
Northern Home Counties




Corporate Governance Report

Chaiman's Overview

As a Board, we are responsible for the
stewardship of the business and are
comimitted to mamntaining high standards
of corporate governance across the
Group We believe good governance
enhances business performance as

well as our reputation within our market
place and across relationships with

our stakeholders

Qur approach o governance I1s

outhned in the following report, which
describes how we integrate into our
business the main principles of the five
sections of the 2012 UK Corporate
Governance Code (the Code), namely
leadership, effectiveness, accountability,
remuneratron and relations with
shareholders | am pleased to report that,
throughout the financial year ended 30%®
November 2013, the Company complied
i full with the Code

In line with the development of our
business, our governance framework

1s kept under close review in order to
ensure that shareholders’ interests are
safeguarded and to sustain the success
of the Company over the longer-

term As reported in my statement on
page 19, we have deepened further

the expertise on the Board by the
appontment of Richard Mully, who has
spent almost 30 years In iInvestment
banking, capital markets and real estate
private equity investing, as Senor
Independent Director

IMAGE
REMOVED

The performance evaluation review
undertaken at the end of the year
highlighted the positive and open culture
on the Board The results of this review
are being analysed as this report i1s
finalised, details of the actions identified
and progress towards achieving these
will be disclosed in next year's report

Cur Board Committees have also
continued to perform effectively dunng
the year The focus of the Nomination
Committee included the leadership
needs and succession planming at both
Board and senior management level,
including the recruitment of Richard
Mully The Remuneration Committee
reviewed the policy for executive director
remuneration and worked to ensure that
remuneration arrangements continue to
support the Company's strategy As part
of its remit the Audit Committee reviewed
the results of the valuation process of
the Company’s property portfolio and
considered the accounting treatment to
apply in respect of the developments at
New Covent Garden Market and the Bay
Campus for Swansea Unversity You will
find rmore on the work of the Committees
in the corporate governance sechon of
this Annual Report

At this year's AGM resolutions will be
proposed to renew the Company's
existing Saving Related Share

Option Scheme and to approve the
remuneration policy for directors which
will take effect from 1* December 2014
It 1s proposed that all votes on the
resclutions at the AGM will be taken

by way of a poll rather than a show of
hands This reflects current best practice
and ensures that voting intentions of all
shareholders, including those who are
not able to attend the AGM but who
have appointed proxies, are taken into
account The notice of meeting, which
includes the special business to be
transacted and an explanation of all the
resolutions to be considered at the AGM,
18 set out on pages 155 10 164

| hope that you find the corporate
governance section of this report
informative and | look forward to seaing
you at our AGM in March

Bill Shanncn
Charman
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

LEADERSHIP

The Board

The Board provides leadership of the
Company and direction for management
It 1s collectively respensible and
accountable to shareholders for the
long-term success of the Company

it sets the strategy, oversees
implementation and reviews
performance, ensunng that only
acceptable nsks are taken and the
approprate people and resources
are In place to deliver long-term value
to shareholders and benefits to the
wider community

To help retan control of key decisions,
the Board has put in place a formal
schedule of reserved matters that require
its approval The principal reserved
matters include

+ strategy,
* new business or geographical areas,

¢ authonisation of transactions in
excess of £10m and those which are
otherwise significant,

* nsk management and internal control,
* dividend policy,

* documents to shareholders and
the annual and half year report and
financial statements,

+ matters relating to share capital, such
as share I1ssues or buybacks, and

« the appointment/removal of directors
and the Company Secretary

The Board
{Charrman, non-executive and executive directors)

BOARD-LEVEL COMMITTEES

Audit Committee Remuneraton Committee  Nommaton Committee
{Independent (Charman and independent (Charrman and independent
non-executive diractors) non-executive directors) nen-executive directors)
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEES
Executive Team Property Board Health and Safety
{executive directors and {execulve directors, Steenng Group
Company Secretary) regional directors and (Senior management)

Company Secretary

The Board delegates responsibility for
the implementation of strategy to the
executive directors

The Executive Teamn, compnsing the
executive directors and the Company

Secretary, meets weekly to discuss key

operational matters

The Property Board meets monthly
to review performance and consider
Group-wide 1ssues and intiatves

The Health and Safety Steenng Group,
led by the Construction Director,

has oversight of the formulation

and implementation of the Group's
approach to health and safety and
monitors performance

The Board also delegates certain
responsibilities to a number of Board
Committees {(membership of these
Committees 1s set out on pages 56
and 57)
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The Audit Commuttee monitors the
integrity of the financial reporting and
audit processes, reviews external
valuations of the property portfolio

and assesses the Company’s nsk
management and internal control
systems A report on its activities dunng
the year is given on pages 68 to 73

The Remuneration Commuttee
determines and agrees with the Board
the Group’s general policy on executive
and senior management remuneration
and designs the Company's share
incentive schemes The Directors’
Remuneration Report Is set out on
pages 76 to 97

The Nomination Commitiee
recommends Board and Board
Committee appointments which
ensure an appropnate mix of skills and
expenence and reviews Succession
planning against the leadership needs
of the Group A report on its actvities
dunng the year 1s given on pages 74
and 75




Each Commuttee has wntten terms of
reference which have been approved by
the Board and are reviewed pencdically
to ensure that they continue to comply
with legal and regulatory requirements
and best practice guidance

Board roles

The Board compnses the Charman,
the executive directors, a Senior
Independent Director and four
non-executive directors

The Charman

As Chairman, Bill Shannon's role Is to
lead the Board He s responsible for
ensunng both an effechve Board and
effective contnbution from the directors
based on a culture of openness, debate
and constructive challenge

The Charrman sets the Board’s agenda
and chairs Board meetings, ensunng
that adequate time i1s available for
discussion of all agenda items,
particularly strategic 1ssues He also
ensures that directors receve accurate,
timely and clear information to enable
them to camry out therr duties effectively
The Chairman takes the lead in providing
a comprehensive, formal and tailored
induction programme for new directors
and regularty reviews and agrees

with each director any traning and
development needs He leads on Board
performance evaluation and ensures that
effective communication occurs between
the Company and its shareholders

The Chief Executve

Bilf Oliver, the Chief Executive, 1s
responstble for the day-to-cday
management of the Group’s business,
for recommending the Group's strategy
to the Board and for implementing the
strategy agreed by the Board

Role profiles setting out the dmision

of responsibilities between both the
Charrman and the Chief Executive have
been approved by the Board

Executive directors

Michael Dunn, Group Finance Director,
and Steve Burke, Construction Director,
support Bill Oliver in devising and
implementing strategy and in the
management of the business

Non-executive directors

The non-executive directors, who

have a range of complementary skills,
constructively challenge the executive
directors, help to develop the Company's
strategy and moniter delivery of the
agreed strategy within the nsk and
control framework set by the Board

With the exception of Simon Clarke, who
represents the interests of the Clarke and
Leavesley families which together hold
19 4% of the Company’s 1ssued share
capital, all non-executive directors are
deemed to be independent
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Senr independent Director

Richard Mully, as Sentor Independent
Director, 1s responsible for ensunng

that the views of each non-executive
director are grven due consideration and
to provde an additional communication
channe! for shareholders

Board actmty

The Board discharges its responsibilities
through an annual prograrmme of Board
and Commitiee meetings Typically the
Board meets formally nine times a

year, drectors’ attendance at meetings
held n2012/13 1s set out on page

63 The Board also visits sites within

the Company’s property portfolio, n
2013 the Board visited London to view
New Covent Garden Market, Leegate
Shopping Centre and Elephant & Castle
Shoppng Centre, together with Great
Homer Street in Liverpool, Lowfield Lane
n St Helens, Vulcan Urban Village in
Newton-Le-Willows and Wythenshawe
Town Centre in Manchester
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

Board agendas are set by the Chairman in consultation with the Chief Executive and
with the assistance of the Company Secretary, who maintains a 12 month rolling
programme of agenda rtems to ensure that all matters reserved to the Board and other
key 1ssues are considered at the appropnate time

Key actvities of the Board 1n 2012/2013

Standing agenda tems included

* Annual strategy review + Approval of the half year and annual
» Reports from the Chief Executive, the results, the Annual Report, the notice
Construction Director and the Group of AGM and dwdends
Finance Director « |nvestor feedback
* Reports on the activities of * HR reports

the Audit, Remuneration and
Norminaton Committees

Reports from the trustee of the
Company's pension scheme

* Financing « Directors’ conflicts of interest
» Property acquisitions and disposals » Actions ansing from Board
* Risk and nsk management performance evaluation

* Health and safety reports

Key agenda ftems also considered included
* Equity placing which raised gross * Presentations from Numis Securnities

proceeds of £49m

Entenng a development agreement
in respect of the New Covent Garden

and J P Mcrgan Cazenove, the
Company’s joint brokers, and FT)
Consulting, the Company's financial

Market sites in Nine Elms, London PR advisers

{gross development value of circa £2bn) * Review of the Group's leadership
« The Bay Campus development for development programme

Swansea Unwersity (first phase of ¢ Appointment of Richard Mully as

£450m development) non-executive director and Senior
» Disposal of the Elephant & Castle Independent Director

Shopping Centre by the Company's
KPI joint venture (sold for £80m,

Appointment of Kay Chaldecott
and John Salmon to the

representing a yield of 4 25%) Nomination Committee

* |_ease to Marks & Spencer at * Re-appointment of Bill Shannon and
Longbndge (150,000 sq ft over Simon Clarke
45 years) -

Review of fees payable to the
* Progress at the Baglan Bay Solar Park Chairman and non-executive directors

ALLOCATION OF TIME SPENT AT
BOARD MEETINGS IN 2012/13 %

CHART
REMOVED

B Strategy

B Finance and Risk
B Operations

B Govemance
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Board and Committes mestings and attendance!
Avudit Remunerabon  Nonmnabon

Dvector ManBoad  Commttee  Commitise  Committse
Chairman

Bill Shannon 99 - 4/4 3/3
Executive drreclors

Bill Olver 9/9 - - -
Steve Burke 9/9 - - -
Michael Dunn 99 - - -
Norr-executive directors

Kay Chaldecott? 9/9 373 444 2/2
Simon Clarke? 8/ - - -
Lesley James?* 8/ 3/3 4/4 3/3
Richard Mully® 33 M 2/2 1/1
John Salmon? 9/9 3/3 4/4 2/2
Former non-executive directors

David Garman® 34 11 on 0/1
Kathenne Innes Ker? 34 1M 1/1 —

1 Actual attendance/maximum number of meetings a director could attend

2 Kay Chaldecott and John Salmon were appointed to the Nomination Committee with effect from
270 March 2013

3 Simon Clarke was unable 1o attend the Board meeting in January due to a pnor business commitment
4 | esley Jarmes was unable to attend the Board meeting n May due 1o a prior personal commitment
5 Richard Mully was appointed to the Board on 1% September 2013

6 Dawid Garman retired from the Board on 27 March 2013 He was unable to attend the Remuneration
Committee meeting in January and the Nomination Comnittee and Board meetings in February due to pror
business commitments.

7 Kathenne Innes Ker retired from the Board on 27 March 2013 She was unable to attend the Board meeting
in February due to a pnor business commitment
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

EFFECTIVENESS

Board compostion

Board composition continues to develop
and was further strengthened dunng the
year with the appomtment of Richard
Mully as a non-executive director

in September 2013 and as Senior
Independent Director with effect from

1# December 2013

The Board currently compnses three
executive and six non-executive
directors, including the Chairman

With the exception of Simon Clarke,

the Board considers that all of the
non-executive directors are Independent
and 15 not aware of any relationship

or crcumstance likely to affect the
judgement of any director

Recommendations for appointments to
the Board are made by the Nomination
Committee The Committee foliows
Board-approved procedures which
provide a framework for different types
of Board appointments on which the
Committee may be expected to make
recommendations Appointments are
made on ment and against objective
cntena with due regard to diversity
{including skill, experience and gender)
Non-executive appointees are also
required to demonstrate that they have
sufficient ime to devote to the role

These procedures were used by

the Nomination Committee in
recommending to the Board the
appointment of Richard Mully as a
non-executive director The Commuttee
also engaged the services of an external
search consuttant in relation to the
appontment Further information can
be found in the Nomination Committee
Report on pages 74 and 75

Independence and a broad range of
skills, expenence, knowledge and
diversity, including gender diversity,
are represented on the Board
Biographical detalls of all directors are
given on pages 56 and 57

The Board acknowledges the
importance of diversity in all forms and
recognises the benefits that it can bning
to both the Board and throughott the
business In terms of gender diversity,
the Company currently has 22 2%
female representaticn on the Board
Further information on gender diversity
throughout the Group can be found on
page 54

At the 2014 Annual General Meeting
{AGM), and in accordance with the
Company’s Articles of Association,
shareholders will be asked to elect
Richard Mully to the Board All other
directors will seek re-election in
accordance with the provisions of
the Code

Induction and development

The Chairman, assisted by the
Company Secretary, 1s responsible
for the induction of all new directors
On joining the Board, a director
recewves a comprehensive induction
pack which includes background
information on the Company, matenal
on matters relating to the actvities

of the Board and its Committees

and governance-related information
{including the duties and responsibilities

of directors) Meetings are arranged with

the executive directors, for briefings

on strategy and performance, as well
as the external auditor and valuers
Visits to key sites within the Company’s
property portfolio are scheduled and
external training, particularly on matters

relating to membership of Board
Commuittees, I1s arranged as appropnate
Major shareholders are also offered the
opportunity to meet newly appointed
directors should they express a desirs
to do so This induction process was
apphed following the appointment of
Richard Mully In September 2013

The Company 1s committed to the
continuing development of directors

in order that they may build on

ther expertise and develop an ever
more detalled understanding of the
business and tha markets in which

St Modwen operates Traning and
development needs are discussed with
each director by the Chairman as part
of the annual indmidual performance
evaluation process and kept under
review Development activibies include
visits to sites within the Company’s
property portfolio, both as a Board and
indwidually, regular presentations to the
Board by regional directors and senior
management on key 1ssues and projects,
and meetings with Jones Lang LaSalle
LLP to review ther external property
valuation reports The attendance by
members of Board Committees on
courses relevant to aspects of therr
respective Committee specialisms

1s also encouraged

DIRECTORS' INDEPENDENCE SKILLS TENURE OF DIRECTORS AS AT
NUMBER OF DIRECTORS NUMBER OF DIRECTORS 30" NOVEMBER 2013 YEARS
CHART CHART CHART
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED

M independent B Property and Operations M Lessthan 3
8 Non-independent M Finance W 3-6

H HR m 79

M Mors than 9
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Information and support

All directors have direct access to the
advice and services of the Company
Secretary, who 1s tasked with ensuring
that Board procedures are comphed
with Iy addrtion, all directors are abile

o seek iIndependent professional adwice
in the course of their professional duties
al the Company’s expense

The Company Secretary I1s responstble
for advising the Board through the
Charman on all governance matters
She works with the Charman to ensure
good information flows between the
Board and ts Committees and between
senior management and non-executive
directors, as well as facilitating the
induction of directors and assisting
with their professional development

as required All Board Committees are
supported by the Company Secretary

BOARD GENDER SPLIT

Performance evaluation

Building on the external effectiveness
review of the Board and its Committees
conducted by Dr Tracy Long of
Boargroom Review 1n 2012, the 2013
review comprised the fallowing actvities

* ameeting of the non-executive
drrectors led by the Charman,

indmdual one-to-one discussions
between the Chairman and all
directors plus the Company Secretary,

* assessment of the Audit ang
Remuneration Committees by way of
a questionnaire, which was completed
by relevant Committee members and
meeting attendees,

consideration of progress made
aganst actions ansing from the 2012
review Details of the key achons can
be found in the table below, and

observatron of a Board meeting
and review of associated papers by
Dr Tracy Long

Outputs from these activities were
presented to the Board in December
2013, these remain under consideration
and key areas of focus will be agreed
by the Board n early 2014

The indvidual performance of the
directors was evaluated through
one-to-one discussions with the
Charman John Salmon, as Intenm
Senmor Independent Director, led the
review by the non-executive directors of
the Charman's performance, which took
into account the views of the executive
drrectors No actions were considered
necessary as a result of these
evaluations and the Chairman confirms
that the performance of each director
continues to be effective, that they
continue to demonstrate commitment
to therrespective roles, and that

therr respective skills complemerit

one another to enhance the overall
operation of the Board

PROGRESS AGAINST KEY ACTIONS FROM 2012 BOARD EVALUATION REVIEW

CHART
REMOVED

* Enhanced strategic review process to accommodate directors’ collective and

mdividual requests and desired outcornes

* Strengthening of non-executive expertise with the appointment of Richard Mully

* Non-executive director membership of all Board Committees aligned

« Further engagement on leadership development and succession planning by the

Board and the Nomination Committee

M Men
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Corporate Governance

Corporate Governance Report (continued)

ACCOUNTABILITY

Financial and business reporting

When reporting to shareholders, the
Board ams to present a far, balanced
and understandable assessment of

the Company’s position and prospects
and 1s assisted in this by the Audit
Committee This responsibility covers
the annual and half year report and
financial statements, other price sensitive
public reports, reports to regulators and
information required to be presented

by statute The assessment for the year
ended 30™ November 2013 1s provided
in the Strategic Report set out from the
inside front cover of this Report to page
55 The responsibilities of the directors in
respect of the preparation of the Annual
Report are set out on page 102 and the
Auditor's Report on pages 103 to 105
includes a statement by Deloitte about
its reporting responsibilities As set out
on page 101, the directors are of the
opinion that the Company 1s a going
concern The Board considers that the
Annual Report and Financial Statements
2013, taken as a whole, is farr, balanced
and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Company's performance,
business model and strategy

Risk management and internal control
The Board 15 ultimately responsible for
maintaiming sound nsk management and
internal control systems Its policy 1s to
have systems in place which optirise
the Company’s ability to manage nsk

in an effective and appropnate manner
These systems also include financtial
controls, controls in respect of the
financial reporting process and controls
of an operational and compliance
nature The Board’s approach to risk

management 1S supported by an
oversight structure which includes the
Audit Committee The nsk manageament
and internal control systems of

St Modwen are designed to identify,
manage and, where practicable, reduce
and mitigate the effect of the nsk of
faillure to achieve business objectives
They are not designed to eliminate such
nsk and can only provide reasonable,
not absolute, assurance against matenal
misstatement or loss

Systern of nsk management and

intemal controf

The nsk management and internal
control system includes comprehensive
maonthly reporting to the Board on all
actities through detailed portfolio
analysis, property development progress
reviews, management accounts

and a comparnison of committed
expenditure aganst available faciliies
Detailed annual budgets are reviewed
by the Board and revised forecasts

for the year are prepared on a regular
basts, including explanations for

any vanances between actual and
budgeted performance There are
clearly defined procedures for the
authonsation of capital expenditure,
purchases and sales of development
and investment properties, construction
actvity, contracts and commitments,
together with a formal schedule of
matters, ncluding major investment
and development decisions and
strategic matters, that are reserved for
Board approval Formal policies and
procedures are In place covenng all
elements of anti-bnbery and comruption,
fraud prevention, whistleblowing, health
and safety, employment and IT
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Whistieblowing

The Audit Committee oversees an
independently operated whistleblowing
facility to enable employees to raise
concerns on a confidential basis

The Audit Committee ensures that
independent investigation of any
whistleblowing incidents 1s undertaken

Assurance

The Audit Commuttee 1s responsible for
reviewing the ongoing control process
Dunng the year it considered the
effectiveness of the systems of internal
control through a detalled report from
senior management which sets out the
Group's control environment, the manner
in which key business nsks are identified,
the adequacy of information systems
and control procedures and the manner
in which any required corrective action Is
to be taken

The work of the internal audit function
is focused on the controls that mitigate
the principal nsks faced by the Group
Key internat controls are reviewed by
internal audit as part of the annual audit
plan and findings are reported to and
considered by the Audit Committee

Both the Board and the Audit Committee
review and approve the Group Risk
Register, which 1s maintained by
executive management, on an annual
basis A summary of the pnncipal nsks
which could have a matenal impact on
the Group Is given on pages 46 to 48

The Board has reviewed the
effectveness of the Group’s systems of
internal control and nsk management
during the penod covered by this Annual
Report It confirms that the processes
described above, which accord with the
guidance on internal control (the revised




Turnbull Guidance), have been in place
throughout that penod and up to the
date of approval of this report The Board
also confirms that no significant falings
or weaknesses have been identified

REMUNERATION

The prnmary objective of the Company’s
remuneration policy is to attract,

retain and motivate high-calibre sentor
executives through competitive pay
arrangements which are also in the best
interests of shareholders These include
performance-related elerments with
demanding targets in order to align the
interests of directors and shareholders
and to reward financial success
appropnately The policy s structured
s0 as to be aligned with key strategic
prionties and to be consistent with

a Board-approved level of business

risk Details of the Company’s policy

on remuneration and how this was
implemented for the year ended

30" November 2013 are set out In

the Directors’ Remuneration Report

on pages 76 to 97

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

Dialogue with Investors

The Board has a comprehensive
nvestor relations programme which
aims to provide existing and potental
investors with a means of developing
therr understanding of St Modwen
The programme 1s split between
instituttonal shareholders (which make
up the majortty of shareholders), private
shareholders and debt investors
Feedback 15 provided to the Board

to ensure that drectors develop an
understanding of the Company’s
major Investors

As part of the programme, presentations
on the half year and annual results

are given In face to face meetings

and conference calls with institutional
investors, analysts and the media
Copies of these presentations, together
with iIntenm management statements,
are published on the Company’s website
at www stmodwen co uk In 2013 the
Company held an investor day for
insttutional investors and analysts which
included presentations on the results
and the Bay Campus development

for Swansea University, together with

a tour of the New Covent Garden

Market sites in London Meetings with
principal shareholders, including the
Clarke and Leavesley families, were

also held and the Company had regular
dialogue with its key relationship banks
The Chairman is available to meet with
institutional shareholders and investor
representatives to discuss matters
relating to strategy and governance
Private shareholders are encouraged to
give feedback and communicate with the
Board through the Coempany Secretary

Annual General Meeting

The AGM provides an opportunity for all
shareholders to vote on the resolutions
proposed and to question the Board

and the Chars of the Board Committees
on matters put to the meeting

It 1s proposed that resolutions for
consideration at the 2014 AGM be voted
on by way of a poll rather than by a show
of hands as the Board believes that this
Is a more transparent method of voting
as it allows the votes of all shareholders
to be counted, including those cast by
proxy The results of the poll vote will be
published on the Company’s website,
www strmodwen co uk, after the meeting
The notice of meeting for the 2014 AGM
can be found on pages 155 to 164
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COMPLIANCE STATEMENT

This corporate governance statement,
together with the Audit Committee
Report, the Nomination Committee
Report and the Directors’ Remuneration
Report, provide a descrnption of how
the man principles of the Code have
been apphied by St Modwen in 2012/13
The Code 1s published by the Financial
Reporting Council and 1$ avallable on ts
website at www frc org uk

It is the Board's view that, throughout
the financial year ended 30 November
2013, the Company was in compliance
with the relevant provisions set out In
the Code

With the excephion of disclosures
required by Rule 7 2 6 which are set
out in the Directors’ Report on pages
98 to 102, this corporate governance
statement contains the information
requrred by Rule 7 2 of the Disclosure
and Transparency Rules of the Financial
Conduct Authorrty
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Corporate Governance

Audit Committee Report

IMAGE
REMOVED

JOHN SALMON
Chair of the Audit Committee

RCLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Gommittee's primary role 1s to assist the Board in the provision of effective governance over the appropriateness of the Group’s
financiat reporting bt is responsible for monitorng the integrty of the Financial Statements and considering whether accounting
policies adopted are approprate It also reviews the Company's internal controls and nsk management systems, and considers the
activibes, plans and effectiveness of both the Group’s internal audit function and its external auditor

The Commuttee's terms of reference are available on the Company's website at www stmodwen co uk The terms of reference were
reviewed during 2013 to ensure that they continue to reflect accurately the Committee’s remit

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Committee's composition 1s kept under review by the Nomination Committee, which 1s responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to its membership

As at the date of this report, the Committee comprises the following independent non-executive directors, all of whom served
throughout the financial year unless indicated otherwise below

Director AuditCommittes postion
John Salmon Char
Kay Chaldecott Member
Lesley James Member
Richard Mully Member {from appointment to the Board on 1% September 2013)

Simon Clarke and Bill Shannon attend meetings of the Committee as observers The secretary to the Committee 1s Tanya Stote,
Company Secretary David Garman and Katherine Innes Ker were members of the Committee until ther retirerment from the Board
on 27* March 2013

Commuittee members’ biographical details can be found on pages 56 and 57 Each member brings broad financial and business
expenence at a senior level As a former partner of PncewaterhouseCoaopers LLP, John Salmon, the Committee Charr, is considered
by the Board to have recent and relevant financial experence as required by the Code

All members of the Committee recelve an appropnate induction to ensure that they have an understanding of the pninciples of, and
recent developments In, financial reporting, key aspects of the Company’s accounting policies and judgements and internal control
arrangements, as well as the role of the internal and external auditors Ongoing traning 1s undertaken as required

68 St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Staternents 2013




ADVICE PROVIDED TO THE COMMITTEE

The Commuittee has direct access to both the Internal Audit Manager and external audit engagement partner outside formal
Committee meetings Whilst permitted to do so, no member of the Committee, nor the Committes collectively, sought outside
professional advice beyond that which was provided directly to the Committee by the external auditor and the external valuer dunng
the financial year

COMMITTEE MEETINGS

The Committee met on three occasions i the financial year ended 30" November 2013, members’ attendance at meetings is set out
in the table on page 63 Meetings were scheduled to take place around key events in the Company’s financial reporting calendar

The Group Finance Director, Group Financial Controller, Internal Audit Manager, the external audit engagement parther and other
representatives of Deloitte LLP, the Group’s external auditor, attended meetings of the Commuttee by invitation Representatives of
the Group’s external valuers, Jones Lang LaSalle LLP, also attended the meetings after the half year and full year valuation processes
to present therr reports Penodically the Committee reserves hme for discussion without invitees being present

On two occasions dunng the year the Committee held private sessions with the Internal Audit Manager and representatives from the
external auditor

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE

Matters that were formally reviewed and discussed by the Committee dunng the year ended 30" November 2013 are set out below

Financial reporting

s Monitored the financial reporting process, including the review of the half year and annual results, associated commentary and
announcements and the Annual Report Following its review, the Committee has adwised the Board that it 1s of the view that
the Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013, taken as a wholg, is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the
information necessary for shareholders to assess the Company's performance, business model and strategy

» Reviewed the continuing appropriateness of accounting policies and the use of estimates and judgements as noted in the Group
Financial Statements, and concluded that the estimates, jJudgements and assumptions used were reasonable based on the
information avallable and had been used appropriately in applying the Company's accounting policies

Considered independent property valuation reports prepared by Jones Lang LaSalle which detaled movements resulting from
activities undertaken by the Company and those ansing from changes in the property market

* Considered a gomg concern review
+ Reviewed reports prepared by the external auditor on the half year and annual results

Further nformation on the significant 1ssues that the Committee considered in relation to the Financial Statements, and how these
issues wers addressed, 15 set out on page 71
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Corporate Governance

Audit Committee Report (continued)

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE (CONTINUED)

Risk management and internal control
= Reviewed updates on corporate risk assessment management activities and a presentation on the 1ssues and nisks ansing from
cyber security

» Considered nsk registers at both Group and subsidiary level, including appropnate mtigating actions

« Considered reports on the Company’s mternal control system and the Group’s tax compltance posriion

= Reviewed actual and potential legal claims and htigation involving the Group

= Approved the introduction of a whistieblower hotline operated by an independent third-party specialist provider

Internal audtt
* Considered updates on the activiies of internal audit, including audits on the central functions of Information Technology
and Sales |_edger to provide assurance that the control environment continued to operate effectively

* Assessed status reports on the implementation of internal audit recommendations

* Considered and approved the internal audit programme of reviews of the Group’s processes and controls, including coverage
and allocation of resource

* Reviewed the Group Internal Audit Charter which sets out the objectives, accountabilty and independence, authonty,
responsibilies, scope of work and standards and performance for internal audit

* Reviewed and were satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal audit function

External auditor
» Considered and approved the external audit plan

» Rewviewed the policy in respect of the provision of non-audit services by the external auditor
* Monitored the independence of Deloitte and the effectivenass of the external audrt process.
* Considered the changes to the regulatory framework in respect of external audit tendenng

ALLOCATION OF TIME SPENT
AT AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETINGS
IN 2012/13 %

CHART
REMOVED

B Financial reporting

B Valuation

B Risk management and internal control
B External audit

B internal audit
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FINANCIAL REPORTING AND SIGNIFICANT FINANCIAL ISSUES

The Audit Committee pays particular attention to matters it considers to be important by virtue of their impact on the Group’s resullts,
or the level of complexity, judgement or estmation involved in therr application to the consolidated Financial Statements The main
areas of focus during the year are set out helow

Valuation of nvestment property

The external valuation of the portfolio 1s a key determinant of the Group’s results and Balance Sheet The Commuitee adopts

a ngorous approach to monitoring and reviewing the independent valuation process undertaken by Jones Lang LaSalle
Representatives of Jones Lang LaSalle attended meetings of the Committee at the half vear and ful year review of results to present
therr valuation reports, these included the methodology and outcomes of the valuation, market conditions and significant judgements
made, including estimation of remediation and other costs Jones Lang LaSalle aiso met with members of the Committee prior to the
January and June Commiitees to discuss the valuation In addition, Delaitte had direct access to the valuers, reviewed the valuations
and process and reported its findings to the Committee The Cornmittee discussed in detarl the rationale underlying significant
Increases to valuations, particularly those in respect of the residential portfolio, and considered these on a case-by-case basis as
appropnate The valuation was constdered as a whole to ensure that it was appropnate for inclusion in the Financial Statements

Valuation of inventory

The Group’s inventory, comprising property held for sale, property under development and land under option, 1s of significant value
All inventory is carmed at the lower of cost and net realisable value and appropriate allowances are made for remediation and other
costs to complete The Committee reviewed whether any provision was required against the camying value of inventory, erther at
Group level or within any jont venture arrangements The assessment process undertaken to detenmine net realisable value was
considered by the Committes, which included ongoing monitoring by management as well as detaled reviews at both the half and
full year External valuations were also provided by Jones Lang LaSalle for certamn sites, typically new build units not yet sold

Bay Campus, Swansea University

The Gommittee considered the accounting treatment to be applied following the signing of a developrment agreement with Swansea
University in March 2013 for the first phase of the £450m Bay Campus A detalled paper was presented by management setting out
the proposed treatment in respect of revenue streams from the delivery of the camipus, the investment sale of the income from the
student accommodation to a major investor and the residual income from the accommodation Both the Committee and Deloitte
agreed that the treatment proposed, which 1s on the same basis as the majonty of the Company's developments, albeit it on a larger
scale, was appropnate

New Covent Garden Market

In January 2013 the Company and VINCI PLC signed a contract with Covent Garden Market Autherty as development partner for
the New Covent Garden Market sites in London This mulh-phased project has a gross development value of approximately £2bn
The development agreement remains conditional upen, amongst ather things, the achievement of mproved planning consent, and
the Committee agreed (and Deloitte concurred) that it was not appropriate to recognise either an asset or hability in respect of the
development until these condrtions have been satisfied

Elephant & Castle Shopping Centre
As the sale of the Elephant & Castle Shopping Centre took place immediately before the year end, the Commuttee received reports
from both management and Deloitte and were satisfied that it was appropniate to recognise the sale in the financial year

Tax provisions

As a property group, tax planning 1s often an integral part of transactions Where tax planning 1s entered into, benefits are recognised
by the Group to the extent the outcome 1s reasonably certain Where tax planning has been challenged by HMRC, or management
beheve that there 15 a risk of such challenge, provision 1s made for the best estimate of potential exposure based on the information
avallable at the reporting date Having considered reports from management which addressed indwvidual jJudgements made in
respect of potental tax exposures, the Committee was satisfied (and Deloitte concurred) that the level of tax provisioning at both

the full year and half year was appropnate

Going concemn

As the going concern basis relies on forecasts, the Committee considered the assumptions and judgements apphed by
management In relation to the timing of receipt and payment cash flows, the ongoing avarlability of funding and covenant
compliance The Committee concluded that it remains appropriate for the Financial Statements to be prepared on a going concern
basis The statement of the directors in respect of going concern is set out on page 101

Further details on significant judgements, key assumptions and estimates can be found on page 114 of the Group
Financial Statements
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Corporate Govemance

Audit Committee Report (continued)

INDEPENDENCE OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Committee 1S responsible for the development, implementation and monitoring of the Company’s policies on external audit
The policies, designed to maintain the objectity and independence of the external audior, regulate the appointment of former
employees of the external audit firm and set out the approach to be taken when using the external auditor for non-audit work

Dunng the year the Committee reviewed the policy governing the provision of non-audt services by the external auditor Whilst it
recognises that it can be advantageous for the externa! auditor to provide non-audit serces to the Group, the policy only permits
this where alternative providers do not exist or where it 1s cost effective or in the Group's nterest for the external auditor to provide
such services The external auditor would not be invited to provide any non-audit services where It was felt that this could adversely
affect their independence or objectivity, such services would includa the provision of litigaticn support, actuanal services or internal
audit actvities

The policy sets out areas of work that the external auditor may be permitted to undertake, those areas where the involvement of the
external auditor 1s prohibited and those areas for which a case-by-case decision is required  With regard to the non-audrt services
provided by the external auditor the following framework i1s In place

* Audit-related assurance services substantally all of these services relate to the review of the half year results, which the external
auditor 1s required to undertake by virtue of its position

* Tax complance services these are services that are intended to ensure that the Company complies with existing tax regulations
To date these services have been undertaken by Deloitte through a separate tax complance team to ensure that objectmty and
independence 1s not Impaired However, In light of the level of non-audit fees, the Committes has agreed with Deloitte that a formal
tender to appoint an alternative provider of tax compliance services be undertaken by the Company

» Tax advisory services Deloitte 1s one of a number of firms that provide tax advisory services Selection 15 dependent on who
1s best suited in the circumstances Tax advisory services provided by Deloitte in the year included those in relation to the Bay
Campus development for Swansea University, RAF Uxbndge and Mill Hill, and the disposal of the Elephant & Castle Shopping
Centre Gwven its detarled understanding of the business, Deloitte was able to provide these services more cost efficiently
and effectively than an alternative provider who would not have benefitted from the same level of pre-existing knowledge of
St Modwen

* Property consufting the external auditor does not provide general consultancy services except in certain circumstances, and
then only after consideration that it 1s best placed to provide the service and that its ndependence and objectivity would not be
compromised All property consulting services for which non-audit fees were charged in the years ended 30" November 2012
and 2013 were provided by Deloitte Real Estate (formerly Drivers Jonas Deloitte), whose engagement in respect of these services
pre-dated the firm's acquisition by Deloitte

Where 1t 1s proposed to use the external auditor for the provision of non-audit services, the policy requires advance approval of both
the Group Finance Director and the Charr of the Audit Committee If the engagement 1s anticipated to generate fees in excess of
£25,000 or where the fee 1s contingent in full or in part Approval below these levels 1s required from the Group Finance Director

2013 2012

Audit and Audit and

audrt-related audt-related
services Otheor services Total SENIces Other services Total
£'000 £°000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Total audit fees 270 - 270 255 - 255
Audit-related assurance services 55 - 55 55 - 55
Other assurance services - - - 20 - 20
Tax compliance services - 166 166 - 150 150
Tax advisory services - 174 174 - 171 7
Property consulting - 30 30 — a7 47
Total non-audit fees 55 370 425 75 368 443
Total fees 325 370 695 330 368 698

The Committee has recewved confirmation from Deloitte as to their ndependence and objectivity within the context of applicable
requlatory requirements and professional standards 1t has also reviewed the fees paid to the Deloitte for the provision of non-audt
services dunng the year ended 30" November 2013 and 1s satisfied that these do not compromise erther their independence or
objectvity as the Company’s external auditor
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EFFECTIVENESS OF EXTERNAL AUDIT PROCESS

The Committee has undertaken a review of Delostte’s performance and the effectiveness of the external audit process The review
included a self-assessment camed out by Deloitte on audn objectives, leadership, qualfication, quality and independence and

a review methodology developed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Scotland on externa audit effectiveness which

had been assessed by management The Committee also gave consideration to Deloitte's expenence and expertise, the extent
to which the audit plan had been met, its robustness and perceptiveness wrth regard to key accounting and audit judgements,
and the content of its audit reports

The Committee remains satisfied with Deloitte’s performance and 1s of the view that there 1s nothing of concern that would impact
the effectiveness of the external audit process

APPOINTMENT OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee has responsibility for making a recommendation on the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditor

The Audit Committee notes the changes to the Code, the recent findings of the Compettion Commission and the Guidance for
Audit Committees 1ssued by the Financial Reporting Council in the context of tendering for the extarnal audrt contract at least every
10 years The Group's cument external auditor, Deloitte, was appointed in 2007 following a tender process The audit engagement
partner responsible for the Group’s audit was subsequently rotated for the 2011/12 financial yearnline with ethical standards
published by the Audrting Practices Board and will remain in post until the 2016/17 financial year Having conducted a full tender
within the last 10 years, the Comrmuttee will continue to give consideration as to the timing of the next formal tender 1n ight of
regulatory requirements and any further changes to the regulatory framework There are no contractual obligations which would
restnct the Company’s selection of an external auditor

Having considered the performance of Delortte (including value for money and quality and effectiveness of the audit process), its
independence, comphiance with relevant statutory, regulatory and ethical standards and objectivity, the Committee unanimousty
recommended to the Board that a resolution for the re-appointment of Deloitte as the Company’s external auditor be proposed
to shareholders at the 2014 AGM
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Corporate Governance

Nomination Committee Report

IMAGE
REMOVED

BILL SHANNCN
Chair of the Nommaton Committee

ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committee 1s responsible for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board and planning its progressive refreshing
In doing so it evaluates the optimal level of independence and diversity of skills, knowledge, expenence and gender required

for the Board to operate effectively The Committee also considers issues of succession planning, both at Board and sentor
management levels

The Committee leads the process for the identification and selection of new directors and makes recommendahions to the Board 1n
respect of such appointments The Committee also makes recommendations to the Board on membership of its Committees and
on the re-appointment of any non-executive director at the conclusion of his or her specified term of office The Committee follows
Board-approved procedures in making its recommendations

The Committee’s terms of reference are available on the Company’s website at www stmodwen co uk The terms of reference were
reviewed during 2013 to ensure that they continue to reflect accurately the Commuttee’sremint

COMMITTEE MEMBERSHIP

As at the date of this report, the Committee compnses the following independent non-executive directors, all of whom served
throughout the financial year unless indicated otherwise below

Drrector Nomeation Commidtee pastion
Bill Shannan Charr
Kay Chaldecott Member {from 27™ March 2013)
Lesley James Member
Richard Mully Member (from appointment to the Board on 1% September 2013)
John Salmon Member (from 27 March 2013)

Bill Shannon chairs the Committee except when the Committee 1s dealing with the appontment of a successor as Chairman, when
the Senior Independent Director chairs the Committee

Simon Clarke attends meetings of the Commuttee as an observer The secretary to the Committee 1s Tanya Stote, Company
Secretary David Garman was a member of the Committee until his retirement from the Board on 27 March 2013

Committee members' biographical details can be found on pages 56 and 57

ADVICE PROVIDED TO THE COMMITTEE

Where necessary and appropriate, external search consultants are used by the Committee to provide support in recruiting and
selecting potential candidates for appeointment to the Board Dunng the financial year ended 30" November 2013 The Zygos
Partnership was retained by the Committee as outlined on page 75, the firm has no other connection with the Company
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ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE

The Comrmuttee met on three occasions in the financial year ended 30™ Novernber 2013, members’ attendance at meetings 15 set out
in the table on page 63 Matters considered by the Committee included

» continued monitoring of the structure, size, composrttion and dwversity of both the Board and its Committees,

* reviewing the leadership neads of and succession planning for the Group,

*+ the recruitment of a new non-executive director,

+ making recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of non-executive directors,

* areview of gender diversity at both Board level and throughout the Group,

* recommending appointment procedures for approval by the Board, and

* potential approaches to the 2013 Board and Committee performance evaluation review {details of which can be found on page 65)

The Zygos Partnership was retained to assist with the search for a suitable candidate to be appointed to the role of Senior
Independent Director In accordance with the Committee’s appomtment procedures, a number of candidates were identified, based
on an agreed profile, and interviews held Following a therough process, and taking into account the skills and expenence required
for the role, the Board approved the Commitiee’s recommendation to appoint Richard Mully as non-executive director with effect
from 1= September 2013 and as Senior Independent Director with effect from 1 December 2013 Details of the induction arranged
for Richard Mully are set out on page 64

In terms of Board Committee composition, the Committee determined that, with the exception of the Chairman who 1s not a
member of the Audit Committee, 1t was appropriate for all Independent non-executive directors to be appointed as members of all
Committees It therefore recommended, and the Board approved, the appointment of both Kay Chaldecott and John Salmon 1o the
Committee with effect from 27" March 2013 and Richard Mully’s membership of all Board Committees on his appointment to the
Board on 1% September 2013

The Committee also reviewed the performance of Simon Clarke and Bill Shannon, whose respectve terms of office ended dunng
the year Noting that Simon Clarke is not deemed to be independent by virtue of his representation of the interests of the Clarke and
Leavesley families (who together hold 17 35% of the Company’s issued share capitah, the Committee recommended to the Board
{which unanimously approved) the re-appointment of both Simon Clarke and Bill Shannon for further three year penods

Succession planning at both Board and semor management level was considered by the Committee throughout the year
The recrutment process to identfy an Audit Committee Charr to replace John Salmon, who 1s neanng the end of his term of office,
has commenced

As detailed on page 100, Richard Mully will retire and offer himself for election at the 2014 AGM All other directors will retire and offer
themselves for re-election to the Board

BOARDROOM DIVERSITY

The search for Board candidates 1s conducted, and appomntments made, on ment against objective selection cntenia Diversity,
whether in terms of skills, knowledge, expenence or gender, is considered by the Committee when reviewing Board composition
and making recommendations for Board appontments or re-appointments In terms of gender dversity, the Company currently has
22 2% female representation on the Board

Whilst no formal measurable objectives for female representation at Board level have been set, the Cormnmittee wiil continue to
ensure that the Board has the optimal range of skills, expenence and diversity required and will, as part of this process, take into
consideration the recommendations of The Davies Report on Women on Boards

ALLOCATION OF TIME SPENT AT
NOMINATION COMMITTEE MEETINGS
IN 2012/13 %

CHART
REMOVED

l Succession planning
M Board composition
B Admmnistration
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report

IMAGE
REMOVED

LESLEY JAMES

Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Annual Statement

On behalf of the Board | am pleased to present the report on directors’ remuneration for the financial year ended

30™ November 2013
ROLE OF THE COMMITTEE

The pnncipal role of the Remuneration Committee 1s to determine and agree with the Board the policy for the remuneration of

the executive directors Within the framework of the agreed policy the Comnmuttee 1s responsible for all aspects of the executive
directors’ remuneration, for setting the fee of the Chairman of the Board, for moritenng the remuneration of other sentor executives
and admimistening the Company’s long-term incentive arrangements It undertakes a regular review of the incentive plans to ensure
that they remam appropnate to the Company's current circumstances, prospects and strategic prnionties and that, n particular, the
remuneration policy adopted is aligned with and based on the creation cf value for shareholders and provides appropriate incentives
for management to achieve this objective without taking inappropnate business nsks The Committee also reviews and notes
annually the remuneration trends across the Company and any major changes in employee benefit structures

ACTIVITIES OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committee met on four occasions in the financial year ended 30" Novernber 2013 to consider the following matters |

* review executive directors' base salanes and the fee payable to the Charman,

+ set corporate and personal ohjectives for the 2013/14 annual bonus arrangements for executive directors and an assessment

of performance against targets for 2012/13,

¢ approve the outturn of Performance Share Plan awards granted in 2011,

» approve share awards granted in 2013, including the performance condrions to apply to future awards,

* review the proposed rules to renew the current Saving Related Share Option Scheme, a resolution for which will be put

to shareholders at the 2014 AGM,
= consider investor feedback on remuneration pelicy,
» raview executive directors’ service contracts, and

+ consider the revised remuneration reporting regulations and prepare this report
on directors’ remuneration

Members' attendance at meetings 1s set out in the table on page 63

The Committee’s terms of reference are available on the Compary’s website at
www stmodwen co uk The terms of reference were reviewed in the year to ensure
that they continue to reflect accurately the Commuttee’s remit
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REMUNERATION IN 2012113

In the financial year ended 30™ November 2013 the executive directors had the opportunity to eam a bonus of up to 125% of base
salary Reflecting both the excellent corporate results for the year, which were ahead of both budget and market expectations,

and strong indmvidua performance, the annual bonus awarded to each executive director for 201213 was 118 75% of base salary
(2011112 112 5% of salary)

The performance penod for the 2011 Performance Share Plan awards ended on 30" Novemnber 2013 Vesting of half of thus award
was subject to TSR performance relative to the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment & Services Index, with the remaining 50%
subject to an absolute TSR condition To reflect absolute TSR growth of 110% and relative TSR performance of 155%, awards will
vest at 100%

REMUNERATION FOR 2013114

We believe that the remuneration policy and incentive framework currently in place 1s working wellto support the Company's
strategy In the current economic envirenment, 1S helping to retain and motivate our management team and 1s helping to dnve strong
returns for cur shareholders The structure of remuneration arangements for 2013/14 will therefore remain largely unchanged from
that applied in 2012/13

In hne with the average salary increase awarded to employees, salanes of the executive directors have been increased by 3% with
effect from 1= December 2013 Executwe directors will continue to have the opportunity to earn a bonus of up to 125% of salary
and will recelve long-term tncentive awards to the same value

REMUNERATION DISCLOSURE

This report complies with the requirements of the Large and Medium-Sized Comparies and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2008 as amended in 2013 (the Regulations), the principles of the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Gode and the Listing
Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty

It 1s split Into two distinct sections

1 aremuneration policy report {pages 78 to 87) which provides details of the remuneration policy that we propose will apply from
12 December 2014 subject to obtaining shareholder approval through a binding vote at the 2014 AGM, and

2 the annual report on remuneration (pages 87 to 97) which describes how the remuneration policy was implemented for the year
ended 30" November 2013 and how we intend for the policy to apply for the year ending 30% November 2014 This report and my
annual statement will be put to an advisory shareholder vote at the 2014 AGM

| hope that you fire the report helpful and mformative and | look forward to receving feedback on the information presented from
our investors in the coming months

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Lesley Jarnes
Charr of the Remuneration Committee

3% February 2014
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Report
HOW THE COMMITTEE SETS THE REMUNERATION POLICY

The pnmary objective of the Company’s remuneration policy is to attract, retain and motivate high-calibre senior executives through
competitive pay arrangements which are also in the best interests of shareholders Remuneration includes a significant proportion
of performance-related elements with demanding targets in order to align the interests of directors and shareholders and to reward
appropnately financial success The policy I1s structured so as to be aligned with key strategrc prionties and te be consistent with a
Board-approved leve! of business nsk

In setting the remuneration policy for the executive directors, the Committee takes into consideration the remuneration practices
found i other UK companies of comparable size and scope and has regard to the remuneration arrangements for the Company's
employees generally In general, the components and levels of remuneration for employees will differ from the policy for executive
directors which 1s set out below As a result, greater emphasis 1s placed on vanable pay for executive directors and senior
employees, although maximum opportunities are reduced at levels below the Board Similarly, long-term incentives are offered enly
to those anticipated to have the greatest impact on Company performance

The Committee does not directly consult with employees regarding the remuneration of directors However, when considenng
remuneration levels to apply, the Committee will take into account base pay increases, bonus payments and share awards made
to the Company’s employees generally

The Committee 1s committed to an ongoing dialogue with shareholders and seeks the views of its major shareholders when
considenng significant changes to remuneration arrangements The Committee also considers shareholder feedback recewved
in relation to the Directors’ Remuneration Report each year at a meeting following the AGM This feedback, plus any addihional
feedback received from time 1o time, is then considered as part of the Committee’s annual review of remuneration policy

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy that 1s intended to apply, subject to shareholder approval, from 1% December 2014 1s set out on pages 79
to 83 Remuneration arrangements for the financial year ending 30" November 2014 wilbe in kne with the policy below, further
information can be found on pages 95 and 96

The Gommittee retains the discretion to make any payments, notwithstanding that they are not in line with the policy set out below,
where the terms of the payment were agreed (i) before the policy came into effect, or {ij at a time when the relevant ndwidual

was not a director of the Company and, in the opinion of the Committee, the payment was not in consideration of the individual
becoming a director of the Company For these purposes ‘payments’ includes the Committee satisfying awards of vanable
remuneration and, in relation to an award over shares, the terms of the payrment are determined at the time the award 1s granted
Details of any such payments will be disclosed in the annual report on remuneration for the relevant year

The Committee will operate the annual bonus and long-term incentive arrangements according to ther respective rules and in
accordance with the Listing Rules where relevant Consistent with market practice the Commuttee retains certain discretions
in respect of the operation and administration of these arrangements which include, but are not imited to, the following

* the participants,

* the timing of the grant of an award or payment,

¢ the size of an award,

* the determination of the extent to which performance measures have been met and the corresponding vesting or payment levels,
» discretion required when dealing with a change of control or restructuning of the Group,

+ determination of the treatment of leavers based on the rules of the respective arrangement and the appropnate treatment chosen,
including the pro-rating of awards,

+ adjustments required In certain circumstances (e g nghts 1ssues, corporate restructunng events and special dividends),
s the annual review of performance measures, weighting and targets from year to year, and

* the manner in which share awards can be satisfied (1 e through the use of new 1ssue, market purchased or treasury shares or
by way of a cash payment)

In addition, the Comimittee retains the ability to adjust the targets and/or set different measures if events oceur (e g a matenal
acquisttion and/or divestment of a Group business) which cause It to determine that the conditions are no longer appropnate and
the amendment 1s required so that the conditions achieve their anginal purpose and are not matenally less difficult to satisfy

Any use of the above discretions would be explained in the annual report on remuneration for the relevant year and may,
as appropnate, be the subject of consultation with the Company’s major shareholders
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Element

BASE SALARY

¢ To attract, retain and motivate individuals of the necessary calibre to execute the
Company's strategy

+ To provide competitive non-vanable remuneration relatrve to the external market

+ To recognise and reward performance, skills and expenence

Operation

Normally reviewed annually with changes effective from 1% December Review refiects

* indrvidual and corporate perforrmance,
¢ the Indmvidual’s level of skill and expenience,
¢ increases throughout the Company (iIncluding cost of iving awards),

internal relatvities, and

prevaling market conditions through penodic benchmarking for comparable roles in companies
of a similar sze and scope The Committee ts mindful of insttubonal investors’ concerns on the
upward ratchet of base salanes and does not consider benchmark data in isolation

Opportunity

Salary increases will normally be (in percentage of salary terms}in line with any general cost
of ving increase throughout the Company However, larger increases may be awarded at the
Committee’s discretion to take account of indmdual circumstances such as

* changes In scope and responsibility of a role, and

* where a new director 1s appomied at a salary which is at a lower level to reflect ther expenence
at that point, the Committee may award a series of increases over time to achieve the desired
salary posiion subject to satisfactory performance and market condrtions

Actual salary levels are disclosed in the annual report on remuneration for the relevant financial
year (see page 95 for those effective 1% December 2013)

Performance measures

None, atthough overall performance of the individual 1s considered by the Comimittee as part
of the annual review

Element BENEFITS
* To provide a competitive and cost-effective benefits package
* To assist with recruitment and retention

Operation The Company provides a range of non-pensionable benefits to executive directors which may
include a combination of a company car or car allowance, pnvate fuel, driver, private medical
insurance, permanent health msurance, life assurance, holiday and sick pay, and professional
advice in connection with therr directorship
Other benefits such as relocation allowances may be offered f considered appropnate and
reasonable by the Committee

Opportunity Benefits are sel at a level which the Commuttee considers to be appropnately positioned agamnst

comparable roles In companies of a similar size and scope and provides a sufficient level of
benefit based on the role and individual circumstances

Performance measures

None
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Report (continued)

Element

PENSION
= To provide competitive post-retirement benefits in a cost-effective manner

* To assist with recruitment and retention

Operation

The Company offers an allowance (expressed as a percentage of base salary} which can be

taken as

* an employer contnbution to the defined contribution section of the Company's pension scheme,
¢ a cash allowance (which 1s not bonusable), or

* a blend of the two

As a result of histonc contractual commitments, retirement benefits for Steve Burke are also
defivered by membership of the defined benefit section of the Company's pension scheme which
15 closed to future accrual

The Commuittee may amend the form of any executive director’s penston arrangements In response
to changes In pensions legistation or similar developments, so long as any amendment does not
increase the cost to the Company of a director’s pension provision

Opportunity

15% of base salary for all executive directors

Performance measures

None

Element

ANNUAL BONUS

* To ncentivise and reward the delivery of stretching, near-term strategic, financial and
operaticnal measures at Company and personal levels

* Corporate measures selected are consistent with and complement the budget and
strategic plan

* An element of compulsory investment in shares to align to shareholders’ interests in the creation
of sustainable, long-term value

Operation

All measures and targets are reviewed and set annualy by the Committee at the beginning of
the financial year and levels of award determined by the Committee after the year end based
on performance against the targets set

The Committee retains an overriding discretion to ensure that overall bonus payments reflect its
view of corporate performance dunng the year

Bonuses are paid in cash and are non-pensicnable Directors are required to invest an amount
equal to one-third of the net bonus received In the Company’s shares and to retain these shares
for a minimum penod of three years

Clawback provisions apply to all bonuses paid !

Opportunity

Maximum bonus potential of 125% of salary for all executive directors On target performance
would result in a bonus payment of 75% of salary

Performance measures

Performance s assessed using the following metrics

* up to 105% of salary will be awarded based on coporate measures, and
= up to 20% of salary will be awarded based on personal measures 2

The specific measures that will apply for the year ending 30" November 2014 are descrbed in the
annual report on remuneration on page 95 Measures for subsequent years will be summansed In
the annual report on remuneration for the relevant year

1 The Committes has discretion to recover some or all of the vahie of awards of anhual bonus for a penod of four years following the end of the bonus year n the event
that a later restaterment of accounts occurs or there 1s other discovered musconduct which, if known at the time, would have meant that a lower or nil bonus woukd have

been paxd

2 The annual bonus metncs are designed to ensure that annual perfarmance 18 focused on key financial measums which support the Company's strategic targets

These are supported by indnadual performance measures to ensure that executve dinectors are meentnised to defiver across a range of objectives Targets are set in lne

with the Company's budget and strategic plan for the year with a stretch element to reward substantial outperformance
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Element

LONG-TERM INCENTIVES
* To incentivise and reward the delivery of strang returns to shareholders and sustamned,
long-term performance

¢ Algns the long-term interests of directors and shareholders
* Promotes retention

Operation

Awards of nil-cost options are normally made annually with vesting, in normal circumstances,
dependent on the achievement of stretching performance conditions set by the Committee and
measured over a three year penod, and the director remaining in employment

The Committee has discretion to decide whether and to what exient performance conditions have
been achieved and must also be satisfied that two underpin conditions are met before permitting
awards to vest !

On the exercise of vested awards, executive directors recesve anamount (in cash or shares)
equal to the dividends paid or payable between the date of grant and the date of exercise on the
number of shares which have vested

Clawback provisions apply to all awards granted 2

Certain executive directors have vested but unexercised awards granted under the Company’s
Executive Share Option Schemes (ESOS) Other than in exceptional circumstances as determined
by the Committee, no further grants under the ESOS will be made to executive directors

Opportunity

Maximum award level permitted under the scheme rules 1s 150% of salary {or 180% in
excephonal circurnstances) The nermal and current annual award kmit 1s 125% of salary for all
executive directors

Awards vest on the following basis

» on target performance delivers 25% of the shares awarded, and
= maximum performance delivers 100% of the shares awarded,
with straight-line vesting between

Performance measures

Performance 15 measured over a three year period with no retesting agamnst the following metrics

* 50% of the award based on relative TSR performance, and
* 50% of the award based on absolute TSR growth 3

The specific measures that will apply for the year ending 30" November 2014 are described in the
annual report on remuneration on page 96 Measures for subsequent years will be summansed In
the annual report on remuneration for the relevant year

1 The conditions are {} that the extent of vesting under the performance condiions s approphate given the general financial peformance of the Comparny over the
performance penod, and (i) if ne drvidend has been pard on the last normal dredend date pnor to the vesting data or if the Commidtea believes that no didend will be
paid In respact of the year n which the award vests the award will not vest at that time and vesting will be delayed (subject to continued employment} unti dnadend

payments are resumed

2 The Commitee has discretion to reduce some or all of the value {calculated at vesting) of any awards granted where the value of future annual borius cash payments
are insutficient 10 recover fully any clawback applicable to the annual bonus arrangements o, within a penod of four years following the end of the performance penod
for an award, there 15 a matenal misstatement of the accounts or an emor I the calcutation of any performance conditrion which resulted n excess awards vesting to the
participant or there 1 other misconduct which, if known at the tme, would have meant that a lower or nil award would have vested

3 The Committee bebieves that this combination of TSR measures prowides strong alignment with the interests of shareholders and complements the focus on operational
performance measures in the annual bonus arangements Targets are set to ensure that only modest awards are available for defivenng on target performance with
maamum rewards requinng substantial outperformance of the Company's budget and strategic plans.
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Report (continued)

Element ALL-EMPLOYEE SHARE SCHEMES
* To encourage all employees to make a long-term investment in the Company’s shares in a tax
efficient way
Operation All employees, Including executive directors, are entitled to participate in a UK tax approved

all-employee share scheme

A resolution to extend the Company’s current all-employee share scheme for a further 10 years
will be put to shareholders at the 2014 AGM This scheme 18 substantially the same as the
Company’s existing arrangements and will allow employees to make monthly savings over a
penod of three or five years lIinked to the grant of an option over the Company’s shares

At the end of the pencd, participants can use the monies to purchase shares at a discount (up to
the maximum permitted by HMRC) to the market value of shares on the relevant invitation date
Alternatively they may ask for therr savings to be retumed with any accrued interest

Opportunity Maximum participation [imits are set in ine with HMRC guidelines in force at the time of award
Performance measures None
Element SHAREHOLDING REQUIREMENT
= To ensure alignment of interasts of executive directors and shareholders
Operation The Company operates a shareholding requirement which i1s subject to penodic review
Opportunity Executive directors are required to build up a shareholding worth 200% of base salary within five
years of appotntment
Performance measures None
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Element

FEES PAYABLE TO CHAIRMAN AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
» To pay fees in ine with those paid by other UK listed companies of comparable size

» Additional paymenis to the Senior Independent Director and Charrs of Board Commuttees to
reflect the additional responsibiities attached to these postions

Operation

Normally reviewed annually with changes effective from 1% December, taking into account any
cost of Imng increase apphed throughout the Company Penodic benchmarkung for comparable
roles In companies of a similar size and scope 1s also undertaken

Fees are structured as follows

¢ the Chairman i1s paid an all-inclusive fee for all Board responsibilities This fee 1s determined by
the Board on the recommendation of the Committee, and

+ non-executive directors are paid a basic fee, plus additional fees for chainng Board Cormmittees
or as Senor Independent Director which are determined by the Board on the recommendation
of the executive directors

Fees are currently paid in cash

Nerther the Chairman nor the other non-executive directors participate in the annual bonus or
long-term incentive arrangements or in the pension scheme, nor do they receve benefits in kind

Opportunity

Fees are set at a level which reflects the commitment and contribution that 1s expected and I1s
appropriately positioned against comparable roles in companies of a smilar size and scope

Overall fees paid to directors will reman within the imit set out in the Company’s articles
of association

Actual fee levels are disclosed in the annual repert on remuneration for the relevant financial year
(see page 96 for those effective 1 December 2013)

Performance measures

None, although overall performance of the indmvidual 1s considered as part of the annual review
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Corporate Governance

Directors’

Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Report (continued)
ILLUSTRATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY

The following charts illustrate the remuneration opportunity provided to each executive drector in line with the policy set out on
pages 79 to 83 above at different levels of performance for the 2013/14 financial year

Three scenanos have been illustrated for each executive director

1 Minimum performance

2 Ontarget performance

3 Maximum performance

compnsing the minmum remuneration recevable (being base salary and pension allowances for
the 2013/14 financial year and benefits calculated using the 2012/13 figure as set out In the table on
page 87)

compnsing fixed pay, an annual bonus payment at 60% of the maximum opportunity (75% of salary)
and long-term incentive awards vesting at 25% of maxirmum opportunity (31 25% of salary)

compnsing fixed pay, 100% of annual bonus (125% of salary) and 100% vesting of long-term incentive
awards (125% of salary)

The illustrations do not take into account share price appreciation or dvidends

BILL OLIVER STEVE BURKE MICHAEL DUNN
Chuef Executive £'000 Construction Director £'000 Group Finance Director £°000
CHART CHART CHART
REMOVED REMOVED REMOVED

B Fixed pay W Annualborus W Long-term incentves
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RECRUITMENT ARRANGEMENTS

in the event of hiing a new executive director, the Committee will typically seek to align his or herremuneration package with the
policy set out above However, the Committee retains the discretion to offer appropriate remuneration outside of the standard policy
to faciltate the hinng of candidates of an appropnate calibre and to meet the iIndmvidual circumstances of the recrutment This may,
for example, include the following

+ where an intenim appotntment 1s made to fill an executive director role on a short-term basis,

* excephional circumstances require that the Chairman or a non-executive director takes on an exscutive function on a
short-term basis,

+ an executive director 1s recruited at a time in the year when it would be inappropriate to provide a bonus or long-term incentive
award for that year as there would not be sufficient time to assess performance The quantum inrespect of the months employed
during the year may be transferred to the subsequent year so that reward i1s provided on a farr and appropnate basis,

* an execuhive 1s recruited from a business that offered some benefits that the Committee might consider appropnate to buy out but
that do not fali into the definition of “variable remuneration forfeited’ that can be included in the buyout element under the wording
of the Regulations, or

s the executive received benefits from his or her previous employer which the Commitiee constders 1t appropnate to offer

The Comrmittee will, however, seek to ensure that arrangements are in the best interests of both the Company and its shareholders
and to not pay more than is appropriate

Base salary levels for new recruits will be set in accordance with the policy set out on page 79, taking into account the expenence
and calibre of the indnadual recrurted Where 1t 1s appropnate to offer a tower salary initially to reflect the indvidual’s expenence at
that pont, the Committee may award a senes of increases over time to achieve the desired salary postion subject to performance
and market conditions  Pension arrangements will be in ine with the policy detailed on page 80

Unless the Committee deems 1t appropnate to tallor benefits to the unique crcumstances of the appointment, benefits will be
provided in lne with those made avallable to other executive directors (see policy table on page 79), with relocation allowances
offered if considered necessary

The Commuttee may structure a remuneration package that it considers appropnate to recognise ncentive pay or benefit
arrangements that the individual would forfert on resigning from his or her previous employer This may take the form of cash
and/or share awards as appropnate In doing so the Committee will take account of relevant factors including the form (e g cash or
shares), timing and expected value (i e hkelihood of meeting any existing performance cntena) of the remuneration being forferted
The Committee will generally seek to structure buyout awards on a comparable basis to awards forfeted Replacement share
awards, If used, will, to the extent possible, be granted using the Company’s existing share schemes, although awards may also

be granted outside of these schemes if necessary and as permitted under the Listing Rules (which allow for the grant of awards

to facilitate, in unusual circumstances, the recruitment of a directer)

The Comrmittee may also apply different performance measures, performance penods and/or vesting penods for inshal awards made
following appointment under the annual bonus and/or long-term Incentive arrangements, subject fo the rules of the scheme, if it
determines that the circumstances of the recruitment ment such alteration

The maximum level of variable pay which may be awarded to new executive directors, excluding the value of any buy-out
arangements, will e in line with the policy set aut on pages 80 and 81 (1 e at an aggregate maximum of 315% of salary, comprising
125% for annual bonus and 180% for long-term incentive arrangements)

Where a position is fulfilled internally, the Committee will honour any pre-existing remuneration obligations or outstanding vaniable
pay arrangements In relation to the individual’s previous role such that these shall be allowed to continue according to the onginal
terms (adjusted as relevant to take account of the Board appointment)

Fees payable to a newly-appotnted Chairman or non-executive director will be i line with the fee policy in place at the time
of appointment
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Policy Report (continued)
EXTERNAL APPOINTMENTS

The Board recognises the benefit which the Company can obtain If executive directors serve as non-executive directors of other
companies Subject to review In each case, the Board's general pelicy 1s that an executve director can accept one non-executive
drectorship of another company (but not the chairmanship) and can retain the fees in respect of such appointment No fees were
received by executive directors for external appointments during the year ended 30™ November 2013

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR SERVICE CONTRACTS AND PAYMENTS FOR LOSS OF OFFICE

All current executive directors have service contracts which may be terminated by the Company for breach by the executive

or with 12 months’ notice from the Company and either 12 months (Michael Dunn) or six months (Bill Olver and Steve Burke)

from the indvidual None have fixed terms of service Service contracts for new executve directors will generally be hmited to

12 months’ notice The dates of the executive directors’ service contracts are as follows Bill Oliver — 24™ January 2000, Steve Burke
-1t January 2006, Michael Dunn - 9" November 2010

If nohice 1s served by either party, the executive director can continue to receive base salary, benefits and pension for the duration

of theirr notice penod during which time the Company may reguire the individua! to contnue to fulfil thesr current duties or may
assign a penod of garden leave The Company may elect to make a payment in lieu of notice equivalent in value to 12 months’ base
salary, payable in monthly instalments, which would be subject to mitigation if alternative employment 1s taken up dunng this time
Alternatively, this payment may be paid as a lump sum In the event of temmination for cause (e g gross misconduct) nerther notice
nor payment in lieu of notice will be given and the executive director will cease to perform his services Immediately

In redundancy situations the Committee will comply with prevaliing relevant legislation In addrtion, and consistent with market
practice, the Company may pay a contribution towards the executive director’s legal fees for enterng into a statutory agreement and
may pay a contribution towards fees for outplacement services as part of a negotiated settlement There i1s no prowision for additional
compensation on termination following a change of control Payment may also be made in respect of accrued benefits, including
untaken holiday entitlement

The following principles will apply to annual bonus and long-term incentive arrangemenis in the event of loss of office

Remuneration slement ‘Good’ leavers Other leavers
Annual bonus An executive director will be treated Unless the Committee exercises its
as a good leaver If he or she dies or discrehion to treat the executive director as
ceases employment due to injury, a good leaver, no bonus will be payable

disability, retirement with the Company’s
agreement, or sale of the business in
which he or she 1s employed

In these circumstances, the executive
drrector remains eligible to be paid

a bonus, subject to the applicable
performance measures Any payment
awarded may be pro-rated to reflect the
penod of tme served from the start of the
financial year to the date of termination,
but not for any penod in lieu of notice

Long-term incentve awards An executive director will be treated as~ All awards will lapse in full where
a good leaver if he or she dies or ceases  termination is by reason of

(as apply to the Company’s current employment due to injury or disability summary dismissal

Performance Share Plan)
Unvested awards can be exercised In other circumstances unvested awards
etther on date of cessation or after will lapse in full unless the Committee
three years from grant, in ether case applies discretion to treat the executive

pro-rated for time employed dunngthe  director as a good lsaver
performance penod, achievement of

applicable performance measures, and

having regard to such other factors as

the Commirttee may deem relevant

In respect of all-employee share schemes and the Company’s Executive Share Option Schemes, the same leaver conditions will be
applied to executive directors as those applied to other employees
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR TERMS OF APPOINTMENT

The terms of service of the Chairman and the other non-executive directors are contained in letters of appointment

Appomntments are for a fixed term of three years, dunng which penod the appointment may be teminated by three months’ notice
by erther party Non-executive directors are typically expected to serve two three year terms subject to mutual agreement and
satrsfactory performance reviews There are no provisions for payment in the event of termination, early or otherwise

The dates of the current letters of appointment for the Chairman and other non-executive directors and expiry of ther current terms
are as follows

No-executive director Date of current letter of appontment Exprry of current tesm
Bill Shannon 25/11/13 31/10/16
Kay Chaldecott 22/10M12 211015
Simon Clarke 24/09A13 10/10/16
Lesley James 24/10M12 18/10/15
Richard Mully 16/07/13 31/08/16
John Salmon 31101 16/10/14

Annual Report on Remuneration
SINGLE TOTAL FIGURE OF REMUNERATION (AUDITED INFORMATION)

Ferion contribubon/
Base sdary/ees Benefiis? Annual bonus? Share plans vestng allowanced Total
£'000 £000 £000 £000 000 £'000

2013 2012 2013 202 2013 2012 20133 20124 2013 2012 2013 2012

Executive directors

Bill Oliver 457 446 30 29 543 502 1,085 628 69 67 2184 1672
Steve Burke 302 294 29 21 358 33 716 12 45 44 1,450 1,102
Michael Dunn 266 268 1 10 3265 301 782 - 40 40 1,425 619
Non-executive directors

Bill Shannon 135 135 - - - - - - - - 135 135
Kay Chaldecott” 40 5 - - - - - - - - 40 5
Simon Clarke 40 38 - - - - - - - - 40 38
David Garman® 15 44 - - - - - - - - 15 44
Kathenne Innes Ker? 13 38 - - - - - - - - 13 38
Lesley James 49 47 - - - - - - - - 49 47
Rechard Mully® 10 - - - - - - - - - 10 -
John Salmon1? 55 47 - - - - - - - - 55 47

1,382 1,362 70 60 1,227 9134 2,583 1,040 154 151 5416 3,747

1 All benefits for the executive directors (compnsing mainly the provision of company car/car allowance, prvate fuel and medcal nsurance) anse from employment with
the Company and do not form part of final pensionable pay

2 Bonus payable in respect of the relevant financial year Further nformation as to how the level of bonus awarded in 2013 was determined s provided on page 88

3 Relates to the 2011 PSP awards which are due to vest and became exercisable on 21 March 2014 The share pnce used to value the awards was 328 98p, bang the
three month average to 30 November 2013 Further information on the awards and the performance conditions to which they were subject can be found on page 89

4 Relates tothe 2008 and 2010 PSP awards which vested and became exercisable on 24™ July 2012 and 22 February 2013 respectively The share price used to
value the awards was 177 75p (2009 awards) and 277 5p (2010 awards), being the share price on the relevant vesting date Further nformation on the performance
conditions which appled to the awards 1s set out on page 80

5 Further details regarding pension entitiements can be found on page 93

6 The bonus awarded was based on annual salary of £274,495 rather than salary eamed i the year which at £265,544, was bwer as a result of unpaid paternity
leave taken

7 Appointed to the Board on 22 October 2012

8 Retired from the Board on 27" March 2013

9 Appointed to the Board on 1* September 2013

10 Fee pad in the year ended 30™ November 2013 reflected John Sakmon's appontment as Intenm Senior Independent Director from 28" March 2013 until the year end
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Corporate Govemance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Annual Report on Remuneration (continued)
ANNUAL BONUS OUTTURN {AUDITED INFORMATION}

Ag % of basa
On targat Actual salary at maemum  Bonus awarded as
Measure performance perfomance  bonus opporturnty % of base salary
Corporate
8% growth 1% growth
* Post dvidend growth in shareholders’ equity net asset value per share to 270p 10 279p
= Increase in profit before all tax £5651m £82 2m
390p per 4 00p per 0,
+ Increase In total dividend for the year share share 105% 10000%
* Gearng levels 62% 54%
* Covenant compliance Ful Full
Partially
¢ Achievement against a number of sirategic objectives Achieved achieved
Personal
Partialy
* Achievement against a number of operational objectives Achieved achieved 20% 18 75%

The executive directors’ individual performance was assessed by the Committee agasnst the measures, relying on audited
information where appropnate, and having regard to the value which has been created for shareholders Weightings were not given
to indvidual corporate measures, since they are all of key importance to the short- and lenger-term success of the Company, the
Committee did not wish to distort behaviour by placing particular focus on any single element

As noted in the Strategic Report, the Company delivered an excellent set of results for the year Performance highlights include

* shareholders’ equity net asset value per share increasing by 11% to 279p per share,

= anincrease In profit before all tax of 56% to £82 2m,

+ reahsed property profits up by 37% to £40m,

+ significant reduction 1 geanng to 54% following a successful equity placing,

+ final dividend for the year increased by 10% to 2 67p per share, making a total distnbution for the year of 4 00p per share,

* sustained valuation gains of £42m, of which £28m was as a result of active asset management and planning gans, and

* the disposal by St Modwen's KPI joint venture of the Elephant & Castle Shopping Centre for £80m, representing a yield of 4 25%

In light of both corperate and individual performance, the Committee determined that each executive director shouid receive a bonus
equal to 95% of the maximum opportunity for the year, representing 118 75% of salary

Bonus payments are conditional upen the executive directors undertaking to invest at least one-third of the bonus recerved, after
payment of income tax and national insurance, in the Company shares and to retain those shares for a mirmmum penod of three
years In respect of benuses paid for the 2011/12 financial year, Bill Olver and Mike Dunn satisfied this investment requirement
through the acquisition of shares issued as part of the equity placing completed in March 2013 whilst Steve Burke acquired shares
both through the placing and the exercise of his 2009 and 2010 PSP awards
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LONG-TERM INCENTIVES (AUDITED INFORMATION)

Performance Share Plan (PSP)
On 6% March 2013, the following PSP awards were granted to executive directors as nil cost options

Faca value of award 9% of award that would vest
Executve director Bas:s of award £000! Nurnber of shares for threshold performance?
Bill Oliver 125% of salary £571 231077 25%
Steve Burke 125% of salary £377 152,468 25%
Michae! Dunn 125% of salary £343 138,802 25%

1 Calculated using the average share prce of 247.2p which was, in accordance with the rules of tha PSP, used to determmine the nurmiber of shares to be awarded (being
the average over the three deakng days mmediately preceding the date of grant)

2 The performance meastnes that apply to the awards rmurmor those proposed for the 2014 awards which are descnbed on page 96 The performance penod started on
1% Decemnber 2012 and will end on 30" November 2015

The three year performance penod for the 2011 PSP awards ended on 30™ November 2013 The performance conditions which

applied to the awards together with actual performance are summansed in the table below

Vesting of award at Vestng of award at

Threshold threshold Maxarmum maamum Achsal Proportion of

Perlormance measure Weghting performance performance perfonmance perfonmance performance award tovest
50% of

Absolute TSR growth award 20% 12 5% 50% 50% 110% 50%
TSR relatve to FTSE
All-Share Real Estate 50% of Equat 120% of
Investrment & Services Index award to Index 12 5% Index 0% 155% 50%

TOTAL 100%

To ensure that the level of vesting of PSP awards accurately reflected the performance of the Company durning the penod, the
Committee also considered whether it was satisfied that the two underpins (details of which are set out In note 1 on page 81) had
been met In respect of the dvdend underpin, an intenm dividend of 1 33p per share was paid on3° September 2013 and the Board
1s recommending that a final dividend for the year of 2 67p per share be pad on 4% Apnl 2014 Futhermore, the Commuttee currently
has no reason to belleve that dividend(s) will not be paid in respect of the 2014 financial year, being the year in which the award will
vest The CGommittee also considered the general financial performance of the Company over the performance penod and noted

the following

Asat 1 As at 30"
Key financral ndicator Decemba 2010 November 2013 Improverment
Profit before all tax £382m £82 2m 115%
Shareholders’ equrty net asset value per share 2132p 278 7p 31%
Total dwvidend per share for the financial year 300p 4 00p 33%
Geanng 2% 54% 24%
See-through loan-to-value 39% 33% 15%

The Committee therefore determined that 100% of the PSP awards granted in 2011 will vest andbacome exercisable on the third
anniversary of grant (21* March 2014) subject to continued employment Further details can be found in the table below

Exooutve dractor Total number of shares granted Nurmber of shares to vest
Bill Oliver 319,774 319,774
Steve Burke 210,892 210,992
Michael Dunn 230,496 230,496

Dividends will be treated as accruing from the date of grant to the date of exercise, on exercise the total dividend accrued i1s
converted into shares using the average market pnce for the three dealing days immediately pnor to the date of exercise and
released 1o the director

St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Beport and Financial Statements 2013 89

Hoday oibaleng

9oUBLIBA0Y) sjelodion

SIUBLUSIRIG [BIDLERLLY

UOIJELLLIOU| [euoippy




Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Annual Report on Remuneration (continued)
All PSP awards held by the executive directors who served dunng the year, together with any movements, are shown below

Awards held
Awards held on Awards Awards Awards on 30" Endof
1= Decernber made vestad exgrcisad Awatslapsed November
Expoutive directcr Date of grant! 2012 dunngyear? cunng yearS dunng year BN year 2013 penod?  Exercse penod
24/0712 to
Bill Oliver 24/07/09 134,498 - - - - 134,498 N/A 23/0719
22/02113 to
22/02/10 282154 - 129,480 - 152,674 129,480 NA  21/02/20
21/03M14 to
21/03/1 319,774 - - - - 319,774 3011413 20/03/21
17/02/15 t1©
170212 363,529 - - - - 363,529 30/11/14 168/02/22
06/03/16 to
06/03/13 - 231,077 - - - 231,077 30145 05/03/23
1,099,955 231,077 129,480 - 152,674 1,178,358
240712 to
Steve Burke 24/07/09 88,744 - - 88,7448 - - NA - 23/0718
22/0213 to
22/02A10 186,170 - 85,433 85,433 100,737 - NA  21/02/20
21/0314 to
21/03/11 210862 - - - - 210,992 30MIA13 20/08/21
17/02/15 to
17/02/125 239,863 - - - - 239,863 3114 16/02/22
06/03/16to
06/03/13 — 152,468 — — - 152,468  3011/15 050323
725,769 152,468 86,433 17477 100,737 603,323
21/03/14 to
Michael Dunn 21/03/11 230,496 - - - — 230,496 3013 20/03/21
17/02/15 to
17/02/125 218,362 - - - - 218,362 30/11/14 16/02/22
06/03/16 to
06/03/13 - 138,802 - - — 138,802 30/11/15  (05/03/23
448,858 138,802 - - = 587,660

1 Awards made in 2012 and 2013 are subject to clawback as descnbed on page 81

2 The share pnece used to calculate the number of shares awarded under the rules of the PSP, was 247.2p The closing mid-market share pnce on the date of the award
was 249 1p The performance conditions for the 2013 awand miror those proposed for the 2014 awards as destnbed on page 98

3 The share pnce used to calculate the number of shares which vested when onginally awarded, under the rules of the PSF, was 188p The closing mid-market share prica

on the date the shares vested was 277 5p

4 Performance condibons for the 2008 and 2010 awards are descnbed in the table below The performance condtions for awards made m 2011 2012 and 2013 mior
those proposed for the 2014 awards as descnbed on page 96

Vesting of award at Vesting of award at
Performance measure Weaghting Threshold performance  threshold performance  Maximum porformance maximum
Cumulatve growth m net 5% for 2009 awand/ 20% for 2009 award/
asset value per share 50% of award 7.5% tor 2010 award 125% 0% for 2010 award 50%
TSR relatrve to FTSE 350
Real Estate Index 50% of award Equal to Index 125% 120% of Index 50%

5 Awards compnse an HMRC approved option over 19,769 shares with an exercise pnce of 151 75p and an unapproved award for the balance

6 Awards exercised on 28™ Apnl 2013 In addition to the shares exercised Steve Burke recenved shares representing the value of dmidends paxd from the date of award to
the date of exercise for both the 2009 PSP award (3,286 shares) and 2010 PSP award (3 163 shares)
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Executve Share Option Schemes (ESOS)

ESOS awards held by the executive directors who served dunng the year, together with any movements, are shown below

Optons heid Options held

on 1= Opbors Optrons Opbons on 30%

Decermber granted exercrsed lapsed November
Executive drector Date of grant 2012 dunng year  dunng year! dunng year 2013 Bercsepnce? Exercise penod
13/08/07 to
Bill Olver 13/08/04 105,610 - - - 105,610 236 31p 12/08/14
16/08/08 to
15/08/05 102,955 - - - 102,955 375 22p 14/08/15

208,565 - — — 208,565
13/08/07 to
Steve Burke 13/08/04 46,315 - - - 46,315 23631p  12/08/14
15/08/08to
15/08/05 39,825 - - - 39,825 375 22p 14/08/15

86,140 - - - 86,40

1 All options have vested in full, having met the perfermance condiions, but have not been exercised
2 Adjusted to take account of the dilutwve effect of the 2009 equity ssue

No further grants under the ESOS will be made to executive directors ather than in excephonal cicumstances as determined by

the Committee

Saving Related Share Option Scheme (SAYE)

SAYE awards held by the executive directors who served dunng the year, together with any movements, are shown below

Cotions held Options held

on 1% Options Optons Options on 30"

December granted exerosed lapsed Novemher
Executive director Date of grant 2012 dunng year dunng year dunng year 2013 Exercise pnce  Exercise penod
0i/10/14 to
Bill Oliver 15/09/09 6,941 - - - 6,941 224p 31/03/15
014101610
Steve Burke 16/08/11 9,887 - - - 9,887 156p  31/0317
01/10/16t0
Michael Dunn 16/08/11 9,887 - - - 9,887 156p  31/0317

The closing mid-market share price on 29" November 2013 was 357 6p and the price range dunng the year was 219 Op to 361 5p
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Annual Report on Remuneration {continued)
STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS' SHAREHOLDING AND SHARE INTERESTS (AUDITED INFORMATION)

The interests of the directors and therr connected persons in the issued ordinary share captal of the Company are shown inthe

table below
As at 30" November 2013 As at 1* December 2012
PSP awards PSP awaxds
Vestod Vested

Ordinary but Not yet ESOS SAYE Ordinary but Not yet ESOS SAYE
Drrector shares unexercised vested  awards! awards shams  Unaxersad vestad awards! awards
Executive director
Bill Oliver 527469 263,978 014,380 208,565 6,941 494813 134498 965457 208565 6,941
Steve Burke? 364,883 - 603,323 86,140 9,B87 264,153 88,744 637,025 86,140 9,887
Michael Dunn 96,568 - 587,660 - 9,887 76,168 - 448,858 - 9,887
Non-executive director
Bill Shannon 65,000 - - - - 50,000 - - - -
Kay Chaldecott 10,000 - - - - - - - - -
Simon Clarke 4,612,657 - - - - 4,612,657 - - - -
David Garman 10,000° - - - - 10,000 - - - -
Kathenne Innes Ker -3 - - - - - - - - -
Lesley James 10,000 - - - - 10,000 - - - -
Richard Mully? - - - - - - - - - -
John Salmon 30,000 - - - - 25000 - - - -

1 Awards have vested but have not been exercised
2 Exercised PSP awards granted i 2000 and 2010 Tha number of shares retained on exercise following the sake of sufficient shares to satisfy the tax hability ansing on

exercrse 1s included in the number of ordinary shares held Further detals can be found on page 90

3 On retirement fromn the Board on 27" March 2013
4 Appointed to the Board on 1 Septermber 2013

There were no changes in these shareholdings or interests between 30" November 2013 and the date of this report

In order to reinforce the alignment of therr interests with those of shareholders, executive directors are required to build up a holding
of ordinary shares in the Company over a five year penod worth at least 2009 of therr base salary (increased from 100% of base
salary with effect from 1% December 2013) As set out in the table below, both Bill Oliver and Steve Burke have met or exceeded
the shareholding requirement, Michael Dunn has until December 2015 te achieve the required holding

Ordinary shares held as at Shareholdingrequiermentas Sharehokding at 307 Novermber 2013 as
Exo0UTve drector 30" Nevernber 2013 % of base salary % of base saary!
Bill Oliver 527469 200% 413%
Steve Burke 364,883 200% 433%
Michael Dunn 96,568 200% 126%

1 Based on the closing mid-market share prce on 28% November 2013 of 357 6p and salary as at 30™ Novernber 2013

The Gommuittee has noted the views of an institutional investor that long-term incentive arangements should be subject to
a minimum holding penod of five years between the date of grant of an award and the sale of the resulting shares Given the

substanhal shareholding requirement set out above, the Committee does not currently feel that such holding penods are necessary
for the Company’s PSP amangements It will however continue to moniter developments in this area and keep the matter

under review
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PENSION ENTITLEMENTS (AUDITED INFORMATION)

All executive directors recetve a pension contribution of 15% of base salary which s paid either into the defined contnbution
sechon of the Company’s pension scheme or as a cash allowance in lieu of pension contnbution {or a combination of both)
No compensation 1s offered for any additional tax suffered by an executive director in the event that the value of their pension
exceeds the statutory Lifetime Allowance

For the year ended 30" November 2013, Bill Oliver received a cash allowance in lieu of pension contributions which amounted
to £68,547 (2012 £66,875) The other executive directors receved Company contnbutions to the pension scheme as follows
Steve Burke £45,228 (2012 £44,125) and Michael Dunn £39,832 (2012 £40,170)

Steve Burke 1s also a deferred member of the defined benefit section of the Company’s pension scheme, which was closed to
new members in 1999 and to future accrual in 2008 Benefits are based on years of credited service and final pensionable pay,
the maximum benefit generally payable under the scheme 1s two-thirds of final pensionable pay

Information required by the Regulations in respect of defined benefit pension arangements are set out below

Accrued Accrued Increase n

pensionat pension at Increase n accrued pension

30 Novernber  30'" November  acorued penson dunng tha year

Ageat30" Normal rebrement 20121 20131 dunng theyear (exchud ng nflaton)

Novermber 2013 age Tpa £pa £pa fpa

Steve Burke 54 65 26,6712 27,2692 508 0

1 The accrued annual pension ncludes entitiements eamed as an ermployee prior 1o becoming an executive director as well as for qualifying services after becomng an
executve director and 1s that which would be paid annually on retirement at age 85 based on service to the end of the year

2 These figures have been calculated by applying defermed revaluation to Steve Burke's deferred pension as at 1 September 2009 being the date that accrual ceased
under the defined benefits sechion of the scheme

3 The following 1 addiional nformation relating to the defined benefit pension arrangements applicable to Steve Burke

= Nommal rebrement age 1s 65 years Retirement may take place at any age after age 55 subject to Company consent  Pensiens may be reduced to allow for ther
earlier payment

— There are no death in service benefits payable and no additional benefits due on early retrement
— Deferred pensions are assumed to ncrease in line with CPIl capped at 5% per annum in the penod before retirement

Further information on the Company’s pension scheme 1s shown 1n note 18 to the Group Financial Statements

PAYMENTS TO PAST DIRECTORS AND FOR LOSS OF OFFICE (AUDITED INFORMATION)

No director left dunng the year and no payments for loss of office were made No payments were made to former directors who were
not directors at the time of payment
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Annual Report on Remuneration {continued)
HISTORIC COMPANY PERFORMANCE AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

The following information allows companson of the Company’s TSR (based on share pnce growth and dividends reinvested) with the
remuneration of Bill Oliver, Chief Executive, over the last five financial years

CHART
REMOVED

The chart is prepared in accordance with the Regulations i shows the Company's TSR and that of the FTSE 250 and the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment &
Services Indices based on an iniial investment of £100 on 30" November 2008 and values at intervering financial year ends over a five year penod to 30" Novermnber 2013
Since the Company was a constituent of both the FTSE 250 and the FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment & Services Indices dunng the year, these are considered to be
appropnate benchmarks for the graph

Chief Exacutive remuneration for year ended 307 Navernber 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Total remuneration (£000) 876 02 1,049 1,672 2,184
Annual bonus awarded (as a % of maximum opportunity) 5092 80% 95% 20% 95%
PSP vesting (as a % of maximum opporiunity) 0% 0% 0% 45 77%° 100%

1 Total remuneration includes those elements shown i the single total figure of remuneration table on page 87

2 In addrtion to the annual bonus the Chief Executive was also awarded a one-off, exceptional payment of £100000 in relation to the successful equity raising and
financial restructuring undertaken in the year

3 Comprises 45 64% of the 2009 PSP awards and 45 89% of the 2010 PSP awards

CHANGE IN REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE COMPARED TO EMPLOYEES

The table below show the percentage change tn salary, benefits and annual bonus between the years ended 30" November 2013
and 30" November 2012 for both the Chief Executive and for all permanent employees of the Company

% change In base salary % change N benefits % changs n annual benus eamed
Chief Executive 25% 34% 82%
All permanent employges! 3 2% 74% 59%

1 Reflects tha change n average remuneration for alf permanent employeas, excluding Bl Oliver
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RELATIVE SPEND ON PAY

The table below shows the total expenditure on remuneration for all employees of the Company {including pension, vanable pay
and soctal secunty costs) compared to other key financial indicators as reported In the audited financral statements for the last two
financial years Information in respect of profit and net asset value performance has been provided for context

Year ended 30 Novermber
Relevart note to the

Measue francal staterments 2012 2013 5% ncrease
Total spend on pay 3c £149m £15 5m 4%
Profit before all tax 2a £52 8m £82.2m 56%
Dmidends paid’ 7 £6 8m £8.2m 21%
Equity attnbutable to

owners of the Company? 29 £502 6m £614.2m 22%

1 Durng the year a total of 20,016,057 shares were tssued as part of the equity placing completed in March 2013 Dividends pad per share in the year ended 30"
November 2013 ncreased by 10% to 3 75p (2012 3 41p)

2 Equity atinbutable to owners of the Company for the year ended 30™ Novernber 2013 includes net proceeds of £47 9m from the equity placing completed n March
2013 Net asset value per share for the year ended 30" November 2013 increased by 11% to 278 7p {2012 250 8p)

IMPLEMENTATION OF REMUNERATION POLICY FOR 2013/14

Base salary
In ine with the cost of iving salary Increase awarded to the Company’s employees, the executive directors received an annual salary
increase of 3% with effect from 1% December 2013 Base salaries payable from this date are as follows

Executive director £
Bill Olver 470,687
Steve Burke 310,568
Michagl Dunn 282,730

Benefits and pension arrangements
Benefits and pension arrangemenis for the financial year ending 30" November 2014 will be consistent with the respective policies
detalled on pages 79 and 80

Annual bonus

The annual bonus arrangements for the financial year ending 30™ November 2014 will operate on the same basis as for 2012/13 and
will be consistent with the annual bonus policy detalled on page 80 (including the Committee’s ovemding discretion to ensure that
payments reflect its view of corporate performance, the requirement for directors to invest an amount equal to one-third of the net
bonus received in the Company’s shares and clawback prowisions)

Executive directors will have the opportunity to earn a bonus of up to 125% of salary based on achievernent of the following measures

Measure Proporton of salary payable

Corporate * Growth in shareholders’ equity net asset value per share For on target performance 65%
* Increase In profit before all tax For maximum performance 105%
» Increase In total dvidend for the year
+ Geanng levels
+ Covenant comphance
* Achievernent against a number of strategic objectives

Personal Achievement against a number of operational objectives For on target performance 10%

For maximum performance 20%

The measures have been selected to reflect a range of key financial and operational goals which support the Company’s strategic
objectives The respective targets have not been disclosed as they are considered by the Board to be commercially sensitive
However, refrospective disclosure of the targets and performance against them will be prowided in the Remuneration Report for the
year ending 30" November 2014 provided that they do not remain commercially sensttive at that time

Bonus payments will not be dependent on achievement of any single target in 1solation, since the measures and targets are all of key
importance to the short- and longer-term health of the Company and the Committee does not wish to distort behaviour by focusing
on a single element The executive directors’ performance will be assessed indmdually by the Committee against the measures and
targets, relying on audited information where appropnate, and having regard to the value which has been created for shareholders
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Corporate Govemance

Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

Annual Report on Remuneration (continued)

Long-term ncentives — PSP

Asin 2012/13, PSP awards granted to executive directors in the financial year ending 30" November 2014 will be over shares worth
125% of salary and will be consistent with the long-term incentives policy detailed on page 81 (including the application of the two
underpin conditions before awards can vest and the clawback provisions)

The Committee has undertaken a review of the TSR performance targets which wilf apply to the awards in order to consider changes
in the outlook for the sector and the Company It remains satisfied that the existing targets remain sufficiently challenging and intends
to apply these to the awards to be granted in 2014, these targets are set out 1n the table below and will be measured over the three
financial years ending on 30" November 2016

Viasting of award at Vestng of award &t
Threshold threshold Masxarmum maxamum
Performance measure Weghting performance performance performanca perfomance
Absoclute TSR growth 50% of award 20% 12 5% 50% 50%
TSR relative to FTSE All-Share Real Estate Investment
& Services Index 50% of award Equal to Index 12 5% 120% of Index 50%

Vesting of awards between threshold and maximum performance will be on a straight-ine basis

In calculating TSR, a three month average i1s used at both the start and the end of the performance period to ensure that the
calculation 1s not impacted by potential volatility ansing from day-to-day share pnice fluctuations The TSR data and relatve
positioning of St Modwen 1s obtained from J P Morgan Cazenove to ensure that perfomance 1s independently venfied

Chaiman and non-executive director fees
Following a review by the Board, the annual fees payable to the Charman and non-executive directors with effect from
1% December 2013 are as follows

Base fes £
Charman 150,000!
Non-executive directors 41,2002
Addibonal fees® £
Senior Independent Director 9,000
Audit Committee Chair 9,000
Remuneration Gommittee Charr 8,000

1 The fee payable to the Chairman had remamned unchanged since his appomtment in 2010 and was increased from £135,000 to reflect both performance and relative
market positioning

2 Fee increased by 3% m Ime with the cost of living salary increase awarded 10 employees with effect from 1% December 2013

3 The lee payable to the Senior Independent Director was ncreased from £6,000 with effect from 27 March 2013 No further mcreases have been apphied to the
addmional fees payable

DILUTION LIMITS

In line with the rules of the PSP, ESOS and SAYE, the Company observes the recommendation of the Association of Bntish Insurers
that the number of new shares that may be 1ssued to satisfy awards is restncted to 10% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the
Company over any roling 10 year pertod Whilst not formally wathin the rules of the Company’s existing executive share schemes,
the Company also adheres to the recommended 5% in any rolling 10 year limit for its discretionary schemes

The total number of shares which could be allotted under the Company’s share schemes compared to the dilution imits as at
30" November 2013 was as follows

Type of scheme Larvet Actual
All schemes 10% 471%
Executive schemes only 5% 443%

The Company has, since 1998, satisfied awards under all schemes from rnarket-purchased shares sourced from the
St Modwen Properties PLC Employee Share Trust (the Trust) which 1s administered by an external trustee The Trust currently holds
a total of 72,582 shares in the Company (2012 215,754 shares) and has waived the nght to receive dividends paid on these shares
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COMMITYTEE MEMBERSHIP

The Commuttee’s compaosition 1s kept under review by the Norminabon Committee, which is responsible for making
recommendations to the Board as to ts membership

As at the date of this report, the Committee compnses the following independent non-executive drectors, all of whom served
throughout the financial year unless indicated otherwise below

Diractor Rermuneration Comimittes poston
Lesley James Charr
Kay Chaldecott Member
Richard Mully Member (from appontment to the Board on 19! September 2013)
John Salmen Member
Bill Shannon Member

Simon Clarke attends meetings of the Committee as an observer The secretary 1o the Committee 5 Tanya Stote, Company
Secretary David Garman and Kathenne Innes Ker were members of the Commuttee until their retirement from the Board on
27" March 2013

Committee members’ attendance at meetings Is set out in the table on page 63 Their biographical details can be found on pages
56 and 57

Allmembers of the Committee receive an appropnate Induction to ensure that they have a sound and objective understanding of the
principles of, and recent developments In, executive remuneration matters Ongoing training 1s undertaken as required

ADVICE PROVIDED TO THE COMMHITEE

New Bndge Street (NBS), a trading name of Aon Hewitt Limited (the parent company of NBS) and part of Aon plc, was appointed
by the Committee in 2010 following a tender process to provide independent advice on remuneration matters Representatives from
NBS attend Committee meetings and provide adwvice to the Commuttee Charr outside of meetings as necessary In 2012/13 NBS
provided specific advice on performance condrttons for long-term incentives, the Regulations and therr impact on the Directors’
Remuneration Report, and share dilution kmits Fees paid to NBS in the year totalled £35,500

NBS 1s a member of the Remuneration Consultants Group and operates voluntanly under the Group’s code which sets out the
scope and conduct of the role of executive remuneration consultants when advising UK Iisted comparnies On the basis that neither
NBS nor Aon Hewitt Limited undertakes any other work for the Company, the Commuittee is satisfied that the advice provided by
NBS remains objectiva and independent Monetheless, the Committee intends to review the arrangements by which it receves
independent advice dunng 2014

The Commuttee also receives input from Bill Oliver, the Chief Executive, on the remuneration arvangements of the other executive
directors and of the Company Secretary, and advice from Tanya Stote, the Company Secratary, ongovernance matters Neisther the
Chief Executive nor the Company Secretary were present when their own remuneraton was discussed

STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDER VOTING AT THE AGM

At the AGM held on 27" March 2013 votes cast in respect of directors' remuneration were as follows

For Aganst
Resoksbon No. of votes % of vote Na. of votes %olvots  Totalvatescast  Votes wathheld!
To approve the Directors’
Remuneration Report 165,229,138 93 08% 1,535,720 082% 166,764,858 42,382

1 A vote withheld is not 2 vote m ksw and 15 not counted in the calculrbon of the proportion of votes cast for or aganst a resoluton
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Report

STRATEGIC REPORT

The Comparies Act 2006 requires the directors to prepare a Strategic Report which contains a farr review of the Company’s
business and a description of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties that it faced The Strateqic Report for the year ended
30" November 2013 1s set out from the inside front cover of this Report to page 55

POST-BALANCE SHEET EVENTS AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

There were no post-Balance Sheet events in respect of the year ended 30" November 2013 Likely future developments are
described in the Strategic Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authonty require certan information to be included in a corporate
governance statement in the Directors’ Report Information that fulfils the requirements of the corporate governance statement can
be found in the Corporate Governance section on pages 59 to 97 and 1s incorporated into this Directors’ Report by reference

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM of the Company will be held at 12 00 noon on Fnday, 28" March 2014 at the Marketing Suite, Innovation Centre, 1 Devon
Way, Longbridge Technology Park, Birmingham B31 2TS The notice of meeting, which ncludes the special business to be
transacted and an explanatton of all the resoluticns to be considered at the meeting, Is set out on pages 155 to 164

DIVIDEND

The directors recommend a final dvidend of 2 67p per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 30* November 2013, to be paid
on 4% Apnl 2014 to ordinary shareholders on the register on 77 March 2014 This, together with the intenm dividend of 1 33p per
share paid on 37 September 2013, brings the total dividend for the year to 4 00p per share (2012 3 63p per share)

SHARE CAPITAL

The Company has a single class of share capital which 1s divided into ordinary shares of 10p each The i1ssued share capital of the
Cempany 1s set out in note K to the Company Financial Statements The Company does not currentty hold any shares in treasury

At the 2013 AGM, shareholders authonsed the Company to make market purchases of up to 20,036,093 ordinary shares,
representing 10% of the i1ssued share capital at that time, and to allot up to an aggregate nominal amount of £13,357,385
These authonties expire at the 2014 AGM Dunng the year ended 30™ November 2013, no shares were allotted or repurchased
Resolutions to renew these authorrties will be proposed at the 2014 AGM

St Modwen operates an Employee Share Trust (Trust) to satisfy the vesting and exercise of awards of ordinary shares made under
the Company’s share-based incentive amangements As at 30" November 2013, the Trust held 72,582 shares (2012 215,754
shares), representing 0 03% (2012 0 11%) of the Company's issued share capital The Trust deed contains a dividend wamver
provision In respect of these shares Any voting or other similar decisions relating to shares held by the Trust would be taken by the
trustee, who may take account of any recommendations of the Company There were no purchases of shares by the Trust during
the financial year

Rights and obligations attaching to shares

The haolders of ordinary shares in the Company are entitled to receive dividends when declared, to receve the Company's Annual
and Half Year Reports, to attend and speak at general meetings of the Company, to appeint proxies and to exercise voting nghts
Full details of the deadlines for exercising voting nghts in respect of the resolutions to be considered at the 2014 AGM are set out
in the notice of meeting on pages 155 to 164

Restnctions on the transfer of shares

As at 30™ November 2013 and the date of this report, except as referred to below, there are no restnctions on the transfer of ordinary
shares tn the Company, no imitations on the helding of ordinary shares and no requirements to obtain the approval of the Company,
or of other holders of ordinary shares in the Company, for a transfer of shares

The directors may refuse to register the transfer of a share in certificated form which 1s not fully paid or on which the Company has
a lien, where the instrument of transfer does not comply with the requirements of the Company's Articles of Association, or If the
transfer 1s 1n respect of more than one class of share or 15 In favour of more than four jont holders The directors may also refuse to
reqister a transfer of a certificated share, which represents an interest of at least 0 25% in a class of shares, {ollowing the failure by
the member or any other person appearng to be interested in the shares to prowvide the Company with information requested under
section 793 of the Companies Act 2006

Transfers of uncertificated shares must be camed out using CREST and the directors can refuse to register the transfer of an
uncertificated share in accordance with the regulations goverring the operation of CREST

The Company 15 not aware of any agreements between shareholders that may result inrestnctions on the transfer of shares or on
voting nghts
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Substantial shareholders
As at 30* November 2013, the Company had been notified of the following holdings of voting nghts in its shares in accordance with
the Disclosure and Transparency Rules of the Financial Conduct Authority

Dwect Indrect Total % of
Shareholder vobngnghts % of vating nghts vobngnghts % of voingnghts voting nghts voting nghts
Lady Clarke and connected parties
(excluding Simon Clarke) 19,962,539 906% - - 19,962,539 9.06%
J D Leavesley and connected parties 18,263,382 8 29% - - 18,263,382 8 29%
BlackRock, Inc - - 11,075,661 503% 11,075,661 503%
TR Property Investment Trust PLC 6,802,638 309% - - 6,802,638 3.09%

As at 3© February 2014, the Company had not been advised of any changes or additions to the interests set out above

DIRECTORS
The following served as directors dunng the year ended 30™ November 2013

Name Postion as at 30" Novernber 2013 Serwice n the year ended 307 Novernber 2013
Steve Burke Construction Director Served throughout the year
Kay Chaldecott Independent non-executive director Served throughout the year
Simon Clarke Non-executive director Served throughout the year
Michael Dunn Group Finance Director Served throughout the year
David Garman N/A Retired on 27" March 2013
Kathenne Innes Ker N/A Retired on 27% March 2013
Lesley James Independent non-executive director Served throughout the year
Richard Mully? Independent non-executive director Appointed on 12 September 2013
Bill Oliver Chief Executive Served throughout the year
John Salmon? Senior Independent Director Served throughout the year
Bill Shannon Chairman Served throughout the year

1 Appomt‘ed Senior Independent Directar on 1* December 2013
2 Senor Independent Director from 28™ March 2013 to 30" November 2013

The biographical detalls of all the directors serving at 30" November 2013, including details of ther relevant expenience and other
significant commitments, are shown on pages 56 and 57
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Report (continued)

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED}

Following his appointment to the Board in September 2013 and in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, Richard
Mully will retire and offer himself for election at the 2014 AGM All other directors will retire and offer themselves for re-election in
accordance with the Code

The Articles of Association provide that a director may be appointed by an ordinary resolution of shareholders or by the existing
directors, either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addiional director

The Directors’ Rernuneration Report, which inciudes details of directors’ service contracts and therr interests in the Company’s
shares, 15 set out on pages 76 to 97 With the exception of service contracts or those contracts detalled in note 22 to the Group
Finaneial Statements, no director had a matenal interest in any significant contract with the Company or any of its operating
companies at any time duning the year

Copies of the service contracts of the executive directors and the letters of appointment for the non-executive directors are
available for inspection at the Company’s registered office dunng normal business hours and will be available for Inspection at the
Company's AGM

Powers of the directors
The Board may exercise all the powers of the Company, subject to the Company’s Articles of Association, UK legislation including
the Companies Act 2006 and any directions given by the Company in general meeting

The directors have been authonsed by the Company's Articles of Association to 1ssue and allot ordinary shares and to make market
purchases of the Company's own shares These powers are referred to shareholders for renewal at each AGM Further information 1s
set out under the heading ‘share capital’ on page 98

Conflicts of interest

Under the Companies Act 2006, directors have a statutory duty to avoid conflicts of interest with the Company As permitted by the
Act, the Company’s Articles of Association enable directors to authonse actual or potential conflicts of interest Formal procedures
for the notification and authorisation of such conflicts are in place These procedures enabled non-conflicted directors to impose
limits or conditions when giving or reviewing authonsation and require the Board to review the register of directors’ conflicts twice
yearly and on an ad hoc basis when necessary Any potential conflicts of nterest in relaton to newly appointed directors are
considered by the Board pnor to appomntment

Diectors' fiakility insurance and indemnity

The Gompany has arranged appropriate Insurance cover In respect of potential legal action taken against its directors To the extent
permitted by law and in accordance with its Articles of Association, the Company also indemnifies the directors against any claims
made aganst them as a consequence of the execution of thewr duties as directors of the Company

ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

The Company’s Articies of Association, which, In accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006, may only be amended
by a special resolution of the shareholders, are avallable on its website www stmodwen co uk

CHANGE OF CONTROL

The Company 15 party to a number of committed bank facilibes which, upon a change of control, are terminable at the bank’s
discretion Under such circumstances, awards made under the Company’s share-based incentive arangements would normally vest
or become exercisable subject to the satisfaction of any performance conditions In addtion, the Company’s retail bondholders have
an ophion to require the Company to redeem the bonds should a change of control event occur

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's exposure to and management of capital nsk, market nsk, credit nsk and lquidrty nsk 1s set cut in note 186 to the Group
Financial Statements
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EMPLOYEES

St Modwen ts committed to regular communication and consultation with its employees and encourages employee involverment
mits performance News concerning St Modwen, its activities and performance 15 published on the Company's intranet

Quarterty management meetings are held to inform senior staff about matters affecting them as employees, at which therr feedback
& sought on deaisions hkely to affect therr interest, and where a common awareness of the financial and economic factors affecting
the Company's performance 1s developed, this information 1s then cascaded to all employees A performance-related annuat bonus
scheme and share option arrangements are designed tc encourage employee nvolvement in the success of the Company

Empioyment of disabled persons

It1s the policy of the Company to give full and far consideration to applications for employment recerved from disabled persons,
having regard to therr particular aptitudes and abilities The policy includes, where prachcable, the continued employment

of those who may become disabled durng ther employment with the Company and the prowvision of appropnate training

St Modwen provides the same opportunities for training, career development and promotion for dsabled as for other employees

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS

All disclosures concerning the Group's greenhouse gas emissions (as required to be disclosed under the Companies Act 2006
(Strategic Report and Directors’ Report) Regulations 2013} are contained in the Corporate Social Responsibility Report (which forms
part of the Strategic Report) on pages 50 to 55

POLITICAL DONATIONS

In accordance with the Company's policy, no political donations were made and no political expenditure was incurred during
the year

GOING CONCERN

The Group’s business activities, together with the factors hikely to affect its future development, performance and position, are set out
in the Strategic Report The directors have considered these factors and reviewed the financial postion of the Group, Including its
joint ventures and associates

The review included an assessment of future funding requirements based on cash flow forecasts extending for 18 months from the
date of signing the Financial Statements, valuation projections and the abiity of the Group to meet covenants on existing borrowing
facilities The directors were satisfied that the forecasts and projections were based on realistic assumphions and that the sensitivites
applied in reviewing downside scenarios were appropnate

As descnbed in the Financial Review on pages 43 to 45, there are no corporate facilities that require renewal before November 2014,
when the Group’s £100m facility with Lloyds Banking Group matures The directors have reviewed the options available in respect of
this and the Group’s other banking faciies, together with opportunities to increase the diversity and longevity of debt facdies Asa
result the directors are satisfied that the Group will have sufficient ongoing facilities avalable for the Group’s financing requirements

Based on their assessment, the directors are of the opinion that the Group has adequate available resources to fund its operations
for the foreseeahle future and so determine that it remains appropnate for the Financial Statements to be prepared on a going
concern basis

AUDITCR

The Company’s auditor, Deloitte LLP has expressed a wilingness to continue in office and resolutions for their re-appaintment and
to authonse the directors to determine their remuneration will be proposed at the 2014 AGM The Board, on the advice of the Audit
Committee, recommends ther re-appointment
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Corporate Governance

Directors’ Report (continued)

STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES

The directors are responsible for prepaning the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Report and the Financial Statements
in accordance with applicable law and reguiations

Company law requires the directors to prepare Financial Statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have
prepared the Group Financial Statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union and the Company Financial Statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law)

Under company law the drectors must not approve the Financial Statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and farr
view of the state of affars of the Group and the Company and of therr profit or loss for that peniod

In preparnng these Financial Statements, the directors are required to
* select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,
* make jJudgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

+ state whether IFRSs as adopted by the European Union and apphicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards have been
followed, subject to any matenal departures disclosed and explained in the Group and Company Financtal Statements
respectively, and

* prepare the Financial Statements on the going concern basis unless it 1s inappropnate to presums that the Company will continue
In business

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Company’s and
the Group’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Company and the Group
and enable them to ensure that the Financial Statements and the Directors’ Remuneration Report comply with the Companies Act
2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding
the assets of the Company and the Group and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other iregularities

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integnity of the corporate and financial information included on the Company's
websrte {www stmodwen co uk) Legislation in the Unrted Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of Financial
Staterments may differ from legislation in other junisdictions

Each of the dwectors in office as at the date of this report, whose names and functions are set out on pages 56 and 57, confirm that
to the best of therr knowledge

= the Financial Statements, prepared in accordance with the relevant financial reporting framework, give a true and far view of
the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation
taken as a whole, and

= the Directors’ Report and the Strategic Report include a fair review of the development and performance of the business and
the position of the Company and the undertakings included in the consolidation taken as a whole, together with a descnption
of the pnncipal nsks and uncertainties that they face

Each of the directors in office as at the date of this report also confirms that
+ 50 far as the director 1s aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor 1s unaware, and

+ the director has taken all the steps that he/she ought to have taken as a director in order to make himself/herself aware of any
relevant audit infermation and to establish that the Company’s auditor 1s aware of that nformation

This confirmation s given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of section 418 of the Companes Act 2006

The directors as at the date of this report consider that the Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013, taken as a whole, 1s far,
balanced and understandable and provides the infermation necessary for shareholders to assess the Company’s and the Group’s
performance, business mode! and strategy

Approved by the Board and signed on its behalf by

Tanya Stote
Company Secretary

3 February 2014
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Financial Staterments

Independent Auditor’s Report

to the members of St Modwen Properties PLC in respect of the Group Financial Statements

Cpinion on Financial Statements of
St Modwen Properties plc

In our opirion

* the Financial Statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Group’s and of the
Parent Company's affairs as at 30" November 2013 and of the Group's profit for the year
then ended,

+ the Group Financial Statements have been property prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union,

* the Parent Company Financial Statements have been properly prepared in accordance
with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice, and

+ the Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006 and, as regards the Group Financial Statements, Article 4 of the
IAS Regulation

The financial statements compnse the Group Income Statement, the Group Statement of

Comprehensive Income, the Group and Parent Company Balance Sheets, the Group Cash

Flow Statement, the Group Statement of Changes in Equity and the related Group notes 1 to

22 and Parent Company notes A to P The financial reporting framework that has been applied

in the preparation of the Group Financial Statements 1s applicable law and IFRSs as adopted

by the European Unton The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the
preparation of the Parent Company Financtal Statements 1s applicable law and United

Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice)

Going concern

As required by the Listing Rules we have reviewed the directors’ statement contained within
the Directors’ Report on page 101 that the Group 1s a going concern We confirm that

* we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the
preparation of the financial statements Is appropnate, ard

= we have not identified any matenal uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concem

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement 1s not a

guarantee as to the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern

Our assessment of risks of
matenal misstatement

Risk

The assessed nsks of matenal misstatement descrbed below are those that had the greatest
effect on our audit strategy, the allocation of resources n the audit and directing the efforts of
the engagement team

How the scope of our audit responded to the nsk

Valuation of investment property
Valuation of investment property 1s an
area of judgement which could matenalty
affect the Financial Statements The
extemnal valuers make a number of key
eshmates and assumptons, certan of
which require mput from management,
These estimates and assumptions are
subject to market forces and will change
overime

We met with the third-party valuers, Jones Lang LaSalle LLP (JLL), appointed by management
for each element of the property portfolio and we assessed the reasonableness of the
significant judgements and assumphons applied in their valuation model, including occupancy
rates, lease incentives, break clauses and yields With the assistance of a member of the audit
team who 1s a chartered surveyor we tested a sample of properties through benchmarking,
understanding the valuation methodology and wider market analysis along with testing the
integnty of a sample of the data prownded to JLL We venfied the integnty of a sample of
information provided to valuers by management relating to rental Income, occupancy and life
of the lease

Valuation of inventones

Valuation of inventones requires
management to ensure that thase
properties under construction and land

We tested the net realisable value of inventones through testing a sample of those valued by
management (which 1s the majonty) using their Intemal site apprassals, and those valued by
JLL to focus on those with lower margins and assessed the reasonableness of the
assumptions applied

held under option are camed at the

lower of cost and net realisable value

Accounting for property Using Sale and Purchase agreements we camed out testing on purchase cost or sales
acquisiiens and disposals proceeds, re-calculation of profit or loss on disposal and consideration around whether the
Accounting for property acquisttions profit or loss on disposal provides further ewidence of the camying values of other assets in
and dispasals as these can be the portfolio

significant and complex transactions
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Financial Statements

Independent Auditor’s Report (continued)

to the members of St. Modwen Properties PLC in respect of the Group Financial Statements

Risk

How the scope of our audit responded to the rnsk

Accounting for taxation
Accounting for taxation to ensure
appropnate tax provisions have
been recorded

We tested the Group tax workings and consiclered the current and deferred tax implications of
preperty acquistions, disposals and valuation movements which occurred dunng the year We
utihised our tax specialists to apprase the likely outcome of uncertain tax positions and
considered the adequacy of disclosures made in the Annual Report

Covenant compliance and
liquidity disclosure

Covenant compliance and fiquidity
disclosure which are dependent on
cash management and the
associated headroom available,
property valuations and the terms of
the Group's finance facilties

We tested comphance with loan covenants and reviewed management’s forecasts and
assumptions for ongeing covenant compliance and avalable headroom on these covenants
and existing finance facilites We also confirmed that adequate disclosures have been made in
the Annual Report

Revenue recognition

Revenue recoanition, including the
timing of revenue recognition in relation
to the sale of property, recognition of
revenue ansing from construction
contracts and rental mcome ansing
from investment properties

We camed out testing around cut off and timing of revenue recognition, the treatment of
discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales taxes or duty as well as substantive testing,
analytical procedures and assessing whether the revenue recognion policies adopted
complied with IFRSs

The Audit Committee’s consideration of these nsks 1s set out on page 71

Our audit procedures relating to these matters were designed in the context of our audrt of the Financial Statements as a whole, and not to

express an opinion on indnadual accounts or disclosures Our opinien on the Financial Statements 1s not modified wath respect to any of

the nsks descnbed above, and we do not express an opinion on these individual matters

Cur application of matenality

We define matenality as the magnrtude of misstatement in the Financial Statements that makes
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable person would be
changed or influenced We use matenality both n planining the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work

When establishing our overall audit strategy, we determined a magnitude of uncorrected
misstatements that we judged would be matenal for the Financial Statements as a whole We
deterrmined planning matenality for the Group tobe £6 2 million, which 1s approximately 7 5%
of adjusted pre-tax profit, below 1% of equity

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to the Committee all audit ,
differences in excess of £0 12 milhon, as well as differences below that threshold that, in our .
view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds

We also report to the Audit Committes on disclosure matters that we identified when assessing
the overall presentation of the Financial Statements

An overview of the scope of
our audit

Cur Group audit scope focused pnmanly on the audit work of the major ines of business of
which the Group auditor 1s responsible and as such there I1s no component auditor reporting
into Group The Group auditor is responsible for the other significant nes of business where
joint venture agreements are in place, notably around the Key Property Investments (KPl) and
VSM Uxbndge (Group) Limited (VSM Uxbndge} KPI accounts for 119% of the Group’s net
assels, 9% of the Group's revenue and 25% of the Group's recumng pre-tax profit VSM
Uxbndge Group accounts for 4% of the Group’s net assets, 0% of the Group's revenue and
4% of the Group’s recumng pre-tax profit

Opirion on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion

* the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been property prepared in
accordance with the Companies Act 20086, and

+ the information given in the Strategic Report and the Directors’ Report for the financial year
for which the Financial Statements are prepared 1s consistent with the Financial Statements
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Matters on which we are required
to report by excephion

Adequacy of explanations received
and accounting records

Directors’ rernuneration

Corporate Governance statement

Our duty to read other information
in the Annual Report

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion

« we have not received all the nformation and explanations we require for our audt, or
» adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns
adequate for our audit have not been receved from branches not visited by us, or
» the Parent Company Financial Statements are not In agreement with the accounting

records and retumns
We have nothing to report In respect of these matters

Under the Companues Act 2006 we are also required to report of in our opinion certain
disclosures of directors’ remuneration have not been made or the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be audited 1s not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns We have nothing to report ansing from these matters

Under the Listing Rules we are also required to review the part of the Corporate Govemnance
statement relating to the Company’s compliance with nine provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code We have nothing to report ansing from our review

Under International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland), we are required to report to you ff,
in our opinion, information in the Annual Report s

+ matenally nconsistent with the information in the audited Financial Statements, or

s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or matenally inconsistent with, our knowledge of
the Group acquired in the course of performuing our audt, or

+ otherwise misleading

in particular, we are required to consider whether we have dentified any inconsistencies

between our knowledge acquired dunng the audit and the drectors’ statement that they

consider the Annual Report 1s fair, balanced and understandable and whether the Annual

Report appropnately discloses those matters that we communicated to the Audit Commuttee

which we consider should have been disclosed We confim that we have not identified any

such inconsistencies or misleading statements

Respectwve respensibilities of
directors and audrtor

As explaned more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilities Statement, the directors are
responsible for the preparation of the Financial Staternents and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view Our responsibiiity 1s to audit and express an opimion on the Financial
Staternents in accordance with applcable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK
and lreland) Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical
Standards for Auditors

This report 1s made solely 1o the Company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter
3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 Our audtt work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Company's members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s
report and for no other purpose  To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or
assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Scope of the audit of the
Financial Statements

M ’900&\)/‘4‘,
Jonathan Dodworth (Sentor Statutory Audrtor)

for and on behalf of Delortte LLP

An audit involves obtaining evidence abourt the amounts and cisclosures in the Financial
Statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the Financial Statements are free from
matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or ervor This iIncludes an assessment of
whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Group's and the Parent Company’s
circumstances and have been consistently applied and adequately disclosed, the
reasonableness of sigrificant accounting estmates made by the directors, and the overall
presentation of the Financial Statements In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial
information in the Annual Report to identify matenal inconsistencies with the audrited Financial
Statements and to identify any information that 1s apparently matenally incorrect based on, or
matenally inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by usin the course of performing the
audit If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or Inconsistencies we
consicer the implications for our report

Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audrtor

Bimingham, UK
3™ February 2014
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Financial Statements

Group Income Statement

for the year ended 30™ November 2013

2013 o2
Noias £m om
Revenue 1 161.1 2191
Net rental ncome 1 29.0 283
Development profits 1 247 224
Gains on disposal of Investments/investment properties 36 14
Investment property revaluation gains 8 326 64
Goodwill written off on corporate acquisition of investment properties - (13
Other net iIncome 1 2.9 28
Profits of joint ventures and associates (post-tax) 10 21.8 226
Administrative expenses 3 {19 9) (18 1)
Profit before interest and tax 947 645
Finance cost 4 {23 6} (223
Finance income 4 94 52
Profit before tax 805 474
Tax charge 5 (6 6} 51
Profit for the year 739 423
Attnbutable to
Equity attnbutable to owners of the Company 724 427
Non-controlling interests 18 {04
739 423
2013 2012
Ncies pence pence
Basic earnings per share 6 335 213
Diluted earnings per share 6 329 212

All results are denrved from continuing operations A reconciiation of non-statutory measures used in the Strategic Report 1s included
in note 2 to the Group Financial Statements
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Financial Statements

Group Balance Sheet

as at 30" November 2013
2013 2012
Notes £m £m
Non-current assets
Investment property 8 813 3 7704
Operating property, plant and equipment 9 66 68
Investments in joint ventures and associates 10 953 Hh2
Trade and other recewables 11 176 216
932 8 8740
Current assets
Inventones 12 2059 1752
Trade and other recevables 11 597 465
Cash and cash equivalents 74 89
2730 2306
Current habildies
Trade and other payables 13 {170 2) (155 6)
Borrowings 14 (62.5) 33
Tax payables 5 {3 4) (33)
{236.1) (162 2)
Non-current habilities
Trade and other payables i3 (46.2) (48 B)
Borrowings 14 (285 6) (3716)
Deferred tax 5 (10 9} {85}
{342 7) 4287)
Net assets 627.0 5137
Capntal and reserves
Share capital 17 22,0 200
Share premium account 1028 1028
Retained eamings 441.4 3776
Share incentwe reserve 21 24
Own sharas {0.3) {05
Other reserves 46 2 03
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 614 2 5026
Non-controlling interests 12.8 111
Total equity 6270 5137

These Financial Sjataments were approved by the Board of Directors on 39 February 2014 and were signed on s behalf by Bill
Olver and Mich4

Bill Oliver
Chief Executive

Michael Dunn

Group Finance Director
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Financial Statements

Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30™ November 2013

2013 2012
Noles £m £m
Profit for the year 73.9 423
Pension fund
- Actuanal losses 18 {01) 01
— Deferred tax thereon 18 - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 738 429
Attnibutable to
~ Owners of the Company 72.0 426
— Non-controlling interests 1B 04
Total comprehensive income for the year 738 42 2

Group Statement of Changes in Equity

for the two years ended 30" November 2013

Equity
attnbutable
Share Share to owners Non-
Share premum  Retained incentive Own Other ofthe controlling Total
capital account eamings reserve shares reserves Company nterest equity
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m £
At 30™ November 2011 200 1028 3418 — {05 03 4644 16 4780
Profit for the year attnbutable
to shareholders — — 427 - - - 427 04 423
Pension fund actuanal losses
(note 18) - - ©1) - - - 01 - oh
Total comprehensive income - - 426 - - - 426 04 422
Transfer share-based payments
provision to share incentive reserve - - - 21 - - 21 - 21
Share-based payment charge - - - 03 - - 03 - 03
Dwidends pad - - {68) — - - {68 ©1) 69
At 30" November 2012 200 1028 3776 24 {05 03 5026 11 5137
Profit for the year atinbutable
to shareholders - - 721 - - - 721 18 739
Pension fund actuanal losses
(nota 18) - - 01 - - - o - ©n
Total comprehensive income - - 720 - - - 720 18 738
Equity raise 20 — — — - 459 479 - 479
Share-based payment charge - - - {0 3} - - 03 - 03
Share transfers - - - - 02 - 02 - 02
Dividends paid - - 82 - - - 82 1) 83
At 30" November 2013 220 1028 441 4 21 {03) 46 2 614.2 128 627.0

On 1# March 2013 the Group completed a ‘cash box’ placing of 20,018,057 ordinary shares of 10p each at £2 45 per share
Net proceeds were £47 9m after share 1ssue costs, of which the £2 Om nomunal value of the shares was credited to share capital
with the balance to other reserves.

Own shares represent the cost of 72,5682 (2012 215,754) shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust The open market value of the
shares held at 30" November 2013 was £259,553 (2012 £469,912)
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Finanoial Statements

Group Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 30" November 2013

2013 202

Notes £m £m
Operating activites
Profit before interest and tax 947 645
Gains on disposals of investments/investment properhes (3 6) (14)
Share of profits of joint ventures and associates (post-1ax) 10 {21 8) (226)
Investment property revaluation gams 8 (32.6) {64)
Goodwill written off on corporate acquisition of investment properties - 13
Depreciation 9 056 08
Impairment losses on inventories 12 1.7 38
{Increase)/decrease m inventones {22 3) 857
Increase in trade and other recewvables {9.0) 40)
Increase/{decrease) in trade and other payables 218 {510)
Share options and share awards {0.1) 03
Tax paid 5(c) (41) 22
Net cash inflow from operating activities 252 385
Investing activihies
Investment property disposals 54.0 285
Investment property additions {74 5) {374
Property, plant and equipment additions {0.4) 03)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired with subsidiary - 04
Interest receved - 31
Dividends receved 17 —
Net cash outflow from investing activities {19.2) @7
Financing activities
Dividends paid 7 (8.2) 6 8)
Dwvidends paid to non-controlling interests {0.1) 01
Interest paid (20.3) (206)
Receipt of funds from equity placing 47.9 —
New borrowings drawn 510 988
Repayment of borrowings (77.8) (101 4)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (75) (301)
(Decrease)increase in cash and cash equivalents {1.5) 37
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 89 52
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 74 89
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Financial Statements

Accounting Policies

for the year ended 30" November 2013

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Group’'s Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Internationa Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
1ssued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and as adopted by the EU as they apply to the Group for the year
ended 30™ November 2013, applied in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act 2006

The Financial Statements have been prepared on the histoncal cost basis except for the revaluation of certain properties, dernvative
financial Instruments and the defined benefit section of the Group’s pension scheme

The Group’s functional currency 1s pounds sterling and its principal IFRSs accounting policies are set cut below

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The Group’s Financial Statements consolidate the Financial Statements of St Modwen Properties PLC and the entities it controls
Control compnses the power to govern the financial and operating policies of the investee and 1s achieved through direct or indirect
ownership of voting nghts or by contractual agreement A list of the pnincipal entrities controlled 1s given in note (F) of the Company’s
Financial Statements

VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited 1s 50% owned by St Modwen Properties PLC However, under the funding agreement, the Group
obtains the majonty of the benefits of the entity and also retains the majority of the residual nsks This entity Is therefore consolidated
n accordance with SIC 12 ‘Consolidation — Special Purpose Entrties’

All entities are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains control, and contnue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases All intra-Group transactions, balances, income and expense are elmnated on consolidation

Non-controlling interests represent the portion of profit or loss and net assets that are not held by the Group and are presented
separately within equity In the Group Balance Sheet

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The Group recognises its interests in joint ventures, being those entities over which the Group has jont contrel, using the equity
method of accounting Under the equity method, the interest tn the joint venture 1s camed in the Balance Sheet at cost plus
post-acquistion changes in the Group’s share of its net assets, less distnbutions recewved, less any imparment in value of indmidual
investments The Income Statement reflects the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entiies® results after interest and tax

Financial Statements of joint ventures are prepared for the same reporting penod as the Group Where necessary, adjustments are
made to bring the accounting policies used into line with those of the Group

The Group Statement of Comprehensive Income reflects the Group's share of any Income and expense recognised by the jointly
controlled entities outside the Income Statement

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group’s Interests In its assoclates, being those entiies over which it has significant nfluence and which are neither subsidianes
nor Jjoint ventures, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting, as descnbed above

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

The acquisition method of accounting 1s used to account for business combinations The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary compnses the fair values of the assets transferred, the habilities incurred and the equity interests issued by
the Group The consideration transferred also mcludes the fair value of any contingent consideration arrangement and the farr value
of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary

Acquisttion-related costs are expensed as incurred Identifiable assets acquired and labities and contingent liabilihies assumed in a
business combination are, with imited exceptions, measured intially at therr far values at the acquisition date

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recegnises any non-controlling interest i the acquiree either at far value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets

The excess of the consideration transferred and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree over the far value of the
Group's share of the net iIdentifiable assets acquired 1s recorded as goodwill If those amounts are less than the far value of the net
identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary and the measurement of all amounts has been reviewed, the difference 1s recognised
directly in the Income Statement as a bargain purchase

Whaere settlerent of any part of cash consideration 1s deferred, the amounts payable i the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange The discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing rate, which 1s the rate that a similar
borrowing could be abtained from an independent financier under comparable terms and condihons

Contingent consideration 15 classified either as equity or a financial iability Amounts classified as a financiat lability are subsequently
remeasured to far value with changes in fair value recognised i the Inceme Statement
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PROPERTIES

Investment properites

Investment properties, being freehold and leasehold properties held to earn rental income, for capital appreciation and/or for
undetermined future use, are camed at far value following mitial recognition at the present value of the consideration payable

To establish far value, investment properties are independently valued on the basis of market value Any surplus or defict ansing
1s recognised m the thcome Statement for the penod

Once classified as an investment property, a property remains in this category untl development with a view to sale commences,
at which pomnt the asset is transferred to inventones at current valuation

Where an nvestment property 1s being redeveloped for continued use as an investment property, the property remains within
investment property and any movement in valuation i1s recognised in the Income Statement

Investment property disposals are recognised en completion Profits and losses ansing are recegnised through the Income
Statement and the profit or loss on disposal 1s determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the camyng amount
of the asset

Investment properties are not depreciated

Inventones

inventones principally compnse properties held for sale, properties under construction and land under option Al inventones are
camed at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost compnses land, direct matenals and, where applcable, direct fabour costs that have been incurred in bnnging the inventories
to ther present location and condition When inventory includes a transfer from investment properties, cost 1s recorded as the book
value at the date of transfer Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less any further costs expected to be incurred
to completion and disposal

Operating property, plant and equipment
Operating property, plant and equipment 15 stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
Such cost includes costs directly attnbutable to making the asset capable of operating as intended

Depreciation 1s provided on all operating property, plant and equipment at rates calculated to wnte off the cost less estmated
residual value of each asset evenly over its expected useful life as follows

Leasehold operating properties — over the shorter of the lease term and 25 years

Plant, machinery and equipment — over two to five years

LEASES

The Group as lessee
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership
to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

Non-property assets held under finance leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease with a comresponding liability being
recognised for the far value of the leased asset or, If lower, the present value of the minimum lease payments | ease payments are
apportioned between the reduction of the lease liability and finance charges in the Income Statement so as to achieve a constant
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the hability Non-property assets held under finance leases are depreciated over the
shorter of the eshmated useful Irfe of the asset and the lease term

Freehold interests in leasehold investment properties are accounted for as finance leases with the present value of guaranteed
minimum ground rents included wrthin the carrying value of the property and within long-term liablities On payment of a guaranteed
ground rent, virtually all of the cost 1s charged to the Income Statement as interest payable, and the balance reduces the liabilrty.

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged in the Income Statement on a straight-ine basis over the tease term

The Group as lessor
Rental income from operating leases 1s recognised in the Income Statement on a straight-Ine basis over the lease term

INCOME TAXES

Current tax assets and labiities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or pad to, the taxation authonties,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date

The tax currently payable 1s based on the taxable result for the year The taxable result differs fromthe result as reported in the
Income Statement because it excludes tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductble n other years and it further
excludes rtems that are never taxable or deductible
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Financial Statements

Accounting Policies (continued)

for the year ended 30" November 2013

INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

Deferred income tax i1s recognised on all temporary differences ansing between the tax bases of assets and habilities and ther
carrying amounts n the Financial Statements, using the rates of tax expected to apply based on legislation enacted or substantively
enacted at the Balance Sheet date, with the following exceptions

* In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidianes, joint ventures and associates, where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it 1s probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse In the foreseeable future, and
* deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it 15 probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, camed forward tax credits or tax losses can be utihsed
Deferred iIncome tax assets and liabilities are measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply when
the related asset 1s realised or liability 1s settled, based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date
Deferred tax assets and labilities are offset when there 1s a legally enforceable nght to set off current tax assets against current tax
ltabiliies and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same authonty and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
lrabiliies on a net basis

Income tax 15 charged or credited directly to equity if it relates to items that are credited or charged to equity Otherwise, income tax
1s recogrised in the Income Statement

PENSIONS

The Group operates a pension scheme with defined benefrt and defined contnbution sechons The defined benefit section Is closed
to new members and, from 1* September 2009, to future accrual

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit section Is determined using the projected unit credit method, which
attnbutes entitlement to benefits to the current period {to determine current service cost) and to the current and pnor periods

(to deterrmine the present value of defined benefit obligation) and i1s based on actuanal advice Past service costs are recognised
in the Income Statement immediately if the benefits have vested

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change in present value of scheme obligations resulting from the
passage of time and 1s determined by applying the discount rate to the opening present value of the benefit obligation, taking into
account matenal changes In the obligation dunng the year The expected return on plan assets 15 based on an assessment made

at the beginning of the year of long-term market returns on scheme assets, adjusted for the effect on the farr value of plan assets of
contnibutions receved and benefits paid dunng the year The difference between the expected return on plan assets and the interest
cost s recogrised In the Income Statement as other finance iIncome or expense

Actuanal gains and losses are recognised in full in the Statement of Comprehensive Income In the year in which they occur
The defined benefit pension asset or hability in the Balance Sheet compnises the present value of the defined benefit obligation, less
any past service cost not yat recognised and less the farr value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be settled directly

When a pension asset (net surplus) anses and the directors consider it 1s controlled by the Company such that future economic
benefits will be available to the Company, it 1s camed forward 1n accordance with the requirements of IFRIC14

Contributions to defined contnbution schemes are recogrused in the Income Statement in the year in which they become payable

OWN SHARES
St Modwen Properties PLC shares held by the Group are classified in equity atinbutable to owners of the Company and are
recognised at cost

DIVIDENDS

Dimndends declared after the Balance Sheet date are not recognised as llabilities at the Balance Sheet date

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that 1t 1s probable that economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can be reliably
measured Revenue 1s measured at the farr value of the consideration receved, excluding discounts, rebates, VAT and other sales
taxes or duty The following cntena must also be met before revenue is recognised

Sale of property

Revenue ansing from the sale of property 1s recognised on legal completion of the sale Where revenue is earned for development of
property assets not owned, this Is recognised when the Group has substantially fulfilled ts obligations in respect of the transaction
Construction contracts

Revenue arising from construction contracts 1s recognised in accerdance with the Group's accounting policy on construction
contracts (see below)

Rental ncome

Rental income ansing from investment properties I1s accounted for on a straight-line basis over the fease term
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Interest Income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the pnncipal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts over the expected lfe of the financial asset to that asset’s net

camying amount

Dmdend income
Dmdend income from joint ventures 1s recognised when the shareholders’ nghis to receve payment have been established

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS

Where the outcome of a construction contract can be estmated rehably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the stage
of completion of the contract actmity at the Balance Sheet date The extent to which the contract s complete 15 determined by the
total costs incurred to date as a percentage of the total anticipated costs of the entire contract Vanations in contract work, clams
and incentive payments are included only to the extent they have been agreed with the purchaser

Where the outcome of a construchon contract cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue 1s recogrised only to the extent of
contract costs incurred where 1t is probable they will be recoverable Gontract costs are recogrused as expenses in the penod in
which they are incurred

When it 1s probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue, the expected loss 1s recogrised as an
expense Immediately

GOVERNMENT GRANTS

Government grants relating to property are treated as deferred income and released to profit or loss over the expected useful life
of the assets concerned

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

‘The Group accounts for share-based payments as equity-settled Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value
at the date of grant using an appropnate option pncing model For those share options that had previously been accounted for

as cash-settled, the far value at the date of transition became the far value at the date of grant for the equrty-settled share-based
options The farr value at the date of grant 1s expensed on a straight-lne basis over the vesting penod based on the Group’s estimate
of shares that will eventually vest

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial iabilittes are recognised on the Group’s Balance Sheet when the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual nghts to the cash flows
from the asset expire, or when It transfers the financial asset and substantially all the nisks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity If the Group nerther transfers nor retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for any amounts it may have
to pay If the Group retains substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received The Group derecognises
financial iabilities when, and only when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled, or expire

Trede and other recenvables

Trade receivables are recogrused and carmed at the lower of therr ongtnal invoiced value or recoverable amount Provision 1s made
when there 1s evidence that the Group will not be able to recover balances in full Balances are wtten off when the prebability of
recovery IS assessed as being remote

Cash and cash equvalents

Cash and cash equivalents compnses cash balances and short-term deposits with banks

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables on defefred payment terms are initially recorded by discounting the nominal amount payable to net present
value The discount to nominat value 1s amortised over the penod of the deferred arrangement and charged to finance costs

Interest beanng loans and bomowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at farr value less directly atinbutable transaction costs After inthal recognition, loans
and borrowings are measured at amortised cost

Gains and losses ansing on the repurchase, settlement or otherwise cancellation of habilties are recognised in finance income or
finance expense as appropnate

The effective interest rate methoed 1s used to charge interest to the Income Statement
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Financial Statements

Accounting Policies (continued)

for the year ended 30" November 2013

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Dervative financial nstruments and hedgng

The Group uses denvative financial iInstruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge its nsks associated with interest rate
fluctuations Such nstruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on whicha contract 1s entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at far value The Group has determined that the denvative financial instruments in use do not qualify
for hedge accounting and, consequently, any gains or losses ansing from changes in the far value of denvatives are taken to the
Income Statement

Equity instruments
An equity Instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest 1n the assets of the Group after deducting all its habilities
Equity instruments 1ssued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received less direct Issue costs

LSE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

To be able to prepare Financial Statements according to generally accepted accounting principles, management must make
estimates and assumptions that affect the asset and liability tems and revenue and expense amounts recorded in the Financial
Statements These estimates are based on the Group's systems of internal control, historical experience and the advice of external
experts (including qualified professional valuers and actuaries) together with various other assumptions that management and the
Board of Directors believe are reasonable under the circumstances The results of these considerations form the basis for making
Jjudgements about the carrying value of assets and habilities that are not readily available from other sources

The areas requirnng the use of estmates and critical judgements that may significantly impact the Group's earnings and financial
position are

Going concern The Financial Statements have been prepared on a going concern basis This Is discussed in the Strategic Report
and adoptien of the going concern assumption is confirmed in the Directors’ Report

Valuation of investment properties Management has used the valuation performed by its independent valuers as the farr value of
its iInvestment properties The valuation 1s performed according to RICS rules, using appropnate levels of professional judgement for
the prevailing market conditions

Net realisable value of inventones The Group has ongoing procedures for assessing the carrying value of inventories and
identifying where this 1s In excess of net realisable value Management's assessment of any resutting provision requirement 1, where
applicable, supported by independent information supplied by the external valuers The estimates and judgements used were based
on information available at, and pertaining to, 30" November 2013 Any subsequent adverse changes in market conditions may
result in addiional prowisions being required

Estimation of remediation and other costs to complete for both development and investment properties In making an
assessment of these costs there 1s inherent uncertainty and the Group has developed systems of internal control to assess and
review carrying values and the appropnateness of estimates made Any changes to these estimates may impact the carrying values
of iInvestment properties and/or inventores

Taxation As a property group, tax planning 1s often an integral part of transactions Where tax planning 1s entered into benefits are
recognised by the Group to the extent the outcome 15 reasonably certain Where tax planning has been challenged by HMRC, or
management believe that there 1s a nsk of such challenge, provision 1s made for the best estimate of potential exposure based on the
information avallable at the Balance Sheet date Management's assessment of the level of provision required 18, where applicable,
supported by the Group’s tax advisors If HMRC were to be successful in challenging tax planning arrangements to a greater extent
than has been provided at the Balance Sheet date then additional provisions may be required

Calcutation of the net present value of pension scheme liabiliies In calculating this lability it 1s hecessary for actuarial
assumptions to be made, including discount and mortality rates and the long-term rate of return upon scheme assets The Group
engages a qualfied actuary to assist with determining the assumptions to be made and evaluating these liabiliies

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS

Standards and interpretations adopted not affecting the Financial Statements
The following standards, amendments and interpretations have been adopted in the current year but have had no impact on the
amounts reported or the disclosures in the Financial Statements

I1AS12 {amended 2010) Deferred Tax Recovery of Underlying Assets

IAS1 (amended 2011} Preferation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income

In addition, minor amendments to existing standards were made under Improvements to IFRSs (issued Dacember 2010) which have
been adopted dunng the year
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impact of standards and mterpretations in issue but not yet effectve
At the date of authonsation of these Financial Statements, the following standards, amendments and interpretations which have
not been adopted in these Financial Statements were 1 1ssue but not yet effective (and in some cases had not yet been adopted

by the ELJ)

1AS19 (revised 2013}
1AS19 {revised 2011)
IAS27 (revised 2011)
IAS27 (amended 2012)
1AS28 (revised 2011)
IAS32 (amended 2011)
1AS36 (amended 2013)
IAS39 (amended 2013)
IFRIC20

IFRIC21

IFRS1 (amended 2012)
IFRS7 (amended 201 1)
IFRSS

IFRS10

IFRS10 {amended 2012)
IFRS11

IFRS12

IFRS12 (amended 2012)
IFRS13

Defined Benefit Plans Ermployee Contributions

Employee Benefits

Separate Financial Statements

Investment Entities

Investments in Associates and Jotnt Ventures

Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilibes
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-financial Assets
Novation of Denvatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
Stnpping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
Levies

Government Loans

Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financral Liabilities
Financial Instruments

Consolidated Financial Statements

Investment Entities

Joint Arrangements

Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

Investment Entities

Fair Value Measurement

In addition, Improvements to IFRSs (issued May 2012 and December 2013) are the latest tranches of the Improvements to IFRSs
project and these have a number of minor amendments to existing IAS and IFRSs, which have not yet been adopted

While the directors are stifl assessing the impact that the adopticn of these standards, amendments and interpretations will have
on the Financial Statements of the Group in future penods, they do not currently believe that adoption will have a matenal impact
on the reparted results of the Group, although amended disclosures may be required
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements

for the year ended 30" November 2013

1 REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

2013
Rental Development Other Total
£m £m £m £m
Revenue 371 1181 5.9 1611
Cost of sales (81) (93 4) (30 {104 5)
Gross profit 290 247 29 56 6
2012
Rental Development Cther Total
£m £m m £m
Revenue 393 1741 57 2191
Cost of sales {110 {1517) 29 {165 6)
Gross profit 283 224 28 535

The Group operates exclusively in the UK and all of its revenues denve from its portfolio of properties which the Group manages
internally, and reports to the Board, as one business Therefore, the Financial Statements and related notes represent the results and
financial posrion of the Group’s scle business segment

The Group's total revenue for 2013 was £169 Om (2012 £229 3m) and in addition to the amounts above included service charge
income of £6 5m (2012 £6 9m), for which there was an equivalent expense and interestincome of £1 4m (2012 £3 3m) In the year
ended 30™ November 2013 both development revenue and cost of sales include £20 8m {2012 £60 9m)n refation to amounts
settled by the Ministry of Defence in respect of RAF Northolt under Project MoDEL

Cost of sales in respect of rental Income, as disclosed above, comprise direct operating expenses (iIncluding repairs and
maintenance) related to the investment property portfalio and include £0 1m (2012 £0 2m) in respect of properties that did not
generate any rental ncome

During the year the following amounts were recognised {as part of development revenue and cost of sales) in respect of
construction contracts

2013 2012

£m £m

Revenue 41.9 777
Cost of sales (27.3) B3 2)
Gross profit 146 145

Amounts recoverable on contracts as disclosed in note 11 compnse £10 2m (2012 £7 2m) of contract revenue recognised and
£0 8m (2012 £0 9m) of retentions

There were nc amounts due to customers (2012 €nil) included in trade and other payables \n respect of contracts in progress at the
Balance Sheet date
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2 NON-STATUTCRY INFORMATION

a Trading profit
The non-statutory measures of trading profit and profit before all tax, which mcludes the Group's share of joint ventures and
assocates, have been calculated as set out below

2013 2012
Jomt Jont
ventures and ventues and
Group associates Total Group assocktes Total
Notes £m £m £m £m £m £m
Net rental Income 290 73 36.3 283 79 362
Development profit {1) 264 0.5 269 262 12 274
Gains on disposal of investments/
Investment properties 36 9.3 12.9 14 02 16
Other iIncome 29 - 29 28 - 28
Administrative expenses (19 9) {0 3) (20.2) (18 1) 05 (18 6)
Finance cosis 2 {20 4) {6.5) {26.9) {18 8) 62 250)
Finance income 3 14 - 14 11 - 11
Trading profit 230 10.3 333 229 26 255
Investment property revaluation gains {1 309 1.1 420 13 267 280
Qther finance costs {2 (32) - (32) (3 5) {13 {48
Other finance mcome 3 80 21 10.1 41 - 41
Profit before all tax 58.7 235 822 248 280 528
Taxation (6 6) {1.7) (8.3) 51) 54 (10 5)
Profit for the year 521 21.8 739 197 226 423

(1) Stated before the deduction of net realtsable value provisions of Group £17m @012 £3 8m) joint ventures and associates £nil (2012 £0 1m) These nems are
reclassified to investment property revakrations, together with goodwill wntten off on the corporate acquisition of investment properties

(2) Stated before mark-to-market of dervatives and other non-cash gems of Group £3.2m (2012 £3 5m) jont ventures and associates £ril (2012 £1 3m) These amounts
are reclassified to other finance costs,

(3] Stated before mark-to-market of dervatves, loan settlement fees and other non-cash tems of Group £8 Om (2012 €4 1m), joint ventures and associates £2 1m
(2012 £l These tems are reclassified to other finance ncome

b Property valuations
Property valuations, including the Group's share of joint ventures and associates, have been calculated as set aut helow

2013 2012
Jomt Jont
ventures and ventures and
Group associates Total Group associates Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Investment property revaluation gains 326 111 437 51 268 319
Net realisable value provisions (7) - {1.7) {38) 01 29
Property valuation gains 309 111 420 13 267 280
Added value 210 74 281 198 278 478
Market movemenis 99 40 139 (18 &} (i1) (196)
Property valuation gains 309 111 420 13 267 280

The split of property valuation gains between added value and market movements i1s based on an analysis of total property valuation
movements previded by the Group's external valuers Jones Lang LaSalle LLP, Chartered Surveyors
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Financial Statements

Notestothe Group Financial Statements contnueq

for the year ended 30" November 2013

2 NON-STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

¢ Property portfolio

The property portfoho, including the Group's share of joint ventures and associates, 1s denved from the Balance Sheet as
detailled below

2013 2012
Jomt Jott
ventures and venturas and
Group associates Total Group assocates Tctal
£m £m £m om £m £m
Investment properties 8133 1376 9509 7704 1749 9453
Less assets held under finance leases {39) {1.2) 51 (39 12 (51)
Add back lease incentives (recorded
In recevables) 56 13 69 45 16 61
Inventones 2059 36 2095 1752 75 1827
Less ‘barter’ properties and
accrued inventory™ (20 4) - (204 {30 8) - (308)
Property portiolio 1,000 5 1413 1,1418 g154 1828 1,008 2

{1} Represents deductions for ‘barter’ properties, pnincipally RAF Northolt as part of the Project MoDEL amangements between VSM Estates Limited and the Ministry of
Defence, and accrued inventory

As at 30" November 2013 the Group had assets of £228 6m (2012 £167 4m) included within the Group property portfolio (excluding
Jjoint ventures and associates) which were wholly owned, unencumbered and able to bapledged as secunty for the Group's
debt faciities

The Group property portfolio, including its share of joint ventures and associates, can be spht by category as detaled below

2013 2012
£m £m
Retail 2010 2402
Offices 594 807
Industnal 253.2 2606
Income producing 5136 5615
Residential land 481.8 3974
Commercial land 146 4 1393
Property portfolio 1,1418 1,098 2
d Movement in net debt
Movement in net debt as discussed in the Strategic Report is calculated as set out below
2013 2012
£m £m
Movement in cash and cash equivalents {15) 37
Borrowings drawn (51 0) (988
Repayment of bomowings 77.8 1014
Receipt of funds from equity placing (47.9) -
Joint venture debt repaid between 30™ November 2011 and acquisition as subsidiary undertakings on
31 May 2012 - 16
{Increase}/decrease in equivalent net debt {22 6) 79
Receipt of funds from equity placing 47.9 -
Joint venture debt at 30™ November 2011 now consolidated - (26 8)
Decrease/(increase) in net debt 253 {18 9)

Included in the increase in net debt for the year ended 30™ November 2012 1s £24 8m as a result of the Group now consclidating
both Sowcrest Limited and Hotaw 462 Limited as subsidiary undertakings Pnor to 30" November 2012 these entities wers
accounted for as joint ventures with net debt of £26 8m as at 30® November 2011
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¢ Trading cash flow

Trading cash flows are denved from the Group Cash Flow Statement as set out below

2013
Operating Investing Financing

activibies actvihes activihies Total

£m £m £m £m

Net rent and other income 319 - - 31.9
Property disposals 1181 54.0 - 1721
Property acquisitions (14 8) 87 - (23 5)
Capital expenditure (87 0) (66 2) - (153.2)
Working capital and other movements 06 - - 0.6
Overheads and interest (19 5) — (20 3) {39 8)
Taxation 41) - - 41)
Trading cash flow 252 {20 9) (203) {16.0)
Receipt of funds from equity placing - - 479 47.9
Net borrowings - - {26.8) {26 8)
Net dwvidends - 17 (8.3) {6.6)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 252 (19 2) (7.5) {15)

2012
Cperatng kvestng Franang

actvtes advbes actvibes Total

£m £m £m £rn

Net rent and other iIncome 311 - - 311
Property disposals 975 285 16 1286
Property acquisitions (107) 6 5) - (172)
Capital expendrure (733 312 - (104 5)
Working capital and other movernents 134 04 - 138
Overheads and interest (173) 31 (20 6) (34 8
Taxation 22 - - 22
Trading cash flow 385 @49 {190) 148
Net borrowings ~ — 226 226
Joint venture debt at 30™ November 2011 now consolidated - - (26 8) (26 8)
Net dvidends — — (69) 69)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents 385 @7 (30 1) 37
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Financial Statements

Notesto the Group Financial Statements contnued

for the year ended 30" November 2013

2 NON-STATUTORY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

f Group Balance Sheet
VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited and its subsidiary undertakings (VSM) are party

10 a senes of contracts with the Ministry of Defence

known as Project MoDEL The property assets of VSM are subject to purchase on defemed terms and, to increase disclosure of the
impact of these arrangements, an additional sphit of the Group Balance Sheet showing the proportion atiributable to VSM has been

provided below

2013 2012
Group VSM Total Group VSM Total
£ £m £m fm m £m
Investment property 744 6 687 813.3 7036 66 8 7704
Other non-current assets 108 9 106 1195 880 156 1036
inventory 199.7 62 2059 1483 269 1752
Cash and cash equivalents 32 4.2 7.4 50 39 89
Other current assets 347 25.0 597 269 196 465
Total assets 1,0911 1147 1,205 8 9718 1328 11046
Current habilities (142.0) {316) (173 6) {125 0) (339 (158 9)
Borrowings (3381) {10.0) (348.1) {344 5) (30 4) (374 9)
Other non-current lhabilities (19 3) (37 8) {571) (12 4) 447) 671)
Total habilities {499 4) (79 4) (578 8 4819 (1099 (5909
Net assets 5917 353 6270 4899 238 5137
Equity attributable to owners of
the Company 5877 265 614 2 4853 173 5026
Non-coniroling interests 40 88 128 46 65 1A
Total equity 5817 353 6270 4899 238 5137
g Net asssets per share
Net assets per share are calculated as set out below
2013 2012
Total equity (Em) 6270 5137
Less Non-controlling interest (12.8) 11
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 614.2 5026
Deferrad tax on capital allowances and revaluations 2056 187
Mark-to-market of interest rate swaps 127 191
Fair value of inventones 85 39
Diluted EPRA net assets 6559 544 3
Shares in Issue (number) 220,376,988 200,360,931
Total equity atinbutable to owners of the Company net assets per share (pence) 2787 2508
Percentage increase 1% 8%
Diluted EPRA net assets per share {pence) 297.6 27117
Percentage increase 10% 9%
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h Geanng and loan-to-value
The following table shows the calculation of

» gearng, being the ratio of net debt to total equity, and
* loan-to-value, being the ratio of net debt to the property pertfolio {representing amounts that could be used as secunty for
that debt)
In addiion ‘equivalent” net debt and associated metnes are discussed in the Strategic Report These figures assume that the equity
placing was In place at 30" November 2012 Adjustments to denve these figures are also detailed below

2013 2012
Joint Jont
ventures and ventures and
Group associates Total Group associates Total
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Property portfolio (note 2¢} 1,0005 1413 1,141 8 9154 1828 1,098 2
Total equity 627.0 N/A 6270 5137 N/A 5137
Adjustment assuming equity placed as at
30" Novernber 2012 - N/A - 479 N/A 479
Comparable equity 6270 N/A 6270 5616 N/A 5616
Net debt 3407 330 3737 366 0 825 448 5
Adjustment assuming equity placed as at
30" November 2012 - - - @7 9) - 479
Comparable debt 340.7 330 3737 3181 825 40086
Gearing 54% 60% 71% 87%
Loan-to-value 34% 33% 40% 41%
Equivalent gearing 54% 60% 57% 71%
Equvalent loan-to-value 34% 33% 35% 36%
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements contrued

for the year ended 30" November 2013

3 OTHER INCOME STATEMENT DISCLOSURES

a Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses have been amved at after charging

2013 2012
£m £m
Depreciation 05 05
Operating lease costs 07 10
b Audrtor’s remuneration
The analysis of auditor's remuneration i1s as follows
2013 2012
Audit and Audit and
audnt-related auditrelated
services Other services Total services Other services Total
£'000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Fees payable for the audit of the
Company's Annual Financial Statements 120 - 120 118 - 118
The audit of subsidiary companies and
joint ventures pursuant to legislation 150 - 150 137 - 137
Total audit fees 270 - 270 255 - 255
Audit-related assurance services 56 - 55 55 - 58
Other assurance services - - - 20 - 20
Tax compliance services - 166 166 - 150 150
Tax advisory services - 174 174 - 171 171
Property consulting - 30 30 - 47 a7
Total non-audit fees 55 370 425 75 368 443
Total fees 325 370 695 330 368 698

The above amounts include all amounts charged in respect of joint venture undertakings Further information 1s included in the Audit

Committee Report

c Employees
The average number of full-time employees (iIncluding executive directors) employed by the Group dunng the year was as follows
2013 2012
Number Nurnber
Property 146 136
Leisure and other activilies 63 63
Administration 46 al
Total employees 255 240
The total payroll costs of these employees were
2013 2012
£m £m
Wages and salanes 128 125
Social secunity costs 19 16
Pension costs 0.8 08
Total payroll costs 155 149

Details of the directors’ remuneration 1 given in the Directors’ Remuneration Report
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d Share-based payments

The Group has a Save As You Earn share ophion scheme which 1s open to all employees Employees must ordinanly remain in
service for a penod of five years from the date of grant before exercising ther options The option penod ends six months following
the end of the vesting penod The Group also has an Executive Share Option Scheme and Performance Share Plan (PSP), full details
of which are given In the Directors' Remuneration Report

The following table llustrates the movements in share options dunng the year As the PSP includes the grant of options at £nil
exercise pnce the weighted average pnces below are calculated including and excluding the options under this plan

2013 2012
Weighted average price Wesghted average prce
Al Excluding At Excluding
Number of ophons PSP MNumber of ophons PSP
ophtions £ £ ophons £ £
QOutstanding at start of year 10,930,665 149 190 8,623043 157 196
Granted 1,758,696 2.09 297 3,021,762 125 177
Forferited {628,823} 1.92 192 (167.768) (233 {2 33}
Lapsed {266,239) 020 410 {360,588) (0 49) (185
Exercised (1,522,802) 165 1.86 (155,784) (166) -
Outstanding at end of year 10,371,497 1.58 206 10,930665 149 190
Exercisable at year end 3,324,326 1.90 206 2672736 201 220
Share ophions are priced using a Black-Scholes valuatien model The far values calculated and the assumptions used are as follows
Charge
to Income Risk-free Expected Didend Share
Statement interest rate volatility yteld pnce
fm % % % £
30" November 2013 19 04-11 376-56 9 11 1.23-3 20
30™ Novernber 2012 03 04-11 J376-56 2 16 123-200

* Based on the earlier of the 90 day average to 30" Novemnber 2011 o, for options granted after this date, the closing share price on the date of grant

The farr value of the share incentive reserve in respect of share options outstanding at the year endwas £2 1m (2012 £2 4m) and
included £0 7m (2012 £0 4m) in respect of options that had vested at the year end

In amving at fair value 1t has been assumed that, when vested, shares options are exercised in accordance with histoncal trends
Expected volatiity was determined by reference to the historical volatility of the Group's share price over a penod consistent with the
expected life of the options

The weighted average share pnce at the date of exercise was £3 00 (2012 £1 97) The executive share options outstanding at the
year end had a range of exercise prices between £1 69 and £3 75 (2012 £1 14 and £3 75) with PSP options exercisable at £nil
(2012 £mil) cost Outstanding options had a weighted average maximum remaining contractual Iife of 8 0 years (2012 9 0 years)
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements coninvea

for the year ended 30" November 2013

4 FINANCE COST AND FINANCE INCOME

2013 2012
£m £m
Interest payable on bormrowings {20 2) (186}
Amorhsation of loan arrangement fees 1.2 13
Amortisation of discount on deferred payment arrangements 09) (1)
Head rents treated as finance leases (0.2) {02
Interest on pension scheme liabilities (note 18) (1.14) {12
Total finance cost (23.6) (22 3)
The finance income on Interest rate dervatives derives from financial habilihies held at far value through profit or loss
All finance costs denve from financial habilities measured at amortised cost
2013 2012
£m m
Interest receivable 14 11
Credit in respect of loan settlement fees ~ L - 20
Credit in respect of discount on deferred receivables 01 02
Movement in far value of interest rate denvatives BT 06
Expected return on pension scheme assets (note 18) 1.2 13
Total finance income 94 52
5 TAXATION
a Tax on profit on ordinary actmvties
2013 2012
£m £m
Tax charge/{credit) in the Income Statement
Corporation tax
Current year tax 43 34
Adjustments in respect of previous years (01) 19
42 53
Deferred tax
Reversal of temporary differences 27 04
Impact of current year revaluations and indexation 3.0 27
Net (recognition)/utiisation of tax losses {12) 09
Change in rate for provision of deferred tax {1.0) {0 5)
Adjustrments in respect of previous years {11) (29
24 02
Total tax charge In the Income Statement 66 51

Tax relating to items in the Statement of Comprehensive lncome

Deferred tax

Actuanal losses on pension schemes -

Tax credit in the Statement of Total Recognised Income and Expense -
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b Reconcifiabon of effective tax rate

2013 22

£m £m

Profit before tax 805 474
Less joint ventures and associates {21 8) (22 6)
Pre-tax profit attnbutable to the Group 587 24 8

Corporation tax at 23 3% (2012 24 7%) 137 61
Permanent differences 01 07}
Short-term timing differences 58 (17)
Impact of current year revaluations and indexation (3 0) 22
Difference between chargeable gains and accounting profit (6 8) 07
Change In rate used for provision of deferred tax {0.4) 05}
Deferred tax asset recognised (1.6) -

Current year charge 78 61
Adjustments in respect of previous years {12) {10}

Tax charge for the year 6.6 51
Effective rate of tax 11% 21%

The post-tax results of joint ventures and associates are stated afier a tax charge of £1 7m (2012 £5 4m) The effective tax rate for
the Group Including joint ventures and associates s a charge of 10 1% (2012 19 9% charge)

The Finance Act 2013 was enacted on 17% July 2013 and included provisions which reduced the mam rate of corporation tax to
21% from 1= Apnl 2014 and 20% from 1% Apnl 2015 Current tax has therefore been provided at 23 3% and deferred tax at 21% for
amounts expected to reverse before 1% Aprl 2015 and 20% for amounts expected to reverse thereafter

¢ Balance Sheet

2013 2012

Corporation Deferred Corporaticn Detemad

tax tax tax tax

£m £m £m £m

Balance at start of the year 33 85 02 87
Charge/{crednt) 1o the Income Statement 42 24 53 02
Net payment {41) - (22 -
Balance at end of the year 34 10.9 33 85

An analysss of the deferred tax provided by the Group 1s given below
2013 2012

Asset Liabiity Net Asset Liahiity Net

£m £m £m £m £m £m

Property revaluations - 11.8 118 — 95 95
Capttal allowances - 35 35 — 36 36
Appropriations to frading stock - 07 07 — 09 09
Unutlised tax losses (16) - (16) 1) - ©1
Other temporary differences (3.5) - (35) 54 — 54)
{51) 160 10.9 (55 140 85

At the Balance Sheet date, the Group has unused tax losses in relation to 2013 and prior years of £3 2m (2012 £1 8m), of which
£1 6m (2012 £0 1m) has been recognised as a deferred tax asset A deferred tax asset of €1 6m (2012 £1 7m) has not been
recognised in respect of curent and pnor year tax losses as it 1s not considered sufficiently certan that there will be taxable profits
avallable in the short-term against which these can be offset

d Factors that may affect future tax charges
Based on current capital nvestment plans, the Group expects to continue to be able to clarm capital allowances in excess of
depreciation in future years

As a property group, tax planning 18 often an integral part of transactions Where tax planning 1s entered into benefits are recogrused
by the Group to the extent the outcome 1s reasonably certain Where tax planning has been challenged by HMRC, or management
beleve that there 1s a nsk of such challenge, provision is made for the best estimate of potential exposure based on the information
avallable at the Balance Sheet date

St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 125

uoday oibajens

QOUEILIBACE) S2i0cIon

SUBLISLRIS [BIDUBLIY

LIOHBULIOU] [euonIppY




Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements contues

for the year ended 30" November 2013

6 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The caleulation of basic and diluted earnings per share 1s set out below

2013 2012

Number of Nurnber of

shares shares

Weighted number of shares in 1ssue 215,236,438 200145177
Weighted number of dilutive shares 4,074,926 1,534,599
219,311,364 201,679,776

2013 2012

£m £m

Profit attnbutable to equity shareholders (basic and diluted) 721 427
2013 2012

pence pence

Basic earnings per share 33.5 213
Diluted earnings per share 329 212

Shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust are excluded from the above calculations

As the Group 1s principally a development business EPRA earnings per share on a basic and diluted basis are not provided
These calculations exclude development profits and would not provide a meaningful measure of the performance of the Group

7 DVIDENDS

Dwdends paid dunng the year were in respect of the final dvidend for 2012 and an interm dividend for 2013 The proposed final
dividend I1s subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a hiability in these Financial Statements

2013 2012

p per share £m p per share £m
Paid
Final dividend n respect of previous year 2.42 53 220 44
Intenm dividend in respect of current year 133 29 121 24
Total 3.75 82 341 68
Proposed
Current year final dvidend 267 59 242 48

The Employee Benefit Trust waives its entitlement to dividends
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8 INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Freehotd Leasehold
investment investment
properties properties Total
£m £m £m
Fair value
At 30" Novermnber 2011 5607 2880 8487
Additions - new properties B0 - 350
Other additions 318 115 433
Net transfers to inventornies {note 12) {46 7) 41 {50 8)
Disposals {16 2) Q60 {1122
Gain/loss) on revaluation 11 47 64
At 30™ November 2012 557 1947 7704
Additions - new properties 94 — 94
Other additions 549 63 612
Net transfers {fromy/to inventones (note 12) (107) #]3) {101)
Reclassification from operating properties (note 9) 01 - 01
Disposals 350 (153 (50 3)
Gain on revaluation 211 115 326
At 30* November 2013 615.5 1978 813.3

Investment properties were valued at 30™ November 2013 by Jones Lang LaSalle LLP, Chartered Surveyors, i accordance with the
Appratsal and Valuation Manual of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of market value Jones Lang LaSalle
LLP are professionally qualified independent external valuers and have recent expertence in the relevant location and category of

the properties being valued
Additions — new properties include £nil (2012 £31 6m) acquired through business combinations
The histoncal cost of nvestment properties at 30" November 2013 was £699 3m (2012 £680 5m)

As at 30" November 2013, £633 2m (2012 £632 8m) of investrnent property was pledged as secunty for the Group's loan facilities

Included within leasehold investment properties are £3 9m (2012 €3 9m) of assets held under finance leases
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements contnues

for the year ended 30" November 2013

9 OPERATING PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Qperating
Operating plant and
properties egquipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost
At 30" November 2011 69 49 18
Additions 01 01 02
At 30" November 2012 70 50 120
Additions - 04 04
Reclassified to investment property (note 8) 01 - 01)
At 30" November 2013 69 54 123
Depreciation
At 30" Novemnber 2011 07 40 47
Charge for the year 01 04 05
At 30" November 2012 08 44 52
Charge for the year 01 04 05
At 30" November 2013 09 48 57
Net book value
At 30" November 2011 62 09 71
At 30" November 2012 62 06 68
At 30" November 2013 60 06 6.6
Tenure of operating properties
2013 2012
£m £m
Freehold 34 35
Leasehold 26 27
60 62
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10 JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

The Group's share of the trading resuits for the year of its joint ventures and associates s

2013 202
VSM Other VoM Cther
Key Estates joint Key Estates ot
Property Uxhndge venhtures Property Uxbndge ventures
Investments (Group) and Investments {Group) and
Limited Lmited assoctates Total Limuted Leruted assocates Totat
Em £m £m £m om om £m £m
Income Statements
Revenue 138 - 14 152 183 01 08 198
Net rental iIncome 71 (0.1) 03 73 73 {01) 07 79
Development profits/{losses) 02 - 03 05 13 - {02 11
Gains on disposal of investments/
investment properties 93 - - 93 02 - - 02
tnvestment property revaluation
gamns/losses) 6.2 51 (02) 111 04 272 - 268
Administrative expenses 02 01) - (0 3) 03 {=h)] {01) 085
Profit before interest and tax 226 49 04 279 81 270 04 355
Finance cost {41) (23) {01) {6.5) 48 (24 03 75
Finance income 19 02 - 21 - - - -
Profit before tax 204 28 03 235 33 246 01 280
Taxation (1.6) {0 1) - (1.7} 03 (5 5) 02 (5 4)
ProfitAloss) for the year 188 27 03 21.8 36 191 01 226

Included in other joint ventures and associates above are results from associated companies of £nil {2012 losses of £0 1m)

The Group's share of the Balance Sheets of Its joint ventures and associates 1s

2013 2012
VSM Other VEM Other
Key Estates joint Key Estates joint
Property Uxbridge vantures Property Lixbnage ventures
Investments {Group) and Ivestments {Group} and
Linuted Limited associates Total Lsmited Linnited assocates Total
£m £m £m £m £m fag! £m m
Balance Sheets
Non-current assets 807 600 64 1471 1168 589 38 1795
Current assets 102 29 41 7.2 136 29 48 213
Current abilittes (89) {16 Q) 24 (27.3) (192 62 (2] (26 3)
Non-current habilities (15.2) {251) {14) #1.7) 620 (36 5) (0 8) (92 3)
Net assets 66 8 218 6.7 95.3 482 191 69 752
Equrty at start of year 49 2 191 69 75.2 456 - 47 503
Transfer from joint venture to
subsidiary undertaking - - - - - - 23 23
Profit/loss) for the year 188 27 0.3 21.8 36 191 01) 226
Dmidends paid {12) - {0.5) (1.7) - - - -
Equity at end of year 66 8 21.8 67 95.3 492 191 69 752

Included in other joint ventures and associates above are net assets of £2 8m (2012 £2 9m) in relaton to associated companies
These net assets comprise total assets of £3 6m (2012 £3 6m) and total labities of £0 8m (2012 20 7m)
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements contueq

for the year ended 30™ Novermber 2013

10 JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Joint venture companies and associates comprise

Name Statug Interest Principal nature of business
Key Property Investments Limited Joint venture 50% Property investment and development
VSM Estates Uxbndge (Group) Uimited Joint venture 50% Property investment and development
VSM (NCGM) Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Barton Business Park Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Killngholme Energy Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Killingholme Land Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Meaford Energy Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Meaford Land Limited Jaint venture 50% Property development
Skypark Development Partnership LLP Joint venture 50% Property development
Wrexham Land Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Wrexham Power Limited Joint venture 50% Property development
Coed Darcy Limited Associate 49% Property investment and development
Baglan Bay Company Limited Associate 25% Property management

In the Strategic Report a senes of commercial contracts with Persimmon 1s referred 1o as the ‘Persimmon joint venture' This is not
a statutory entity and the results from these commercial contracts are not included in the figures disclosed above Revenue and
profit from the Persimmon joint venture are recognised in Group development profit on legal completion of housing untt sales to
third-party customers

Many of the shareholder agreements for joint ventures and associates contain change of control prowvisions, as 1s common for
Such arrangemeants

11 TRADE AND OTHER RECENVABLES

2013 2012
£m £m
Non-current
Other debtors 11.6 156
Amounts due from joint ventures 6.0 60
17.6 216
Current
Trade receivables 2.2 49
Prepayments and accrued income 49 71
Other debtors 203 182
Amounts recoverable on contracts 10 81
Amounts due from joint ventures 123 82
5§97 465

IFRS 7 disclosures in respect of financial assets ncluded above are provided in note 16
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12 INVENTORIES

2013 2012

£m £m

Properties held for sale 9.7 98
Properties under construction 177.3 1431
Land under option 18.9 225
205.9 1752

The movement in inventories duning the two years ended 30" November 2013 15 as follows

£m

At 30" November 2011 1911
Additions 850
Net transfers from investment property {note B) 508
Disposals (transferred to development cost of sales) (note 1) {1517)
At 30" November 2012 1752
Additions 1140
Net transfers from investment property {note 8) 1014
Disposals (transferred 1o development cost of sales) (note 1) @3 4)
At 301 November 2013 2059

The directors consider all Inventores to be current in nature The operational cycle is such that a proportion of inventones will not be
reahsed within 12 months It 1s not possible to determine with accuracy when specific inventory will be realised as this will be subject
to a number of 1ssues including the strength of the property market

included within disposals of inventenies are net realisable value provisions made dunng the year of £1 7m (2012 £3 8m)

As at 30" November 2013 £43 3m (2012 £41 Om) of nventory was pledged as secunty for the Group’s loan facilities

13 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

2013 m2
£m fm
Current

Trade payables 211 204
Amounts due to joint ventures 250 131
Other payables and accrued expenses 928 748
Other payables on deferred terms 185 278
Derwatve financial Instruments 12.8 195
170 2 1556

Non-current
Other payables on deferred terms 423 447
Finance lease lhabiities (head rents) 39 39
46 2 486

IFRS 7 disclosures in respect of financial habilities included above are provided in note 16

The payment terms of the other payables on defeired terms are subject to confractual commitments In the normal course of events
the payments will be made in ine with erther the disposal of investment properties held on the Balance Sheet, or the commencement
of development Net cash outflows on the settiement of the deferred consideration will therefore be himited
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements eontnuea

for the year ended 30" November 2013

14 BORROWINGS

2013 2012
£m m
Current

Bank overdrafts - 33
Bank loans 625 -
625 33

Non-current
Amounts repayable between one and two years 640 851
Amounts repayable between two and five years 1380 2016
Amounts repayable after more than five years 836 849
285.6 3716
Total 348.1 3748

Where borrowings are securad, the individual bank facility has a fixed charge over a discrete portfolio of certan of the Group's

property assets
Maturity profile of committed borrowing facilities

The Group’s debt 1s provided by floating rate bilateral revolving credit faciliies (providing the flexibility to draw and repay loans as
required) and an unsecured 6 25% fixed rate retall bond The maturity profile of the Group’s committed borrowing facilities 1s set

out below
2013 2012
Drawn Undrawn Total Draamn Uniddrawn Total
£m £m £m £m om £m
Secured floating rate borrowings:
{_ess than one year(! 62.5 42 5 105.0 33 17 50
One to two years 740 20.0 940 851 149 1000
Two to three years 128.0 67.0 1950 1203 847 2050
Three to four years - - - 813 237 1050
More than five years 36 10 46 49 o1 50
2681 130 5 398 6 2049 1251 4200
Unsecured fixed rate borrowings:
More than five years 800 - 800 800 - 800
348.1 1305 478 6 3719 1251 5000

(1) In addition to the pnncipal amounts Included above, £0 8m (2012 £0 9m) of iInterest payable was committed at the year end These amounts all fall due within three

months of the year end

No undrawn committed faciities are nng fenced for VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited (2012 £0 6m)
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Interest rate profile
The interest rate profile of the Group’s borrowings after taking into account the effects of hedging is set out below

2013 2012
m Apphicable interest rate fm Applicable mterest rate
Floating rate bank debt 681 Margin + 3 month LIBOR 649  Margin + 3 month LIBOR
Fixed rate bank debt 2000 Margin + 3 34% 2300 Margin + 3 34%
weighted average swap rate welghted average swap rate
Fixed rate retall bond 800 6.25% fixed rate 800 B 25% fixed rate
At 30" November 2013 3481 3749

The average margin cn the Group’s bank debt s 2 0% (2012 2 1%)

Interest rate swaps

The Group's denvative financial instruments, which are ciassified as farr value through profit or loss, consist of sterling denominated
interest swaps from floating rate to fixed rate and range from 2 01% t0 5 16% (2012 2 01% to 5 16%) Detalls of the maturnty
profile of denvative financial instruments are given below and the change in far value of these instruments as charged to the Income
Statement 1s disclosed in note 4

2013 2012
Earliest termination Latest termination Eariest tamnaton Latest termmahon
£m %" £m % £m % £m %
Less than one year 200 383% 100 279% 300 4 83% 100 465%
One to two years 700 3.28% 700 3 28% 600 3 60% 500 3 34%
Two to three years 600 2 99% 600 2 99% 500 291% 500 291%
Three to four years 200 2.01% 200 201% 600 299% 600 299%
Four to five years 300 4.72% 400 4.76% 200 201% 200 201%
More than five years - - 100 432% 400 4 76%

2000 3.34% 2000 3 34% 2300 334% 2300 334%

* Weighted average nterest rate

Certain of the interest rate swaps are extendable at the bank’s option, the tables above therefore show the dates of normal
termination and extended termination The weighted average matunty of interest rate swaps to the earliest termination date 1s
2 4 years (2012 2 § years)

St Modwen Properties PLC Annual Report and Financial Statements 2013 133

uodey vbBeteng

SWIBLUSIEIS [BIDUBLIY aauewaA0D selodion

UONBULIOJ| [ELONIPRY



Financial Statements

Notesto the Group Financial Statements contrues

for the year ended 30" November 2013

15 LEASING

Operating lease commitments where the Group 1s the lessee

The Group teases certain of its premises, motor vehicles and office equipment under operating leases Future aggregate mimimum
lease rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

203 2012

£m £m

In one year or less 10 08
Between one and five years 27 29
In five years or more 03 01
40 38

Operating leases where the Group 18 the lessor

The Group leases out its investment properties under operating leases The future aggregate mmimum rentals recevable under
non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2013 2012

£m £m

In one year or less 302 292
Between one and five years B68 871
In five years or more 184.2 1676
301.2 2839

Contingent rents, calculated as a percentage of turnover for a mited number of tenants, of £0 4m (2012 £0 4m) were recognised
dunng the year

Oblgations under finance leases
Finance lease habilittes payable in respect of certain leasehold investment properties are as follows

2013 2012

Minimum Mremum

loase lease
payments Interest Principal payments Interest Prncipal
£m £m £m £m £ £m
In one year or less 02 Q02 - 02 02 -
Between one and five years 10 10 - 10 10 -
In five years or more 659 620 39 661 622 39
671 63 2 39 673 634 39

Finance leases are for periods of up to 999 years from inception and a discount rate of 6 0% (2012 6 0%) has baen used to derve
the farr value of the principal amount outstanding Al lease obligations are denominated in sterling
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16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Categones and classes of financial assets and labiities

2013 2012
Financial assets Notes £m m
Loans and recevables
Cash and cash equivalents (1) 74 89
Trade and other recevables (1) 524 461
59.8 550
2013 2012
Financial habilities Notes £m om
Dervative financial instruments held at far value through profit or loss {2) 12.8 195
Amortised cost
Bank loans and overdrafts (1) 2681 2949
Retall Bond (1) 800 800
Trade and other payables (1) 87.2 680
Other payables on deferred terms {1) 608 725
Finance lease habidites (head rents) {1) 3.9 39
5128 5388

{1} The directors consider that the camying amount recorded In the Financial Statements approximates therr fair value

{2) Denvative financial Instruments are camed at far value The farr value 1s calculated using quoted market prices relevant for the
term and instrument

‘Trade and other receivables above compnse other debtors, trade recewvables and amounts due from joint ventures as disclosed in
note 11, for current and non-current amounts, after deduction of £9 0m (2012 £6 8m) of non-financial assets

Trade and other payables above compnseé trade payables, amounts due to joint ventures and other payables and accrued expenses
as disclosed in note 13, for current and non-current amounts, after deduction of £51 7m (2012 £40 3m} of non-financial hablties

Far value hierarchy of financial assets and kabilities
Financial assets and financial kabiihes that are measured subsequent to ittial recognition at farr value, are required to be grouped
into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the far value 1s observable

s Leve! 1 farr value measurements are those denved from quoted pnces (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets,

o Level 2 far value measurements are those denved from inputs other than quoted prices ncluded within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset, either directly (i e as pnces) or indirectly (i e denved from prices), and

« Level 3 far value measurements are those derved from valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data {unobservable mputs)

Derwatve financial instruments held at fair value through profit or loss are the only financial instrumenits held by the Group

at far value The net hability of £12 8m recognised as at 30 November 2013 (2012 £19 5m) I1s categorised as a Level 2 far

value measurement

Caprtal nsk

The Group manages rts capital to ensure that the entities in the Group will be able to continue as a going concern while maximising
the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The capital structure of the Company consists of
debt (as disclesed in note 14}, cash and cash equivalents and equity, compnsing 1ssued capital, reserves and retained earnings as
disclosed in the Group Statement of Changes in Equity

Market nsk
Market nsk Is the potential adverse change in Group income or the Group net worth ansing from movements in interest rates or other
market prices Interast rate nsk 15 the Group's principal market nsk and 1s considered below

Interest rate nsk management The Group 15 exposed to interest rate nsk as it borrows funds at vanable interest rates The Group
uses a combination of vanable rate borrowings and interest rate swaps to manage the nsk.

interest rate sensitvity The subsequent table details the Group’s sensitivity, after tax, to a 1% change in interest rates based on
year end levels of debt
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Financial Statements

Notesto the Group Financial Statements contres

for the year ended 30" November 2013

16 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

2013 2012

1% increase in interest rates £m £m
interest on borrowings (16) 21)
Effect of interest rate swaps 1.6 17
- ©C4)

2013 2042

1% decrease in interest rates £m £m
Interest on borrowings 16 21
Effect of interest rate swaps {16} 17
- 04

Credit nsk
Credit nsk 1s the nsk of financial loss where counterparties are not able to meet therr obligations as they fall due

The credit nsk on the Group’s Iquid funds and denvative financial instruments 1s limited because the counterparties are banks with
acceptable (generally A and above) credit ratings Bank deposits are only placed with banks in accordance with Group policy that
specifies minimum credit rating and maximum expesure Credit nsk on denvatives 1s closely monitored

Trade and other recevables consist of amounts due from a large number of parties spread across geographical areas The Group
does not have any significant concentrations of credit nsk as the tenant base 1s large and diverse with the largest individual tenant
accounting for £1 6m (2012 £1 6m) of gross rental Income

The carying amount of financial assets, as detaled above, represents the Group’s maxmum exposure to credit nsk at the
reporting date

Included within trade and other recevables 1s £0 5m (2012 £0 4m) which 1s provided against as It represents estimated irecoverable
amounts This allowance has been determined by a review of all significant balances that are past due considenng the reason

for non-payment and the creditworthiness of the counterparty A reconciiation of the changes in this account dunng the year 1s
provided below

2013 2012
Maovement in the allowance for doubtful debts €m £m
At start of year 04 05
Impairment losses recognised 06 04
Amounts wntten off as uncollectable 03) 02
Imparrment losses reversed {02) 03
At end of year 0.5 04

Trade and other recevables include £0 5m (2012 £1 Om) which are past due as at 30" November 2013 for which no provision has
been made because the amounts are considered recoverable The following table prowdes an ageing analysis of these balances

2013 2012
Number of days past due but not impaired £m £m
1—30 days 01 03
31 - 60 days 02 03
More than 60 days 02 04

0.5 10
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Liquichity Risk

Liquidity nsk 15 the nsk that the Group does not have sufficient financial resources avatlable to meet s obligations as they fall due
The Group manages liquidity nsk by continuously monitenng forecast and actual cash flows, matching the matunty profiles of
financial assets and liatnlities and through the use of fixed rate debt bilateral faciities, overdrafts and cash with a range of matunty
dates to ensure continurty of funding

The rmatunty profile of the anticipated future cash flows for bank loans and overdrafts 1s shown in note 14 The matunty profile for the
Group's other non-denvative financial labilittes, on an undiscounted basis, 1s as follows

Less than 1to3 3months 1to 5 More than
1 month rmonths {0 1 year years Syears Total
2013 £m £m £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 42 4 86 359 - 65.9 1528
Other payables on deferred terms - - 18 6 46 3 - 649
424 86 545 46 3 65.9 2177

Less than 103 JImonths 1ob More than
1 month months o 1 year years Syears Total
2012 £mn fm £m £m £m £m
Trade and other payables 373 19 325 39 63 4 1390
Other payables on deferred terms - 104 174 458 - 736
373 123 499 497 634 2126

The Group's approach to cash flow, financing and bank covenants 15 discussed further in the Financial Review section of the
Strategic Report

17 SHARE CAPITAL

Ordinary
10p shares
Number £m
Equrty share caprtal
At start of year 200,360,931 200
Issue of share capital 20,016,057 20
At end of year 220,376,988 220

On 1# March 2013 the Group completed a ‘cash box’ placing of 20,016,057 ordinary shares of 10p each at £2 45 per share
Net proceeds were £47 9m after share 1ssue costs, of which the £2 Om nommal value of the shares was credited to share caprtat with
the balance to other reserves

See note 3d for details of outstanding options to acquire ordinary shares
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Financial Statements

Notes to the Group Financial Statements contnuea)

for the year ended 30™ November 2013

18 PENSIONS

The Group operates a pension scheme with both defined benefit and defined contnibution sections The defined benefit section is
closed to new members and, from 1* September 2009, future accrual The Income Statement includes

« acharge of £02m (2012 £0 1m) for the defined benefit section, and

s acharge of £0 6m (2012 £0 6m) for the defined contribution section

The last formal actuanal valuation of the scheme was at 5% Apnl 2011, when the market value of the net assets of the scheme

was £33 5m, a funding leve! of 104% based on the Trusteas’ propesed assumptions for technical provisions (these are yet to be
finalised} The valuation was performead using the ‘Projected Unit Credit Method® under IAS 19 The man actuanal assumptions were

Investment rate of return pre-retirement 6 3% pa
post-retirement 4 8% pa
Increase In pensions 36% pa

The actuanal valuation of the defined benefit section, a final salary scheme, was updated to 30™ Novemmber 2013 on an IAS basis by
a qualified mdependent actuary The major assumptions used by the actuary were

2013 2012 2011

Rate of Increase in deferred pensions 2 6% 20% 24%
Rate of Increase in pensions in payment

Pre-6™ Apnl 1997 benefits 30% 27% 30%

Post-5% Apnl 1997 benefits 3 4% 27% 31%

Discount rate 4.5% 4 3% 49%

Inflation assumption 2.6% 20% 2 4%

Following the closure of the defined benefit section to future accrual, the assumption regarding the rate of increase in salaries is no
longer applicable as retirement benefits will be based on salanes at 31 August 2009 Benefits earned up to the pont of the scheme
closure will be protected and will be Increased in ine with inflation, subject to a maximum of 5% per annum Frem 2010 the basis of
the inflahion assumption has been amended, in ine with market practice, from the Retall Price Index to the Consumer Pnce Index

The mortality rates adopted are from the S1 year of birth and medium cohort tables with an underpin to future improvements of

1 5% to reflect the fact that medium cohort improvements will reduce over tme The resuftant assumptions are, for example, male
members who are currently retired are expected to draw therr pensions for 26 7 years and non-retired members for 29 0 years,
based on a normal retirement age of 60

The Group made a contribution of £0 2m to the defined benefit section of the scheme in 2013 and expects contnbutions to remain at
similar levels in future years

The farr values of assets in the defined benefit section of the scheme and the expectedrates of return, based on market
expectations, were

2013 2012 201

% £m % £m % £m

Equities 47 76 45 10 51 95
Bonds 40 146 42 a7 48 79
Property 4.7 58 45 64 51 82
Cash and other assets 3.7 1.0 32 10 40 15
29.0 281 27

Actuanal value of llablities (28 5) 270 24 8)
Unrecognised surplus {0 5) ()] 23)

Surplus in the scheme - - -

Related deferred tax liability - - -

Farr value of pension asset net of
deferred tax - - -

The cumulative amount of actuanal gains and losses (before unrecognised surplus of £0 5m) recorded in the Group Statement of
Comprehensive Income 1s a loss of £0 2m (2012 £0 1m)
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Analysis of the amount charged 1o operating profit

2013 2012 2011
£m £m m
Current service cost and total operating charge ©2) {02 {02
Analyais of the amount credited 1o finance costs and Income
M3 2012 201
£m £m m
Expected return on pension scheme assets 12 13 i5
Interest on pension scheme habilities 1) {12) (13
01 01 02

The actual return on pension scheme assets was a gain of £2 Om (2012 £2 4m) The expected retun on pension scheme assets

was calculated assuming cash and gilts will make returns m line with the yield on the 15 year gilt ndex and that equities and

properties will return 1 2% above this Corporate bonds have been assumed to return in ine with the yield on the IBoxx over 15 year

corporate bond index

Analysis of the amount recognised in the Group Statement of Comprehensive Income

213 2012 2011
£m £m £m
Difference between expected and actua return on assets 08 11 {0 4)
Expenence gains and losses anising on farr value of scheme liabilities {0.2) 05) {18
Effects of changes in the demographic and financial assumptions undertying the fair
value of the scheme habilihes f13) (18) 18
Change in unrecognised surplus 06 11 02
Total actuanal loss {0.1) 01 02
Analysis of the movement in the present value of the scheme llabiles
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Beginning of year 27.0 248 247 269 236
Movement In year
Current service cost 02 02 02 02 02
Employee contnbutions - - — — 01
Interest cost 11 i2 13 14 14
Actuanal gains and losses 15 23 - {13) 37
Benefits paid (13) (15 {14 (25 (14
Curtalment gain - - - - 07
End of year 285 270 248 247 269
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Financial Statements

Notestothe Group Financial Statements contnues

for the year ended 30% November 2013

18 PENSIONS (CONTINUED)

Analysis of the movement in the far value of the scheme assets

2013 2012 201 2010 2009
£m £m £m £m £m
Beginning of vear 2841 271 272 271 249
Movement in year
Expected return on scheme assets 12 13 15 15 14
Contnbutions by employer 02 02 02 02 03
Employee contnbutions - - - - 01
Actuanal gains and losses 08 10 04) 09 18
Benefits pad {13) {15) {14 25 (14)
End of year 280 281 271 272 271
Surplus in scheme at the year end 05 A 23 25 02
Unrecognised surplus {0 5) (11 23 (25 02)
Net surplus - - — — —
History of expenence gains and losses
2013 2012 20m 2010 2000
£m £m om £m £m
Difference between expected and actual return on
scheme assets
Amount 0.8 11 04 09 18
Percentage of scheme assets 2.8% 39% {15%) 33% 6 6%
Expenence gains and losses on scheme liabilities
Amount (0.2) {05) (18 a7 37
Percentage of far value of scherne labilitres 07% 19% 73% 28% {13 8%)

19 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On 31% May 2012, the Company acquired the power to govern the financial and operating policies of its joint venture entities
Sowcrest Limited {Sowcrest) and Chertsey Road Property Limited, Statedale Limited together with ts 100% subsidiary Holaw
(462) Limited (together Holaw) These Iinked transactions were facilitated by entering into a sale and purchase agreement to
simultaneously acquire the remaming 50% equity interest in each company for ml consideration The acquisitions provided the
Group with full control of Sowcrest and Holaw, enabling it to develop the second phase at Wembley Central as well as providing it
with additional rental income from the investment property held by those entities

As required by IFRS 3 (2008} Business Combinations, these deemed acquisitions of control resutted in the Joint venture interests
bemng remeasured to their far values at the acquisiion date and net goodwill ansing This was not deemed to be recoverable, and
was written off to the Income Statement in the year ended 30™ November 2012

Fawr values were reported as prowvisional in the Financaial Statements for the year ended 30® November 2012 No subseguent
amendments were made

20 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 30" November 2013 the Group had contracted capital expenditure of £12 6m (2012 £11 Om) In addtion the Group's share of
the contracted capital expenditure of its joint venture undertalungs was £2 8m (2012 £56m) Ali capital commitments relate to
investment properties
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21 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group has a joint and several unlimited hability with VINC! PLC and the Ministry of Defence under guarantees in respect of

the financial performance of VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited (VSM) This 1s a guarantee in the ordinary course of business and

would require the guarantors to step into VSM'’s place in the event of a default on Project MoDEL Completion of the project 1s not
constdered onerous as the forecast revenues exceed the anticipated costs and it 1s not expected that there would be any net outflow
in this regard

The Group, together with VINCI PLC has provided a joint and several parent company guarantee in respect of the £40m bank facility
provided to VSM Estates Uxbndge Limited, a subsidiary of VSM Estates Uxbndge (Group) Limited The Group, together with VINGI
PLC, has provided a joint and several guarantee in respect of the obligations of VSM (NCGM) Limited relating to the redevelopment
of New Covent Garden Market, London This 15 a guarantee in the ordinary course of business and would require the guarantors

to comply with the terms of the development agreement and to indemnify Covent Garden Market Authonty against any breach of
those terms

The Group, together with Salhia Real Estate KS C has provided a parent company guarantee in respect of the £135m bank facility
provided to Key Property Investments Limited The guarantee provided by the Group 15 capped at50% of the total commitment
under the agresment from time to time, limiting the Group guarantee to £67 5m as at 30" Novernber 2013 The Group has provided
a guarantee of up to £80m in respect of corporate obligations refated to the share sale and purchase agreement facilitating the sale
of Elephant and Castle Shopping Centre Salhia Real Estate K S G has provided a guarantee to the Group in respect of 50% of
these obligations

St Modwen Properties PLC has guaranteed the habilities of the following subsidiaries in order that they qualify for the exemption
from audit under Section 478A of the Comparnies Act 2006 n respect of the year ended 30™ November 2013

Name of subsidiary Company Registratton Number
Festival Waters Limited 04354481
Shaw Park Developments Limuted 04625000
St Modwen Developments (Chorley) Limited 05727011
St Modwen Developments (Connah’s Quay) Limited 05726352
St Modwen Developments (Hull) Limited 05593517
St Modwen Developments (Longbridge) Lirmated! 02885028
St Modwen Developments (Meon Vale) bmited 05294589
St Modwen Developments (Queens Market) Limrted 05289380
St Modwen Developments (Quinton) Limited 01479159
St Modwen Developments (Wythenshawe) Limited 05594279
St Modwen Investments Limited 00528657

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Group and its nen-wholly owned subsidianies, joint ventures and associates are all undertaken on an arm's
length basis and are detalled as follows

Key Property investments Limited (KPl)
Dunng the vear the Group provided management and construction services to KPI for which it received fees totalling £0 5m
{2012 £0 7m) The balance due to the Group at year end was £1 8m (2012 £4 3m) No interest 15 charged on this balance

VSM Estates Uxbndge (Group) Limited (VSM Unbndge)

In the pnior year the Group set up VSM Uxbridge as a new jaint venture with VINCI PLG to hold the former RAF Uxbndge site

VSM entities holding the former RAF Uxbndge sites were transferred to this joint venture together with the retated habiliies to settle
the deferred consideration due under Project MoDEL

VSM Uxbridge 1s funded by loan notes and short-term funding provided by the Group and VINCIPLC together with bank debt
The balance due to the Group at the year end was £13 7m (2012 £8 6m), of which £6 Om {2012 £6 Om} s loan notes on which
interest 1s chargeable Interest charged in the year ended 30™ November 2013 was £1 4m (2012 20 7m)

Barton Business Park Limited (Barton)

The balance due to Barton at the year end was £3 8m (2012 £3 8m)} No interest 15 charged an ths balance

Skypark Development Partnership LLP (Skypark)

During the year the Group provided funding of £0 6m to Skypark (2012 £nijj The balance due tothe Group from Skypark at the year

end was £1 1m (2012 £0 5m), of which £1 1m (2012 £0 5m) relates to loan notes 13sued to the Group No interest 1s charged on
this balance
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Financial Statements

Notesto the Group Financial Statements contrues

for the year ended 30* November 2013

22 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

Wrexham Power Limited (Wrexham Power)

Dunng the year the Group provided funding to Wrexham Power of £nil (2012 £0 2m) The balance due to the Group at the year end
was £0 2m (2012 £0 2m) No interest 1s charged on this balance

Wrexham Land Limited, (Wrexham Land)

Dunng the year the Group provided funding to Wraxham Land of £l (2012 £0 1m) The balance due to the Group at the year end
was £0 1m (2012 £0 1m) No interest is charged on this balance

VSM (NCGM) Limited (VSM (NCGM))

In December 2012 the Group set up VSM (NCGM) as a new joint venture with VINCI PLC to jointly redevelop the 57 acre New
Covent Garden Market sites in partnership with the Covent Garden Market Authonty

Dunng the year the Group provided funding to VSM (NCGM) of £1 4m (2012 £ni]) The balance due to the Group at the year end
was E14m (2012 Enil) No interest 15 charged on this balance

St Modwen Pension Scheme

The Group occupigs offices owned by the pension scheme with a value of £0 4m (2012 £0 4m) with an annual rental payable
of £0 1m (2012 €0 1m) The balance due to the Group at year end was £0 1m (2012 £06 1m)

Non-wholly owned subsidianes

The Company provides administrative and managesment services and provides a central purchase ledger system to subsidiary
companias In addition, the Company also operates a central treasury function which lends to and borrows from subsidiary
undertakings as appropnate Management fees and interest charged/(credited) during the year and net balances due (to)J/from
subsidiaries in which the Gompany has less than a 30% interest were as follows

Management fees Interest Batance
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m £m £m £m
Norton & Proffitt Developments Limited - - - - {c2) 04
Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration
(Investments) Limited - - - - {0 8) 08
Stoke-on-Trent Regeneration Limited - - {01) 01) (3 5) 37)
Trentham Leisure Limited - - 14 14 195 197
Uttoxeter Estates Limited - - - - {0 2) 04
VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited - 02 06 08 (17 3) (7 3)
Widnes Regeneration Limited ~ — - - 23 24
- 02 1.9 21 {0 2) 111

All amounts due to the Group are unsecured and will be settled in cash All amounts above are stated before provisions for doubtful
debts of £nil (2012 £nil) No guarantees have been given or received from related parties

Transactions in which directors have an interest

Branston Properties Limited (Branston)

In 2010 the Group entered into an option to acquire the entire 1Issued share capital of Branston, a company in which the farmily of
Simon Clarke has a financial interest, at market value The pnce paid for the option was £0 1m and exercise of this Is contingent
on certain planning milestones being achieved

Key management personnel
The directors are considered to be the Group's key management personnel and therr remuneration 1s disclosed in the Directors’
Remuneration Report
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Financial Statements

Company Balance Sheet
as at 30" November 2013
2013 2m2
Notes £m £
Fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets E 05 05
Investments held as fixed assets F 692.7 6504
693 2 6509
Current assets
Debtors (including amounts falling due after more than one year of £212 6m (2012 £221 Omj) G 5142 4378
Cash at bank and in hand 3.2 29
Current liabilribes
Creditors amounts falling due within one year H (296 7) (293 0)
Net current assets 2207 1477
Total assets less current hiabilihies 913 9 7986
Credtors amounts falling due after more than one year H {270 0) (2711)
Net assets 643 9 5275
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital K 220 200
Share premiumn account L 1028 1028
Revaluation reserve L 422.9 3806
Profit and Loss Account L 48 2 219
Share incentive reserve L 21 24
QOwn shares L {0.3) {0 5)
Other reserves L 46 2 03
Equnty shareholders’ funds 643.9 5275

These Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 39 February 2014 and were signed on its behalf by

Bill Cliver and Micl unn

Bill Oliver Michael Dunn
Chief Executive Group Finance Director
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Financial Statements

Notestothe Company Financial Statements

for the year ended 30" November 2013

(A} ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of preparation
The Fmancial Statements and notes have been prepared in accordance with apphcable UK GAAP on a going concern basis, as
discussed in the Strategic Report

The pnncipal accounting policies are summarised below and have been applied consistently In the current and preceding year

Compliance with SSAP19 ‘Accounting for Investment Properties’ requires departure from the Companies Act 2008 relating to
depreciation and an explanahon of the departure 1 given below

Accounting convention
The Financial Statements have been prepared under the histoncal cost convention except for the revaluation of certain properhies,
denvative financial instruments and the defined benefit section of the Company’s pension scheme

Revenue recogniton
Revenue 1s recognised to the extent that the Company obtains the nght to consideration in exchange for its performance
Revenue 1s measured at the fair value of the consideration received, excluding discounts and VAT

Rertal income
Rental income ansing from investment properties 1s accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Interest recevable
Interest receivable 1S recognised on an accruals basis

Tangble fixed assels
Tangible fixed assets, other than investment properties, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciahion and accumulated
impairment losses Such cost includes costs directly attnbutable to making the asset capable of operating as intended

Deprectation (s provided on all ptant, machmery and equipment at rates calculated to write off the cost less estimated residual value,
based on pnces prevailing at the Balance Sheet date, of each asset evenly over its expected useful life as follows

Plant, machinery and equipment — over two to five years
Deprectation 1s not provided on invesiment properties which are subject to annual revaluations

Long leasehold investment properties

In accordance with SSAP19, investment properties are revalued annually and the aggregate surplus or temporary deficit 1s
transferred to the revaluation reserve Permanent diminutions are recognised through the Profit and Loss Account No depreciation
15 provided In respect of investment properties

The Companies Act 2006 requires all properties to be depreciated However, this reguirement conflicts with the generally accepted
accounting principle set out In SSAP19 The directors consider that, because these properties are not held for consumpton but
for thar investment potential, to depreciate them would not give a true and farr view and that it 15 necessary to adopt SSAP191n
order to give a true and far view If this departure from the Act had not been made, the profit for the financial year would have been
reduced by depreciation However, the amount of depreciation cannot reasonably be quantified because depreciation is only one
of many factors reflacted in the annual valuation and the amount which might otherwisa have been shown cannot be separately
identified or quantified

Investment in subsidiary, jont venture and associated companies

The investments in subsidiary, joint venture and associated companies are included in the Company's Balance Sheet at the
Company's share of net asset value The valuation recognises the cost of acquisiion and changes in the book values of the
underlying net assets The surplus or deficit ansing on revaluation is reflected in the Company’s reserves

Current taxation
Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered rom, or paid to, the taxation authontes,
based on tax rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted by the Balance Sheet date

The tax currently payable 1s based on the taxable result for the year The taxable resutt differs from the result as reported in the
Incorme Statement because it excludes tems of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and 1t further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible
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Deferred taxation

Deferred tax 1s recognised in respect of all timing differences that have onginated but not reversed at the Balance Sheet date
where transactions or events have occurred at that date that will result in an obhigation fo pay less or to receve more tax, with the
following exceptions

# provision is made for tax on gains ansing frorn the revaluation (and similar fair value adjustmenis) of fixed assets and gains on
disposal of fixed assets that have been rolled over into replacement assets only to the extent thal, at the Balance Sheet date, there
15 a binding agreement to dispose of the assets concerned However, no provision 1s made where, on the basis of all available
evidence at the Balance Sheet datg, it Is more likely than not that the taxable gain will be rolled over into replacement assets and
charged to tax only where the replacement assets are sold, and

= deferred tax assets are recogmised only to the extent that the directors consider that it 1s more likely than not that there will be
suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the undertying timing differences can be deducted

Deferred tax 1s measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods in which timing

differences reverse based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date

Interest
Interest pard 1s charged to the Profit and Loss Account on an accruals basis

Finance costs of debt are allecated over the term of the debt at a constant rate on the camying amount

Share-based payments

The Company accounts for share-based payments as equity-settled Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at far
value at the date of grant using an appropnate option pricing model For those share ophions that had previously been accounted for
as cash-settled, the farr value at the date of transition became the farr vatue at the date of grant for the equity-settled share-based
ophons The farr value at the dale of grant 1s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting penod based on the Company’s
estimate of shares that will eventually vest

Pensions
The Company operates a pension scheme with both defined benefit and defined contnibution sections The defined benefit section
1s closed to new members and, from 1% September 2009, to future accrual

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit section 1s determined using the projected unit credit method, which
attnbutes entrttement to benefits to the current penod (to determine current seniice cost) and to the curent and pnor penods

(to detenmine the present value of the defined benefit obligatton) and 1s based on actuanal adwvice Past service costs are recogrised
in the Profit and Loss Account immediately if the benefits have vested

The interest element of the defined benefit cost represents the change in present value of scheme obhgations The expected return
on plan assets 1s based on an assessment made at the beginning of the year of long-term market returns on scheme assets,
adjusted for the effect on the far value of plan assets of contributions recerved and benefits paid dunng the year The difference
between the expected return on plan assets and the interest cost is recogrused in the Profit and Loss Account as other finance
INCOMe OF expense

Actuanal gans and losses are recognised in full in the Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses in the year in which

they occur The defined benefit pension asset or liabilty in the Balance Sheet compnises the present value of the defined benefit
obligation, less any past service cost not yet recognised and less the far value of plan assets out of which the obligations are to be
settled directly

Contnbutions to defined contnbution schemes are recognised n the Profit and Loss Account in the penod in which they
become payable

Dervatwve financial instruments and hedging

The Company uses denvative financial Instruments such as interest rate swaps to hedge its nisks associated with interest

rate fluctuatons Such mstruments are Inmially recognised at fair value on the date on which a contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at far value The Company has determined that the denvative financial instruments in use do not qualfy
for hedge accounting and, consequently, any gains or losses ansing from changes in the far value of denvative financial instruments
are taken to the Profit and Loss Account

Full details of the Company's denvative finangial nstruments are given in note 16 to the Group Financial Statements
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Financial Statements

Notesto the Company Financial Statements contrues

for the year ended 30" November 2013

(A) ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Own shares
Shares in St Modwen Properties PLC held by the Company are classified in equity and are recognised at cost

interest beanng loans and borrowings

All loans and borrowings are inthially recognised at far value less directly attnbutable transaction costs After inttial recognition, loans
and borrowings are measured at amortised cost

Gamns and losses ansing on the repurchase, settliement or otherwise cancellation of liabilities are recognised respectively in finance
income and expense

Operating leases
Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the Profit and Loss Account on a straight-line basis over the lease term

Cash Flow Statement
The Gompany has taken advantage of the exemption permitted by FRS1 not to present a Cash Flow Staternent

(B) RESULT FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR

The Company has taken advantage of Section 408 of the Compartes Act 2006 and has not included its own Profit and Loss
Account in these Financial Statements The Company's profit for the year ended 30" November 2013 was £34 6m (2012 £9m loss)

(C) OPERATING EXPENSES

() Audt fees
2013 2012
Audit and Audrt and
audit-related audit-related
services Other services Total SENI0ES Other sapvces Torat
£°000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000
Fees paid to Delortte LLP n respect of
Fees payable for the audit of the
Company's Annual Financial Statements 150 - 150 137 - 137
Total audit fees 150 - 150 137 - 137
Audit-related assurance services 50 - 50 50 - 50
Other assurance services - - - - 20 20
Tax compliance services - 50 50 - 50 50
Tax advisory services - 45 45 — 19 19
Total non-audrt fees 50 95 145 50 89 139
Total fees 200 95 295 187 89 276

{i) Employees
The average number of full-time employees (including executive directors) employed by the Company dunng the year were
as follows

2013 2012

Number Number

Property 146 136

Lesure and other activities 38 38

Adrministration 46 4

Total employees 230 215
The total payroll costs of the employees were

2013 2012

£m £m

Wages and salanes "7 114

Social security costs 18 15

Pension costs 0.7 07

Total payroll costs 14 2 136
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(D} DIVIDENDS

Dwvidends paid dunng the year were in respect of the final dvdend for 2012 and an intenm dividend for 2013 The proposed final
dwvrdend 1s subject to approval at the Annual General Meeting and has not been included as a habilty in these Financial Statements

2013 2012
p por shara fm p per share £m
Paid
Final dividend in respect of previous year 242 53 220 44
Intenm dnadend in respect of cumrent year 1.33 2.9 121 24
Total 375 g2 3MN 68
Proposed
Current year final dividend 2 67 59 242 48
The Employee Benefit Trust warves its entitlement to dividends
{E) TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS
Long Ptant,
leasehold machtnery
investmant and
properties equipment Total
£m £m £m
Cost or valuation
At 30" November 2012 03 25 28
Additions — 02 02
At 30" Novemnber 2013 0.3 27 30
Depreciation
At 30" November 2012 - 23 23
Charge for the year - 02 02
At 30" November 2013 - 25 25
Net book value
At 30" November 2012 03 02 05
At 30" November 2013 0.3 02 0.5

Investment properties were valued at 30" November 2013 by Jones Lang LaSalle LLPF, Chartered Surveyors, in accordance with the
Appraisal and Valuation Manua! of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors, on the basis of maket value Jones Lang LaSalle
LLP are professionally qualified independent external valuers and have recent expenence in the relevant [ocation and category of the
properties being valued

Long leasehold investment properties are currently let under operating leases for the purpose of generating rental Income

St Modwen Propertites PLC Annual Report and Financeal Statenents 2013 147

yoday oiBayens

SUALIATE]S [BIOURUIH soueLaAoY) spedodion

UORBULIOJU| [BUCHIPRY




Financial Statements

Notesto the Company Financial Statements contrued

for the year ended 30" November 2013

(F) INVESTMENTS HELD AS FIXED ASSETS

Investment investment
in subsidiary injoint
companies venturas Total
£m £m £m
Valuation
At 30" Novemnber 2012 5650 854 650 4
Revaluation of investments 233 190 423
At 30" November 2013 588 3 104 4 6927
Cost
Al 30" November 2012 2783 265 304 8
At 30" November 2013 2783 26.5 304 8
Subsidiary companies
At 30" November 2013 the principal subsidianes, all of which were held directly by the Company, were as follows
Proportion of ordinary Principal nature
Entity name Country of incorporation shares held of business
Chaucer Estates Limited England & Wales 100% Property invesiment
Holaw (462) Limited England & Wales 100% Property nvestment
Leisure Living Limited England & Wales 100% Lersure operator
Redman Heenan Properties Limited England & Wales 100% Property investment
Sowecrest Limited England & Wales 100% Property development
St Modwen Developments Limited England & Wales 100% Property development
St Modwen Properties Sarl Luxembxourg 100% Property mvestment
St Modwen Ventures Limited England & Wales 100% Property investment
Stoke on Trent Regeneration Limited England & Wales 81% Property development
Uttoxeter Estates Limited England & Wales 81% Property development
Trentham Leisure Limited England & Wales 80% Lelsure operator
Norton & Proffitt Developments Limited England & Wales 75% Property development
VSM Estates (Holdings) Limited England & Wales 50% Property development
Jont ventures
At 30" November 2013 the principal joint ventures were
Proportion of ordinary Principal nature
Entity nama Country of incorporation shares held of business
Barton Business Park Limited England & Wales 50% Property development
Property investment
Key Property Investments Limited England & Wales 50% and development
Skypark Development Partnership LLP England & Wales 50% Property development
Property investment
V8M Estates Uxbndge (Group) Limited England & Wales 50% and development

Many of the shareholder agreements for jont ventures and associates contain change of control provisions, as 1s common for

such arrangements

The Company has taken advantage of the exemption under Section 410(2) of the Companies Act 2006 by providing infarmation
only in relation to undertakings whose results or financial posthon, in the opinicn of the directors, pnncipally affected the Group

Financial Statements

A complete st of subsidiary, joint venture and associated undertakings will be attached to the next St Modwen Properties PLC

annual return to Companies House
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(G} DEBTORS

2013 2012
£rn £m
Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amounts falling due from subsidianes 206.6 2150
Amounts due from joint venture and associated companies 6.0 60
212.6 2210
2013 2012
£m £m
Amounts falling due within one year
Trade debtors 03 03
Amounts due from subsidianes 2758 1865
Amounts due from joint venture and associated companies 12 68
Other debtors 1.4 12
Prepayments and accrued income 32 38
Corporation tax 59 29
Deferred tax asset (see note J) 38 53
301.6 2168
(H) CREDITORS
2013 2012
£m em
Amounts falling due within one year
Bank overdrafts 8.4 54
Trade creditors 0.8 12
Amounts due to subsidianes 2577 2521
Amounts due to joint venture and associated companies 40 39
Other tax and social security 15 08
Other creditors 14 08
Accruals and deferred income 106 103
Dervative financial instruments 123 185
2967 2830
2013 2012
£ £m
Amounts falling due after more than one year-
Bank loans 1900 1911
Other loans 800 800
2700 2711

All bank borrowings are secured by a fixed charge over the property assets of the Company and its subsidianes

Other loans compnse an unsecured 6 25% fixed rate retaill bond matunng in November 2019
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Financial Statements

Notesto the Company Financial Statements conmnueq

for the year ended 30™ November 2013

(l BORROWINGS
The matunty profile of the bank borrowings, all of which are wholly repayable within five years, 1s as follows

2013 2012
£m £m
Less than one year 625 54
One to two years 450 1000
Two to five years 825 911
More than five years 800 800
Total 2700 2765
{J) DEFERRED TAXATION
The amounts of deferred taxation provided and unprowvided m the Financial Staterments are
Provnided Unprowided
2013 2012 2013 2012
£m £m £m m

Other tming differences {3 8} (53} - -

{3 8) 53 - —
Reconciliation of movement on defened tax asset mcluded in debtors

£m
Balance as at 30™ November 2012 53
Profit and Loss Account 15
Balance as at 30" November 2013 (3 8)
Reconciliation of deferred tax labilty included in pension scheme asset
£m
Balance as at 30™ November 2012 -
Profit and Loss Account -
Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses -
Balance as at 30" November 2013 -
(Ky SHARE CAPITAL
Ordinary
10p shares
Number £m

Equity share caprtal
At start of year 200,360,931 200
Issue of share capital 20,016, 057 20
At end of year 220,376,988 220

See note 3d of the Group Financial Statements for detalls of outstanding options to acqure ordinary shares

On 1* March 2013 the Group completed a ‘cash box’ placing of 20,016,057 ordinary shares of 10p each at £2 45 per share
Net proceeds were £47 9m after share 1ssue costs, of which the £2 O0m nominal value of the shares was credited to share capital
with the balance to other reserves
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(L) RESERVES

- Share Profil Share
premium  Revaluation and Loss incentive Own Other
account reserve Account reserve  shares reserves
£m £m £m £m £m £m
At 30" November 2012 1028 3806 219 24 {05) 03
Surplus on revaluation of investments - 423 - - - -
Retained profit for the year (note B) - - 346 — — —
Equity raise — — - - - 459
Share-based payment charge - - - 03 - -
Net share disposals — - - - 02 -
Dmidends pad {note D) — - 82 - - —
Actuanal loss on pension scheme {note M) - - {01 - - —
Movement on deferred tax relating to pension asset (note J) - - - - - -
At 30" November 2013 102.8 4229 482 21 {0 3) 46 2

Own shares represents the cost of 72,682 (2012 215,754) shares held by the Employee Benefit Trust The open market value of the
shares held at 30" Novernber 2013 was £259,553 (2012 £469,912) In addition the Employee Benefit Trust has £0 1m (2012 £0 1m)
of cash and £0 3m due to the Company (2012 £3 5m due from the Company), that can only be used for the benefit of employees

(M) PENSIONS

The Company's pension schemes are the pnncipal pension schemes of the Group and details are set out in note 18 of the Group
Financial Statements The directors are satisfied that this note, which contains the required IAS 19 ‘Employee Benefits' disclosures
for the Group, also covers the requrements of FRS17 ‘Retirement Benefits' for the Company

(N) OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments where the Company 1s the lessee
Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows

2013 2012
Land and Land and
bulldings Gther buddings Cther
£m £m £m £m
Operating leases which expire.
In one year or less - 02 - C1
Between one and five years 05 0.4 01 04
In more than five years 0t 02 05 02
06 08 06 07

(Q) CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of contingent liabilities together with guarantees made in respect of certain subsidianes in order that they qualify for the
exemption from audit under S479A of the Companies Act 2006 are provided in note 21 to the Group Financial Staternents  Further,
the Company guarantees the performance of ts subsidianes in the course of their usual commercial activities

(P) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Detalls of related party transactions are provided in note 22 to the Group Financial Statements
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Financial Statements

Five Year Record

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
£m om tm £m £m
Rental income!" 335 337 355 362 36.3
Property profits()@ 76 219 238 290 39.8
Revaluation surplus/{deficit)(}& (1223 230 339 280 42.0
Pre-tax profit/(loss)¥ (1202 382 517 528 82.2
Earnings/{loss) per share {pence) (597) 186 217 213 335
Dividends paid per share (pence) - 100 310 341 375
Dividend cover (times) - 186 70 62 9.4
Net assets per share (pence) 2001 2186 2376 256 4 2787
Increase/(decrease} on prior year {20%) 9% 9% 8% 11%
Net assets employed
Investment properties 7629 8280 8487 7704 8133
Investments 413 494 503 752 953
Inventones 1927 1716 1911 1752 1955
Other net habilties (2771) (2973 (2670} {1411) (136.4)
Net borrowings (318 8) (3149 (3471) {366 0) (340 7)
Minonty mnterests B87) 15 (116) (111 (12 8)
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 382 3 4272 464 4 5026 614 2
Financed by
Share capital 200 200 200 200 220
Reserves 3727 4078 4449 483 1 5925
Own shares {0 4) {0 6) {0 5) {05) (0.3)
3923 4272 464 4 5026 514.2

(1) Including share of jont ventures
(2) Stated before net realisable value provisions
() Including net reakisable vatue provisions

(4) Including post-tax profit of joint ventures

The figures above are all presented under IFRSs
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Additional Information

Glossary of Terms

Active management — the component of property revaluations delivered as a direct result of management actions and intratives e g
obtaining planning consent, achieving remediation milestones and improving lease terms

EPRA — the European Public Real Estate Association, a body that has put forward recormmendations for best practice for financial
reporting by real estate companies

EPRA net asset value (EPRA NAV) — the Balance Sheet net assets, excluding far vatue adjustments for debt and related dervatives
together with deferred taxation on revatuahons and capital allowances

EPRA net asset value per share — EPRA net asset value divided by the diluted number of shares at the penod end

Estimated net rental ncome — the passing cash rent less ground rent at the balance sheet date, estimated non-recoverable
outgoings and void costs including service charges, insurance costs and void rates

Estimated rental value (ERV) — the Group’s external valuers' opinien as to the open market rent which, on the date of valuation,
could reasonably be expected to be obtained on a new letting or rent review of the property

Equivalent yield — a weighted average of the nitial yield and reversionary yield and represents thereturn a property will produce
based on the tirming of the Income receved

Gearing — the level of the Group's bank bomowmng (excluding finance leases) expressed as a percentage of net assets
Gross Development Value (GDV) — the sale value of property after construction

IFRIC — International Financial Reporting interpretations Committee

IFRSs — International Financial Reporting Standards

Initial yield — the annualised net rent expressed as a percentage of the valuation

Interest — net finance costs {excluding the mark-to-market of derivative financial Instruments and other non-cash items) for the
Group (including its share of joint ventures and associates)

Interest Cover Ratioc — the rahio of operating income to interest

Land bank — the bank of property compnsing all of the land under the Group’s control, whether wholly owned or through joint
ventures or development agreemenis

LIBOR — the London Interbank Offered Rate 1s the average interest rate that leading banks i London charge when lending to
other banks

Loan-to-value ratio (LTV) — the ratic of Group net debt to the Group property portfolio {excluding joint ventures and associates})

Market value — an opinion of the best pnce at which the sale of an interest in the property would complete unconditionally for

cash consideration on the date of valuation (as determined by the Group’s external valuers) In accordance with usual practice, the
Group’s external valuers report valuations net, after the deduction of the prospective purchaser’s costs, including stamp duty, agent
and legal fees

Net asset value (NAV) per share — equity attnbutable to owners of the Company divided by the number of ordinary shares n 1ssue at
the penod end

Net debt — total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents
Net rental ncome — the rental ncome recevable 1n the pencd after payment of ground rents and net property outgoings

Net initial yield — a calculation by the Group’s external valuers as the yield that would be received by a purchaser, based on the
estimated net rental incorne expressed as a percentage of the acquisition cost, being the market value plus assumed actual
purchasers' costs at the reporting date The calculation 15 in ine with EPRA guidance
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Additional Information

Glossary of Terms (continued)

Occupancy rates — the ERV attnbutable to vacant ursts as a proportion of total ERV (including the Group's share of joint ventures
and associates)

Operating ncome — the total of net rental Income, other income and property profits

Operating costs/business running costs — administrative expenses plus net finance costs (excluding the mark-to-market of
derivative financial instruments and other non-cash items) for the Group (including its share of joint ventures and associates)

Persimmon joint venture — a contractual arrangerment with Persimmon to develop residential units an agreed sites within the
St Modwen land bank

Pre-sold projects — those projects where we are constructing bulldings that have been specified by, and designed for, or adapted
by, a specific clent under a specific construction contract On such projects, profit 15 recognised using the stage completien methed

Profit before all tax — profit before tax stated before the deduction of tax payable by jont ventures and associates

Project MoDEL — Project MoDEL onginally saw six former London-based RAF sites freed up for disposal and development as the
MoD relocated to an integrated site at RAF Northolt VINCI St Modwen (VSM}) was appointed by the MoD in 2008 to secure planning
consent to redevelop the six sites of which VSM disposed of four, retaining RAF Mill Hil and RAF Uxbndge The latter was removed
from the MoD arrangement and transferred to a separate joint venture with VINCI in 2012

Property portfolioc — the property compenents of investment properties and inventones of the Group (including its share of joint
ventures and associates)

Property profits — development profit (before the deduction of net realisable value provisions) plus gains on disposals of
nvestments/investment properties for the Group, including its share of joint ventures and associates

Rental lease length — the weighted average lease term to the first tenant break

Rent roll — the gross rent plus rent reviews that have been agreed as at the reporting date

RICS — Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors

See-through gearing — the ratio of see-through net debt tc net assets

See-through loan-to-value ratic — the ratio of see-through net debt to the property portfolio

See-through net debt — net debt of the Group together with 1its share of the net debt of joint ventures and associates
SIC — Standards and Interpretations Committee

Trading profit — operating income less operating costs

TSR — total sharehclder return represents the growth in value of a shareholding over a specified penod, assuming that dividends are
reinvested to purchase additional units of stock

Voids — the ERV of vacant properhies expressed as a percentage of the total ERV of the portfolio, excluding development properties

Weighted average debt matunty — each tranche of Group debt 1s multiplied by the remaning penod to its matunty and the result 1s
divided by total Group debt In 1ssue at the pertod end

Weighted average interest rate — the Group loan interest and denvative costs per annum at the penod end, divided by total Group
debt in Issue at the pencd end
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Addiional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting

Notice 1s hereby given that the seventy third Annual General Meeting (AGM) of St Madwen Properties PLC (the Company) will
be held at the Marketing Surte, Innovation Centre, 1 Devon Way, Longbndge Technology Park, Brmingham B31 2TS on Friday,
28" March 2014 at 12 00 noon to consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions Resolutions 1 to 17 inclusive will
be proposed as ordinary resolutions and resolutions 18 to 20 inclusive will be proposed as special resolutions

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1 That the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30" November 2013 be received

2 That the Directors’ Remuneration Report, excluding the part containing the directors' remuneration policy, set out on pages 76 to
97 of the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the financial year ended 30™ November 2013 be approved

3 That the directors’ remuneration policy, the full text of which 1s set out on pages 78 to 87 of the Annual Report and Financial
Statements for the financial year ended 30™ November 2013 and which will take effect from 1# December 2014, be approved

4 That a final dvidend for the financial year ended 30™ November 2013 of 2 67p per crdinary share payable on 4™ Apnl 2014 to
those shareholders on the register of members at the close of business on 7 March 2014 be declared

5 That Richard Mully be elected as a director

6 That Steve Burke be re-elected as a director

7 That Kay Chaldecott be re-elected as a director
8 That Simon Clarke be re-elected as a director

9 That Michael Dunn be re-elected as a director
10 That Lesley James be re-elected as a director
11 That Bill Oliver be re-elected as a director

12 That John Salmon be re-glected as a director
13 That Bill Shannon be re-elected as a director

14 That Deloitte LLP be re-appointed as auditor of the Company to hold office untid the conclusion of the next general meeting at
which accounts are laid before the Company

15 That the directors be authonsed to determine the remuneration of the Company’s auditor

SPECIAL BUSINESS

16 That the amendments to the rules of the St Modwen Properties PLC 2004 Saving Related Share Option Scheme (including
the extension of the scheme for a penod of 10 years from the date of the AGM), as summansed and explained in Part | of
the Appendix to this notice of AGM, be approved and the directors be authonsed to do all things necessary to give effect to
the amendments

17 That, tn substitution for all existing authonties and without prejudice to prevtous allotments or offers or agreement to allot made
pursuant to such authornties, the directors be generally and uncondibionally authonsed in accordance with section 551 of the
Companies Act 2006 to exercise all the powers of the Company to

(a) aliot shares in the Company or grant rights to subscnbe for or to convert any secunty into shares in the Company up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £7,345,899 {the Sectien 551 amount), and

(b) allot equity secunties (within the meaning of section 560 of the Companies Act 2006) up to a further aggregate nominal
amount of £7,345,898 in connection with an offer by way of a nghts i1ssue to

) ordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearty as may be practicable) to ther existing holdings, and

{il holders of other equity secunties, as required by the nghts of those secunties or, subject to such nghts, as the directors
otherwise consider necessary,

subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with treasury
shares, fractional entitlements or legal or practical preblems under the laws of, or the requrements of any regulatory body or
any stock exchange in, any country or temtory,

such authonties to expire at the concluston of the AGM of the Company to be held after the date of the passing of this resolution
or 27" June 2015, whichever 1$ the earlier, but, In each case, so that the Company may make offers and enter into agreements
before the expiry of such authomty which would or might require shares to be allotted or nghts to subscnbe for or to convert any
secunty into shares to be granted after such expiry and the directors may allot shares or grant such nghts under any such offer or
agreement as if the authonty had not expired
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Additional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

SPECIAL BUSINESS (CONTINUED)

Special resolution

18 That, in substitubion for alt existing powers and subject to the passing of resolution 17, the directors be generally empowered
pursuant to section 570 of the Companies Act 2006 to allot equity securnities (withinthe meaning of section 560 of the Companies
Act 2006) for cash pursuant to the authonty granted by resolution 17 and/or where the allotment constitutes an allotment of
equity securthes by virtue of section 560(3) of the Companies Act 2006, in each case free of the restnction in section 561 of the
Companies Act 2006, such power to be mrted to

(a) the allotment of equity secunties pursuant to the authonty granted by paragraph (a) of resolution 17 and/or an allotment which
constitutes an allotment of equity securities by virtue of section 560(3) of the Companies Act 2006 {in each case otherwise
than in the circumstances set out in paragraph (b) of this resolution) up to a nomnal amount of £1,101,884 (the Section 561
amount), and

(b} the allotment of equity Secunties in connection with an offer of equity secunties (but in the case of an allotment pursuant to
the authonty granted by paragraph (b) of resolution 17, such power shall be imited to the allotment of equity secunties in
connection with an offer by way of a nghts iIssue only)

{) 1o ordinary shareholders in proportion (as nearly as may be practicable) to therr existing holdings, and i

() to holders of other equity secunties, as required by the nghts of those secunties or, subject to such nghts, as the directors
otherwise consider necessary,

subject to such exclusions or other amangements as the directors may deem necessary or expedient to deal with treasury
shares, fractional entitlements or legal or practical problems under the laws of, or the requirements of any reguiatory body or
any stock exchange n, any country or temtory,

such power to expire at the conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be held afterthe date of the passing of this resolution or
27" June 2015, whichever 1s the earlier, but so that the Company may make offers and enter into agreements before the power
expires which would or might require equity secunties to be allotted after such power expires and the directors may allot equity
secunties under any such offer or agreement as If the power had not expired

Special resoclution

19 That the Company be generally and unconditionally authonsed for the purposes of section 701 of the Companes Act 2006
to make market purchases (as defined n section 693 of the Companies Act 2006} of ordinary shares of 10p each in its capital
{Ordinary Shares) on such terms and in such manner as the directors may from ttme 1o time determine provided that

{a) the maximum aggregate number of Ordinary Shares hereby authonsed to be purchased is 22,037,698,
{b) the minimum prce which may be pad for an Ordinary Share s 10p (exclusive of expenses),
(¢} the maximum price which may be paid for an Ordinary Share 15 the highest of (in each case exclusive of expenses)

(1 anamount equal to 105% of the average market value of an Ordinary Share for the five business days immediately
preceding the day on which the Ordinary Share 1s contracted to be purchased, and

() the higher of the price of the last independent trade and the highest current independent bid for any number of Ordinary
Shares on the Lendon Stock Exchange, and

{d) this authonty shall, unless previously renewed, expire at the conclusion of the AGM of the Company to be held after the
date of the passing of this resolution or 27" June 2015, whichever I1s the earler, except in relation to the purchase of any
Ordinary Shares the contract for which was coencluded before the date of expiry of the authonty and which would or might be
complated wholly or partly after that date ‘

Special resolution
20 That a general meeting other than an AGM may be called on not less than 14 clear days’ notice

RECOMMENDATICN

The Board confirms that, in its opimon, all of the resolutions are in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole
The directors unanimously recommend that shareholders vote in favour of each of the above resolutions, as they intend to do in ‘
respect of ther own beneficial shareholdings

By order of the Board

Tanya Stote
Company Secretary

20" February 2014

St Modwen Properties PLC
Registered number 349201
Registered office Sir Stanley Clarke House, 7 Ridgeway, Quinton Business Park, Birmingham B32 1AF
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EXPLANATORY NOTES TO PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS

Resolution 1 - Annual Report and Financial Statements
Resolution 115 an ordinary resolution to receve the Annual Report and Financial Statements for the financial year ended
30" Novernber 2013 Coptes wilf be available at the AGM

Resolutions 2 and 3 - Directors’ Remuneration Report

There are new requirements this year in relation to the content and approval of the Directors’ Remuneration Report following changes
made to the Companies Act 2006 In accordance with the new Companies Act 2006 provisions, the Directors' Remuneration

Report contains

+ astatement by Lesley James, Charr of the Remuneration Commttee pages 76 - 77,

* the remuneration policy report (pages 78 — 87) which provides detalls of the remuneration policy that will apply from 1% December
2014, and

+ the annual repert on remuneration (pages 87 — 97) which descnbes how the remuneration policy was implemented for the year
ended 30" November 2013 and how the policy will apply for the year ending 30® November 2014

Resolution 2 1s an ordinary resolution to approve the Directors’ Remuneration Repont, other than the part containing the directors’
remuneration policy Resolution 2 1s an adwvisory resolution and does not affect the future remuneration paid to any director

Resolution 3 Is an ordinary resolution to approve the directors’ remuneration policy which 1s set out in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report Once the directors’ remuneration policy as approved by shareholders comes into effect, all payments by the Company to
the directors and any former directors must be made in accordance with the policy (unless a payment has been separately approved
by a shareholder resolution) If approved, the directors' remuneration policy will take effect from 1% December 2014 Payments will
continue to be made to directors and former directors in kne with existing arrangements until that date

Resolution 4 — Declaratton of final dwvidend

Resolution 4 1s an ordinary resolution by which shareholders are asked to declare a final dividend The directors recommend a final
dvdend for the financial year ended 30™ November 2013 of 2 67p per ordinary share If approved, this will be paid on 4™ April 2014
to shareholders on the register of members at the close of business on 7" March 2014

Resolutions 5 to 13 - Election and re-election of directors
Resolutions 5 to 13 are ordinary resolutions which deal with the election and re-election of the directors

Following his appointment to the Board on 1% September 2013 and in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Asscciation,
Richard Mully will retire and offer himself for election at the 2014 AGM All other directors will retire and ofter thernselves for
re-election in accordance with the 2012 UK Corporate Governance Code

Brographical details of all directors are set out on pages 56 and 57

The performance of the Board as a whole, as well as the contnbution made by individual directors, has been reviewed dunng the
course of the year After considernng this evaluation, the Charrman has confirmed that the performance of every executive and
non-executive director continues to be effective, that they continue to demonstrate commmtment to their respective roles, and that
therr respective skills complement one another to enhance the overall operation of the Board

Resolutions 14 and 15 — Auditor appointment and remuneration

At last year's AGM shareholders re-appointed Deloitte LLP as auditor of the Company te hold office until the conclusion of the 2014
AGM Delaitte has expressed a willingness to continue in office and the Audit Committee has reviewed the effectiveness of the audit
process and recommends thesr re-appointment Therefore resolutions 14 and 15 are ordinary resolutions to re-appoint Deloitte LLP
as auditor until the conclusion of the next general meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company and to authorise the
directors to determine their remuneration

Resolution 16 — Proposed extension of SAYE option scherne and amendments

The St Modwen Properties PLC 2004 Saving Related Share Optton Scheme (the SAYE Scheme) was adopted by the Company
in general meeting on 6 August 2004 It 1s a tax-advantaged option scheme under which employees are offered options over the
Company's shares, linked to a savings account funded by deductions from the employees’ salary The savings are used to pay
the exercise pnce on exercise of the option, but can be withdrawn by the employee if the option 1s not exercised Options must
be offered to all employees of the Group who have completed a qualifying period of employment, and the Board views the SAYE
Scheme as a useful way to motivate the wider workforce and align their interests wrth those of shareholders

The SAYE Scheme 1s due to terminate on 6™ August 2014 The Board would like to retain the abilty to grant tax-advantaged
save-as-you-eam options, and it has been decided that it would be administratively simpler to extend the existing scheme for a
further 10 years than to adopt a new scheme Accordingly, the Board 15 seeking shareholder approval to an amendment to the SAYE
Scheme to extend it for a further 10 years
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Additional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

EXPLANATORY NOTES TO PROPOSED RESOLUTIONS (CONTINUED)

The opportunity is also being taken to update the rules in certain respects and make certain other changes The Finance Act

2013 made certain simplifications and improvements to the legislative rules applicable to option schemes such as the SAYE
Scheme, and some of these provisions had the effect of automatically amending the SAYE Scheme as of 17" July 2013 The text
of the rules 1s being updated to reflect these automatic amendments The text 1s also being updated to reflect certan amendments
to statutory references arising from the updating of tax and company law legislation these changes are not intended to alter the
meaning of the rules The opporturuty 1S also baing taken to rename the SAYE schema the 'St Modwen Properties PLC Saving
Related Share Option Scheme’

The terms of the SAYE Scheme provide that no alteration to the rules to the advantage of option helders (except for minor
amendments to benefit the administration of the scheme and amendments to cbtain or mantain favourable tax, exchange control
or regulatory treatment for option holders or any participating company) shall be made without the pnor approval of shareholders
in general meeting Part | of the Appendix to this notice of AGM summarises the proposed amendments in relation to which
shareholder approval 1s being sought at the AGM and explains therr effect

In addition, as it 1s proposed that the SAYE Scheme be renewed for a further 10 years, adescriphon of the principal terms of the
SAYE Scheme as amended by the proposed amendments I1s set out in Part [l of the Appendix to this notice of AGM

A copy of the rules of the SAYE Scheme, showing the proposed amendments (including amendments i relation to which
shareholder approval 1s not being sought), will be available for inspection at the registered office of the Company dunng normal
business hours from the date of this notice of AGM until the close of the AGM, and at the place of the AGM from 15 minutes before
the start of the meeting until the end of the meeting

Resolution 17 — Authonty to allot shares
The authority conferred on the directors at last year's AGM to allot shares in the Company exprres at the conclusion of the 2014
AGM Resolution 17 1s an ordinary resolution to renew this authonty

The Association of Bntish Insurers (ABI) guidelines on directors’ authonty to allot shares state that ABI members will permit, and
treat as routing, resolutions seeking authonty to allot new shares representing up to one-third of a company’s 1ssued share capital

In addition, they will treat as routine a request for authanty to allot shares representing an additional one-third of a company’s issued
share capital provided that it 1s only used to allot shares pursuant to a fully pre-emptive nghts 1ssue

Paragraph (a) of resolution 17 will, if passed, authorise the directors to allot shares up to a maximum aggregate nominal amount of
£7,345,899 which represents one-third of the Company's issued ordinary share capital as at 10" February 2014 {being the latest
practicable date pnor te the publication of the notice of AGM) Paragraph (b) of resclution 17 proposes that, in accordance with
ABI guidance, an additional authonty be conferred on the directors to allot shares in connection with a nghts 1ssue up to a further
maximum aggregate nominal amount of £7,345,899

The authontes sought in paragraphs (a) and (b) of resolution 17 are in substitution for all existing authonties granted inthe
Company’s Articles of Association or otherwise, and are without prejudice to previous alotments or agreements or offers to
allot made under such existing authoriies The authonties will each expire at the earlier of the conclusion of the next AGM of the
Company and 27" June 2015

The directors have no present intention of exercising these authonties other than to fulfilthe Company’s obligations under its
share incentive schemes approved previously by shareholders, but believe that it 1s in the best interests of the Company to have
the authonties available to respond to market developments and to enable allotments to take place without the need for a general
meeting should they determine that it 1s appropnate to do so

Resolution 18 — Disapplication of pre-emption nghts
If the directors wish to allet new shares and other equity secunties company law requires that these shares are offered first to
shareholders in proportion to therr existing holdings

Resolution 18 is a special resolution which seeks to renew the authonty conferred on the directors at last year's AGM to 1ssue equity
securities of the Company for cash without application of the pre-emption nghts as provided by section 561 of the Companies
Act 2006

Paragraph (a) of resolution 18 will, if passed, authorise the directors to allot new shares pursuant to the authonty given in paragraph
(a) of resolution 17 for cash () In connection with a pre-emptive offer or nghts 1ssue or (i) otherwise up to a maximum aggregate
nominal value of £1,101,884, equivalent to 5% of the Company's 1ssued ordinary share capital as at 10" February 2014 (being the
tatest practicable date pnor to the publication of the notice of AGM} In each case without the shares first being offered to existing
shareholders in proportion to therr existing holdings

In ight of the ABI guidance descnbed in the explanation of resolution 17 above, paragraph (b} of resolution 18 will, if passed,
authense the directors to allot new shares pursuant to the authonty gven by paragraph (b} of resolution 17 for cash in connection
with a nghts issue without the shares first being offered to existing shareholders in proportion to thelr existing holdings

The authonties sought in paragraphs (a) and (b) of resolution 18 are in substitution for all existing authortties granted in the
Company's Articles of Association or otherwise, and are without prejudice to previous allotments or agreements or offers to
allot made under such existing authories The authonties will each expire at the earlier of the conclusion of the next AGM of the
Company and 27™ June 2015
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In accordance with the Pre-Emption Group's Statement of Pnnciples dated Juty 2008, the directors confirm their intention not to
Issue more than 7 5% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital for cash other than to existing shareholders in any rolling
three-year pencd without pnor consultation wrth shareholders

Resolution 19 — Authonty to purchase shares

Resolution 19 1s a special resolution to renew the authonty granted to the directors at last year's AGM to make market purchases of
its own ordinary shares through the market as permitted by the Companies Act 2006 and within institutionat shareholder guidelines
No shares were purchased during the year and the Company does not currently hold any shares intreasury

If passed, the resolution gives authonty for the Company to purchase up to 22,037,698 of its ordinary shares, which represents
10% of the Company’s issued ordinary share capital as at 10" February 2014 (being the latest practicable date prior to the
publication of the notice of AGM) The resolution specifies the minimum and maximum pnces which may be pard for any ordinary
shares purchased under this authonty The authonty will expire at the earlier of the conclusion of the next AGM of the Company and
27 June 2015

The directors have no present intention for the Company to exercise the authority granted by this resolution to purchase its own
shares They would do so only after taking account of the overall financial position of the Company and in circumstances where to
do so would be regarded by the Board as being in the best interests of shareholders generally and result in an increase in earnings
per ordinary share The Company may either cancel any shares it purchases under this authority or transfer them into treasury (and
subsequently seli or transfer them out of treasury or cancet them)

As at 10" February 2014 (being the latest practicable date pnor to the publication of the notice of AGM), the Company had oplions
outstanding over 10,361,137 ordinary shares, representing 4 70% of the 1ssued share capital on that date If the Company was to
purchase the maximum number of shares permitted pursuant to this resolution, the options outstanding at 10* February 2014 would
represent 5 81% of the 1ssued share capital

Resolution 20 - Notice penod of general meetings
Resolution 20 1s a special resolution to renew an authonty granted at last year's AGM to allow the Company to hold general meetings
(other than AGMSs) on not less than 14 clear days’ notice

Changes made to the Companies Act 2006 by The Companies (Shareholders’ Rights) Regulations 2009 increased the notice penod
required for general meetings of the Company to 21 clear days unless shareholders approve a shorter notice penod, which cannot
be less than 14 clear days This approval will be effective until the Company's next AGM when it 1s ntended that a similar resolution
will be proposed

The shorter notice penod would not be used as a matter of routine for such meetings, but only where the flexibility 1s mented by the
business of the meeting and s thought to be to the advantage of shareholders as a whole AGMs will continue to be held on at least
21 clear days’ notice
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Addithional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

SHAREHOLDER NOTES

1 Entitlement to attend and vote

To be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM (and for the purpose of determining the number of votes they may cast), shareholders
must be entered on the Company’s register of members at 6 00pm on Wednesday, 26" March 2014 (or, In the event of any
adjournment, at 6 00pm on the date which 1s two days before the date of the adjourned meeting) Changes to the register of
members after the relevant deadline shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person to attend and vote at the meeting in
respect of the number of shares registered in therr name at that time It i1s propesed that all votes on the resolutions at the AGM will
be taken by way of a poll

2 Appointment of proxies — general

A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the meeting convened by the notice of AGM 15 entitled to appeint a proxy to exercise

all or any of his or her nghts to attend and to speak and vote on tus or her behalf at the meeting A sharehclder may appoint more
than one proxy in relation to the meeting prowvided that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or
shares held by that shareholder A proxy need not be a shareholder of the Company but must attend the meeting in person

For the appomntment to be effective, a proxy form {or electronic appointment of proxy, see note 4 below) must be received by the
Company's registrar not less than 48 hours before the tme of the meeting, 1 e not laterthan 12 00 noon on Wednesday, 26 March
2014 The appomtment of a proxy will not prevent a shareholder from subseguently attending the meeting and voting in persen if he
or she 1s entitled to do so and so wishes

3 Appointment of proxies — proxy form

A proxy form which may be used to make such appointment and give proxy instructions has been sent to shareholders If you do
not have a proxy form and believe that you should have one, or If you require additional forms to appoint more than one proxy,
please contact the Company’s registrars, Equiruti, on 0871 384 2198 (calls to this number will be charged at 8p per minute plus
network extras Overseas callers should dial +44 (0)121 415 7047 Lines are open from 8 30am to 5 30pm, Monday to Friday)
Alternatively photocopy the proxy form which has been sent to you All forms must be signed and should be returned together in the
same envelope

The notes to the proxy form explam how to direct your proxy to vote on each resolution or withhold ther vote Please note that the
vote withheld option on the proxy form s provided to enable you to abstain on any particular resolution, 1t 1s not a vote in law and will
not be counted In the calculahon of votes for or against the resolution If you sign the proxy form and return it without any specific
directions your proxy will vote or abstan from voting at his or her discretion If you wish 1o appoint a proxy other than the Chairman
of the meeting, please insert the name of your chasen proxy holder in the space provided on the proxy form I the proxy i1s being
appointed in relation to less than your full voting entitlement, please enter in the box next to the proxy holder's name the number of
shares in relation to which they are authonsed to act as your proxy If left blank your proxy will be deemed to be authonsed in respect
of your full voting entitlement (or if the proxy form has been 1ssued in respect of a designated account for a shareholder, the full
voting entitternent for that designated account)

In the case of joint holders, the vote of the senior joint helder who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, in respect of the
holding will be accepted to the exclusion of the votes of the other joint holders For this purpose senionty is determined by the
order In which the names appear in the Company’s register of members in respect of the jont helding In the case of a corporate
shareholder, the proxy form must be executed under its common seal or signed on its behalf by a duly authonsed officer or attorney
In the case of an individual, the proxy form must be signed by the appointing shareholder Any afterations made to the proxy form
should be inthalled

4  Appointment of proxies electronically

Shareholders who would prefer to register the appointment of their proxy electronically via the nternet can do so through Equiniti’s
website at www sharevote co uk using their personal Voting [D, Task ID and Sharehcolder Reference Number (which are pnnted

on the proxy form) Alternatively, shareholders who have already registered with Equinitis online portfolio service, Shareview, can
appoint therr proxy electronically by logging on to their portfolic at www shareview co uk Full details and instructions on these
electronic proxy faciliies are given on the respective websites A proxy appointment made electronically will not be valid if sent to
any address other than those provided or If recerved after 12 00 noon on Wednesday, 26" March 2014

5 Appomntment of proxies through CREST

CREST members who wish to appoint a proxy or proxies for the AGM, and any adjournment(s) thereof, through the CREST
electronic proxy appointment service may do 50 by using the procedures described in the CREST Manual CREST Personal
Members or other CREST sponsored members, and those CREST members who have appointed a voting service provider(s),
should refer to their CREST sponsor or voting service provider(s}, who will be able to take the appropnate action on their behat
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In order for a proxy appointment or instruction made using the CREST service to be valid, the appropriate CREST message

(a CREST Proxy [nstruction) must be properly authenticated in accordance with Euroclear UK & lreland Limited’s (EUI)

spectfications and must contain the information required for such instructiens, as descnbed in the CREST Manual (available

at www euroclear com) The message, regardless of whether it relates to the appointment of a proxy or an amendment to the
instruction given to a previously appainted proxy must, in order to be valid, be transmitted so as to be recerved by Equiniti (ID RA19)
by the latest time for racaipt of proxy appointments specified above For this purpose, the time of receipt will be taken to be the time
(as determined by the time stamp applied to the message by the CREST Applications Host) from which Equinr is able to retneve the
message by enquiry to CREST in the manner prescribed by CREST After this time any change of instructions to proxies apponted
through CREST should be communicated to the appomtee through other means

CREST members and, where apphicable, their GREST sponsors or voting service providers should note that EUI does not make
avatlable special procedures in CREST for any particular messages Normal systerm timings and imitations will therefore apply in
relation to the input of CREST Proxy Instructions It is the responsibility of the CREST member concerned to take (or, if the CREST
member 1s a CREST Personal Member or spensored member or has appointed a voting service provicler(s), to procure that his
CREST sponsor or voting senice provider(s) take(s)) such action as shall be necessary to ensure that a message I1s transmitted

by means of the CREST system by any particular ime  In this connection, CREST members and, where applicable, ther CREST
sponsors or voting service providers are referred, in particular, to those sections of the CREST Manual concerning practical
hmitations of the CREST system and ttimings

The Company may treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in the circumstances set out in Regulatton 35(5)(a} of the Uncertificated
Securties Regulations 2001

6 Changing and revoking proxy instructions

To change your proxy Instruction simply submit a new proxy appaintment using the methods set out above The deadline for
receipt of proxy appointments (see note 2 above) also applies in relation to amended instructrons Where two or more valid separate
appomtments of proxy are recesved In respect of the same share and for the same meeting, those received last by Equinrt will

take precedence

In order to revoke a proxy Instruction, a shareholder will need to inform the Company by sending a signed hard copy notice clearty
stating his/her intention to revoke a proxy appointment to Equiniti Limited, Aspect House, Spencer Road, Lancing BN99 6DA In the
case of a corporate shareholder, the revocation notice must be executed under its commen seal or signed on its behalf by a duly
authonsed officer or attorney Any power of attorney or any other authonty under which the revocation notice is signed (or a duly
certfied copy of such power of attorney) must be included with the revocation notice The revocation must be receved no later than
12 00 noon on Wednesday, 26™ March 2014 If a shareholder attempts to revoke his or her proxy appointment but the revocation s
received after the time specified the original proxy appointment will remain valid Termination of proxy appointments made through
CREST must be made in accordance with the procedures descnbed inthe CREST Manua!

7 Corporate representatives

A corporate shareholder can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on s behalf all of Its powers as a
sharehoider provided that they do not do so in relation to the same shares Representatives of shareholders that are corporations wall
have to produce evidence of their proper appointment when attending the AGM Please contact Equinmi for further guidance

8 Nominated persons

Any person to whom this notice 1s sent who I1s not a shareholder but 1s a person nominated by a shareholder under section 146

of the Companies Act 2006 to enjoy information rights (a Nominated Person) may, under an agreement with the shareholder who
nominated hinvher, have a nght to be appointed, or have somecne else appointed, as a proxy forthe AGM If a Norminated Person
has no such nght or does not wish to exercise i, he/she may, under any such agreement, have anght to give voting instructions to
the shareholder

The statement of the nghts of shareholders in relation to the appointment of proxies set out In notes 2 to 7 above does not apply

to Nominated Persons The nghts described in those notes can only be exercised by shareholders of the Company If you are a
Norminated Person it 1s important to remember that your man contact in terms of your investment remains the registered shareholder
or the custodian or broker who admiristers the investrment on your behalf

9 Shareholder parbicipation

Any shareholder attending the AGM has the night to ask questions relating to the business of the meeting and the Company has
an obligation to answer such questions unless i) to de so would interfere unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve the
disclosure of confidenhial information, (i) the answer has already been given on a webste in the form of an answer to a question, or
(u) it 1s undesirable In the interests of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the question be answered

10 Avalabilty of information on website
A copy of this notice of AGM, and other information required by section 311A of the Companies Act 2006, can be found on the
Company's website at www stmodwen co uk
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Additional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

SHAREHOLDER NOTES (CONTINUED)

11 Websre publication of audit concerns

Shareholders satisfying the threshold requirements in section 527 of the Companies Act 2006 can require the Company to publish
a statement on its website setting out any matter that such shareholder proposes to raise at the meeting relating to (a) the audrt of
the Company’s accounts {including the audrter’s report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the AGM or (b) any
crcumstances connected with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the last AGM The Company cannot require
the shareholders requesting the publicatron o pay its expenses in complying with the request Any statement placed on the website
must also be sent to the Company’s auditor no later than the time the statement 1s made available on the website The business
which may be dealt with at the meeting includes any statement that the Company has bean required to publish on its webstte under
sechon 527 of the Companies Act 2006

12 Total voting rights

As at 10™ February 2014 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of the notice of AGM), the Company’s tssued share
capital consisted of 220,376,988 shares carrying one vote each Therefore the total voting nghts in the Company as at 10™ February
2014 was 220,376,988

13 Documents available for inspection
The following documents are available for inspaction at the registered office of the Company dunng normal business hours and will
be at the place of the AGM from 15 minutes before the start of the meeting until the end of the meeting

(i) copies of the directors’ service contracts with the Company,
(i) coptes of the non-executive directors’ letters of appointment,
(m) a copy of the Company’s Articles of Association, and

(v} a copy of the rules of the SAYE Scheme showing the proposed amendments (including amendments in relation to which
shareholder approval 1s not beng sought)

14 Communication with the Company
You may not use any electronic address provided in this notice of AGM or any related documents {including the proxy form) to
communicate with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated
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APPENDIX - AMENDMENTS TO THE ST MODWEN PROPERTIES PLC 2004 SAVING RELATED SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Part | of this Appendix to the notice of AGM summarises and explains the effect of the proposed amendments to the St Modwen
Properties PLC 2004 Saving Related Share Option Scheme ({the SAYE Scheme) in relation to which shareholder approval Is sought at
the AGM Part Il of this Appendix contamns a descnption of the principal terms of the SAYE Scheme, amended as proposed

A copy of the rules of the SAYE Scheme, showing the proposed amendmenis (including amendments in relation to which
shareholder approval 1s not being sought), will be available for mspection at the registered office of the Company dunng normal
business hours from the date of this notice of AGM until the close of the AGM, and at the place of the AGM from 15 minutes before
the start of the meeting until the end of the meeting

Part | - Summary and explanation of the effect of amendments to the SAYE Scheme In relation to which shareholder approval 1s
sought at the AGM

1 Extension of term of SAYE Scheme

‘The SAYE Schemne (as cumrently drafted) 1s due to terminate on 6™ August 2014, without prejudice to existing options No new
options may be granted under 1t after that date It 1s proposed that the SAYE Scheme be extended so that it will terminate on the
tenth anniversary of the date of the AGM, 1& 28™ March 2024, and options may be granted untl that date The terrmination would,
again, be without prejudice to options which have already been granted by that date For a descnption of the pnncipal terms of the
SAYE Scheme, amended as proposed, see Part Il of this Appendix

2 Allowing three year options to be granted

The legislation governing option schemes such as the SAYE Scheme allows either three year or five year options to be granted,
iinked to savings contracts with either 36 or 60 monthly savings contributions respectively The SAYE Scheme 1s currently drafted
on the basis that only five year options will be granted It 1s proposed that the SAYE Scheme be amended to facilitate invitations to
apply for the grant of either or both three and five year options, at the discration of the Board Thiswill give added flexibility and 1s
expected that it may increase participation in the SAYE Schemie by employees

3 Alfowing exercise prices at a discount of up to 20% to market value

The legislation governing option schemes such as the SAYE Scherme allows options to be granted with an exercise prce which 1s no
less than 80% of the market value of the shares at the time of grant {or such earlier ime as may be agreed with HMRC) The SAYE
Scheme as currently drafted allows an exercise price which 1s no less than 80% of the market value of the shares at the date of

the invitation Its proposed that this 1s amended to 80%, to give more flexibility and to allow the SAYE Scheme to be made more
attractive to participants If nvitations are 1ssued with an exercise pnce of 80% of market value, rather than 90% of market value, this
would enable participants to acquire more shares for the same savings, and accordingly may increase the overall number of shares
used in the SAYE Scheme

4 Amendments to SAYE Scheme lnmits

The SAYE Scheme (in existing Rule 5 1) currently imits the number of new shares which may be issued or made 1ssuable pursuant to
the grant of options under the scheme in any 10 year penod to 12,077,395, or, if lower, the number of shares which represents 10%
of the 1ssued share capital of the Company from time to time It 1s proposed that this imit be removed Such a imit 1s not required

by guidelines issued by the Association of British Insurers (there 1s a 10% Imit in 10 years for all share schemes established by the
Company, in existing Rule 5 2, and this will remain)

The SAYE Scheme also (in existing Rule 5 3) currently imits the number of new shares which maybe 1ssued or made issuable
pursuant to the grant of options under the scheme in any five year penod, when combined with shares 1Issued or made 1ssuable
pursuant to grants under other share schemes established by the Company, to 5% of the 1ssued share capital of the Company at
the date of grant Such a imit used to be required by the guidelines 1ssued by the Association of Bntish Insurers, but no longer s It 1s
therefore proposed that this imit be removed, for consistency with other share schemes operated by the Company

5 Grant penods

The SAYE Scheme provides that options under the scheme may normally only be granted during 4 ‘Grant Penod’ A Grant Penod 1s
defined as the penod of 42 days following the publication of the annual or half yearly results of the Company, or the date on which
the SAYE Scheme was onginally approved by HMRC It 1s proposed that the penod of 42 days following the date of the AGM at
which the propesed amendments are approved be added as a Grant Pencd In addition, it 1s proposed that the wording of the
existing rules be amended to clanfy that it 15 the 1ssue of invitations, rather than the grant of options, under the SAYE Scheme that
may normally only be made dunng a Grant Penod This appears to have been the intentton of the onginal wording

Part Il - Descnption of the pnncipal terms of the SAYE Scheme, amended as proposed

1 Invitations

Dunng the penod of 42 days following the publication of the Company's annual and intenm results, and after the date of the AGM
at which the proposed amendmenis are approved, the Board may, if it so decides, invite eligible employees to apply for the grant of
options to them In exceptional circumstances invitations may be 1ssued outside such penods
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Additional Information

Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

APPENDIX - AMENDMENTS TO THE ST MODWEN PROPERTIES PLC 2004 SAVING RELATED SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

2 Ergibility

People who have been employees of the Group for a qualifying penod will be eligible to participate in the SAYE Scheme In addition,
the Board has discretion to allow participation by employees who do not meet all the eligibility requrements The invitations offered
to different people may only vary according to the lengths of service or salary of the indwidual concerned, or other similar factors

3 Acceptance and indmaual imits

To accept an invitation, the applicant will be required to sign and return to the Company the savings contract proposal form and to
state his or her proposed monthly saving contnbution This will be subject to the statutory maximum {which will be £500 per month
from 6™ Apnl 2014) or such lower amount as may be set by the Board The applicant must sign an authonty to allow the chosen
amount of contnbuhon to be deducted from his or her salary

4 Grant of options and option exercise price

The applicant will be granted an option to acquire with the amount of money that will be due to the employse at the end of the
savings contract term, the largest whole number of shares that could be acquired at the date of grant of the option for a pnce per
share that 15 not less than 80% of the market value of an equivalent share on the relevan! invitation date

Market value on any day means, while shares are listed on the London Stock Exchange, the average of the middle market quotations
of a share as dernved from the Dally Official List of the London Stock Exchange for the three immeadiately preceding dealing days

5 Restrictions on the number of new shares in respect of which options may be granted

The number of shares 1ssued or made i1ssuable by the Company pursuant to options granted under the SAYE Scheme and any other
share option schemes operated by the Company, exciuding lapsed options, during the 10 year penod ending on any date of grant
under the SAYE Scheme shall not, when added to any shares 1ssued or made issuable In the same penod under any other share
scheme operated by the Company, exceed the number of shares that represents 10% of the ordinary share capital of the Company
in1ssue on the relevant date of grant

€ Exercise and lapse of options

Options may normally only be exercised dunng the six month penod immediately following the termination of the savings contract
Special provisions govern the exercise and lapse of aptions i particular circumstances, such as where the option holder dies, leaves
the Company, or if the Company Is taken over or goes into liquidation

The rules of the SAYE Scheme state that former employees shall not be entitled by way of compensation for loss of office, or
otherwise, to compensation for loss of any actual or prospective night or henefit accrnued or anticipated under the SAYE Scheme

7 Issue of shares

Any shares 1ssued pursuant to the SAYE Scheme will rank pan passu in all respects with other ordinary shares already in 1ssue, save
that they will not rank for any dvidend or other distnbution of the Company announced or paid by reference to a record date that 1s
pnor to the date of exercise of the relevant option

8 Varation of share caprtal

In the event of certain adjustments to the share caprtal of the Company, for example as a result of a nghts 1ssue or subdmsion of
share capital, adjustments necessary to mamntan the value of the option will be made to the number of shares subject to the option
and/or the option exercise pnce and/or the maximum number and/or the nominal value of shares avallable for 1ssue under the SAYE
Scheme These adjustments will be subject to confirmation from the Company’s auditars that they are farr and reasonable, and to
HMRC approval where required

9 Afferations

The SAYE Scheme provides that the scheme cannot be amended to the advantage of parbicipants without the prior approval of
shareholders in general meeting (except for minor amendments to benefit the adrmnistration of the scheme and amendments to
obtain or maintain favourable tax, exchange control or regulatory treatrment for participants in the scheme or for the Company or
members of the Group)

10 Administration
The SAYE Scheme will be administered by the Board who will resolve any disputes relating to the scheme or uncertainty as to the
meaning of the scheme rules The Board may delegate thewr powers in relation to the SAYE Scheme to a committee

11 Termination

The SAYE Scheme shall terminate on the tenth anniversary of the date of the AGM at which the proposed amendments are
approved, or earlier if the Board so resolves Termination of the SAYE Scheme shall be without prejudice to the subsisting nghts of
option holders No options shall be granted under the SAYE Scheme after the date of termination
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Additional Information

Information for Shareholders
FINANCIAL CALENDAR

Ordinary shares quoted ex-dindend 5% March 2014

2012113 final dvidend record date 7™ March 2014

AGM 28" March 2014

2012/13 fina! dvidend payment date 4" Apnl 2014

Announcement of 2014 half year results 1% July 2014

Announcerment of 2014 final resufts February 2015

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The AGM will be held on Friday, 28" March 2014 at the Marketing Surte, Innovation Centre, 1 Devon Way, Longbndge Technology
Park, Birmingham B31 2T5, commencing at 12 00 noon The notice of meeting, together with an explanation of the resolutions be
constdered at the meeting, is set out on pages 155 to 164

WEBSITE

Information about St Modwen, including this and prior years' Annual Reports, half year reports, results announcements and
presentations, together with the latest share pnce information, 1s avallable on our website at www.stmodwen co uk/investor-relations

SHAREHOLDING ENQUIRIES AND INFORMATION

All general enquines concerning holdings of shares in St Modwen should be addressed to our regstrar

Equinit

Aspect House

Spencer Road

Lancing

West Sussex

BNI9 6DA

Telephone 0871 384 2198° (+44 (01121 415 7047 from outside the UK)

A range of shareholder mformation 1s available online at Equiniti’'s website www shareview co uk Here you can also view information
about your shareholding and obtain forms that you may need t¢ manage your sharehelding, such as a change of address formor a
stock transfer form

DIVIDEND MANDATE

If you are a shareholder who has a UK bank or bullding society account, you can arrange to have dividends paid direct via a bank or
building society mandate There is no fee for this service and a tax voucher confirming details of the dvidend payment will be sent to
your registered address Please contact EQuiniti on 0871 384 2198" or go to www shareview co uk for further information

OVERSEAS DIVIDEND PAYMENT SERVICE

1f you are resident outside the UK, Equimiti (by arrangement with Gitibank Europe PLC) can provide dvidend payments that are
autormatically converted into your local cunency and paid direct to your bank account, For more information on this overseas
payment service please contact Equinit on +44 (0)121 415 7047 or download an application form at www shareview co uk

SHARE DEALING SERVICE

If you are UK resident, you can buy and sell shares in St Modwen through Shareview Dealing, a telephone and internet based
service provided by Equinit Financial Services Ltd For further details please vist www shareview co uk/dealing or call Equiniti on
08456 037037 Equinti Financial Services Ltd 1s authonsed and regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority Other brokers and
banks or bulding societies also offer share dealing facilittes

ELECTRONIC COMMUNICATIONS

As an alternative to receving documents in hard copy, shareholders can elect to be notified by emaill as soon as documents such
as our Annual Report are published This notification includes details of where you can view or download the documents on our
website Shareholders who wish to register for email netification can do so wia Equinit’'s website at www shareview co uk

Calls to this number cost 8p per minute plus network extras Lines are open 8.30am to 5.30pm, Monday to Fnday
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Additional Information

Information for Shareholders (continued)

SHAREHOLDER SECURITY

Shareholders are adwised to be very wary of unsolicited mail or telephone calls offening free investment adwvice, offers to buy shares
at a discount or sell shares at a premium, or offers of free company reports Such contact s typically from overseas based ‘brokers’
who target UK shareholders through operations commonly known as ‘boiler rooms’ These ‘brokers’ can be very persistent and
extremely persuasive and often have websites to support ther activities

To avoid share fraud

+ Keep in mind that firms authonsed by the Financial Conduct Authority (FCA} are uniikely to contact you out of the blue with an offer
to buy or sell shares

* Do not get into a conversation, note the name of the person and fim contacting you and then end the call

+ Check the Financiat Services Register at www fea org uk to see if the person and firm contacting you 1s authonsed by the FCA

* Beware of fraudsters claming to be from an authonsed firm, copying its website or gvng you false contact details

+ Use the firm's contact details listed on the Regster ff you want to call it back

Call the FCA on 0800 111 6768 If the firm does not have contact details on the Regster or you are told they are out of date

Search the list of unauthonised firms to avoid at www fca org uk/scams

Consider that if you buy or sell shares from an unauthorised firm you will not have access to the Financial Ombudsman Service or
the Financial Services Compensation Scheme

* Thuink about geting independent financial and professional advice before you hand over any money
* Remember if it sounds too good to be true, it probably ist

If you are approached by fraudsters please tell the FCA using the share fraud reporting form at www fca org uk/scams, where you
can find out more about mvestment scams You can also call the FCA Consumer Helpline on 0800 111 6768

If you have already paid money to share fraudsters you should contact Action Fraud on 0300 123 2040

SHAREHOLDER ANALYSIS
Holdings of ordinary shares as at 30" November 2013

Shareholders Shares

Nurnber % Number %
By shareholder
Indmiduals 3.285 8080 12576068 571
Directors and connected persons 36 088 38287698 1737
Insurance companies, nominees and pension funds 678 1667 169,073,878 7672
Other Iimited companies and corporate bodies 67 165 439,344 020

4,067 100 00 220,376,988 100 00

Shareholders Shares

Numiber % Number %
By shareholding
Up to 500 1,052 2587 257777 012
501 to 1,000 696 171 539,369 024
1,001 to 5,000 1421 3494 3.315166 150
5,001 to 10,000 349 858 2,523,662 115
10,001 to 50,000 321 788 6,986,781 317
50,001 to 100,000 70 172 5,162,324 234
100,001 to 500,000 89 219 22,380,251 1018
500,001 to 1,000,000 27 067 19402248 880
1,000,001 and above 42 103 159,809,410 7252

4,067 10000 220,376,988 100.00
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Additional Information

Shareholder Notes
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Additional Information

Shareholder Notes (continued)
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Disclaimer

This Annwal Report and Financial Statements has been prepared for the membaers of St Modwen
Properties PLC and should not be refied upon by any other party or for any other purpose The
Company its drectors and employees agents and advisers do not accept or assume responsdility
to any other persen to whom this doccument 1s shown or nto whose hands it may come and any such
responsibiity or habifity 1s exprassly disclaimed

The Annuat Raport and Financial Statements contans certain forward loclang statements which,

by their nature, iInvolve nsk and uncertainty because they relate to future events and crcumstances
Actual outcomes and results may ciffer matenally from any outcomes or resutts expressed or implied
by such forward lookung stalements Any forward looking statements made by or on behalf of the
Company are made in good fath based on the information avalable at the time the statement 1s
made, no representation or warranty Is given in relation to them mcluding as to ther completeness
or accuracy or tha basis on which they were prepared The Company does not undertake to update
forward looking statements to reflect any changes in its expectations with regard thereto or any
changas in events, conditions or aircumstances on which any such statement is based Nothing in
this Annual Report and Financial Staternents should ba construed as a profit forecast

Photography

Steve Townssend - front cover, pages 3, 4, 5, 8, 10, 22, 24, 25, 26 28 31,34
Craig Holmes — pages 12, 31, 37

Matthew Nichol - page 14

The paper used In this report Is elemental chlonne free and Is FSC accredited

It 1s printed to 1ISO 14001 environmental procedures, using vegetable based inks
The Forest Stewardship Council (FSC)1s an international network which promotes
responsible management of the world's forests Forest certification 1s combined with
a systern of product labelling that allows consumers to readily identify tmber based
proeducts from certified sources

Designed and preduced by Radley Yeldar www ry com
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